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PART I
ITEM 1. BUSINESS

OVERVIEW

Ryder System, Inc. (Ryder), a Florida corporationrfded in 1933, is a global leader in transpontagind
supply chain management solutions. Our businediziged into three business segments: Fleet Managem
Solutions (FMS), which provides full service leaginontract maintenance, contract-related maintsmand
commercial rental of trucks, tractors and traitersustomers principally in the U.S., Canada aredutK.; Supply
Chain Solutions (SCS), which provides comprehensiy@ly chain solutions including distribution and
transportation services throughout North Americd Asia; and Dedicated Contract Carriage (DCC), Winmovide:
vehicles and drivers as part of a dedicated tranespon solution in the U.S. Our customers rangetfismall
businesses to large international enterprises.efbestomers operate in a wide variety of industthes most
significant of which include automotive, electragiitransportation, grocery, lumber and wood pragjifopd
service, and home furnishings.

At the end of 2008, we announced strategic initégito increase our competitiveness and drive teng-
profitable growth. As part of these initiativesrithg 2009 we discontinued SCS operations in Brézijentina, and
Chile, and transitioned out of SCS customer cotgracEurope in order to focus the organization sesburces on
the industries, accounts, and geographical reghmtspresent the greatest opportunities for cortipetadvantage
and long-term sustainable profitable growth. Thesanges will allow us to focus on enhancing the petitiveness
and growth of our service offerings in the U.S.n&da, Mexico, the U.K. and Asia markets. All pp@riod
information presented in this Form 10-K has beatated to separately present discontinued opegation

For financial information and other informationatéhg to each of our business segments see Item 7,
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€iahdition and Results of Operations,” and ltemRnancial
Statements and Supplementary Data,” of this report.

INDUSTRY AND OPERATIONS

Fleet Management Solutions

Value Proposition

Through our FMS business, we provide our customérsflexible fleet solutions that are designedrtgprove
their competitive position by allowing them to f@con their core business, lower their costs anileetttheir capite
to other parts of their business. Our FMS prodtfetrimg is comprised primarily of contractual-badad service
leasing and contract maintenance services. Weoflsptransactional fleet solutions including commial truck
rental, maintenance services, and value-addeddiggtort services such as insurance, vehicle adtration and
fuel services. In addition, we provide our custosngith access to a large selection of used truckstors and
trailers through our used vehicle sales program.

Market Trends

Over the last several years, many key trends haga beshaping the transportation industry, pagitythe
$61 billion U.S. private commercial fleet marketlahe $23 billion U.S. commercial fleet lease agwtal market.
The maintenance and operation of commercial vehitdés become more complicated requiring compaaispdnd
a significant amount of time and money to keep ith wew technology, diagnostics, retooling andnirag. Becaus
of increased demand for efficiency and reliabildgmpanies that own and manage their own fleeebfckes have
put greater emphasis on the quality of their prévemmaintenance and safety programs. More recgffitigtuating
energy prices have made it difficult for businegsegredict and manage fleet costs and the tighteredit market
has limited businesses’ access to capital.
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Operations

For the year ended December 31, 2009, our glob& Blsiness accounted for 67% of our consolidated
revenue.

U.S. Our FMS customers in the U.S. range from smalinmsses to large national enterprises. Thesemest
operate in a wide variety of industries, includtr@nsportation, grocery, lumber and wood produots] service an
home furnishings. At December 31, 2009, we hadd@8ating locations in 49 states and Puerto Ricoogerated
212 maintenance facilities on-site at customer @rixgs. A location typically consists of a mainteoa facility or
“shop,” offices for sales and other personnel, ian@any cases, a commercial rental counter, aRd@9® excludes
ancillary storage locations. Our maintenance féeditypically include a service island for fueljrsgfety inspectior
and preliminary maintenance checks as well as p &r@reventive maintenance and repairs.

Canada. We have been operating in Canada for over 5Gsyd&e Canadian private commercial fleet market
is estimated to be $8 billion and the Canadian ceroral fleet lease and rental market is estimatdukt$2 billion.
At December 31, 2009, we had 38 operating locatibraighout 9 Canadian provinces. We also have 6
on-site maintenance facilities in Canada.

Europe. We began operating in the U.K. in 1971 and sthea have expanded into Germany by leveraging
our operations in the U.S. and the U.K. The U.Knotercial fleet lease and rental market is estimtidzb
$6 billion. At December 31, 2009, we had 32 opemtocations throughout the U.K. and Germany, gretated 14
on-site maintenance facilities. We also managehaar& of 341 independent maintenance facilitiethie U.K. to
serve our customers where it is more effective firawiding the service at a Ryder location. In #&ddito our
typical FMS operations, we also supply and manapmcles, equipment and personnel for military oigations in
the U.K. and Germany.

FMS Product Offerings

Full Service Leasing.Under a typical full service lease, we providaieke maintenance, supplies and related
equipment necessary for operation of the vehicleisevour customers furnish and supervise their dwwers and
dispatch and exercise control over the vehicles.f@Llservice lease includes all the maintenarewises that are
part of our contract maintenance service offerivg. target leasing customers that would benefit foutsourcing
their fleet management function or upgrading tfleit without having to dedicate a significant ambaof their own
capital. We will assess a customer’s situation, &ftel considering the size of the customer, redidek and other
factors, will tailor a leasing program that beststhe customes needs. Once we have agreed on a leasing pro
we acquire vehicles and components that are custmimeered to the customer’s requirements and thase
vehicles to the customer for periods generally ranérom three to seven years for trucks and trachmd up to ten
years for trailers. Because we purchase a largdaupf vehicles from a limited number of manufaetsr we art
able to leverage our buying power for the bendfiuwr customers. In addition, given our continuedus on
improving the efficiency and effectiveness of owintenance services, we can provide our customignsaveost
effective alternative to maintaining their own i@ vehicles. We also offer our leasing custontkesadditional
fleet support services described below.

Contract Maintenance.Our contract maintenance customers include natteRgwned vehicles related to our
full service lease customers as well as other ousts that want to utilize our extensive networknafintenance
facilities and trained technicians to maintain tledicles they own or lease from third parties. Toetract
maintenance service offering is designed to redebécle downtime through preventive maintenancetas
vehicle type and time or mileage intervals. Theviseralso provides vehicle repairs including parid labor,
24-hour emergency roadside service and replacevesintles for vehicles that are temporarily out efvice.
Vebhicles covered under this offering are typicakyviced at our own facilities. However, basedlmdize and
complexity of a customer’s fleet, we may operat®assite maintenance facility at the customer’sitam.

Commercial Rental. We target rental customers that have a needpglesment their private fleet of vehicles
a short-term basis (typically from less than onenthaip to one year in length) either because of
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seasonal increases in their business or discrejeqgps that require additional transportation reses. Our
commercial rental fleet also provides additiondliekes to our full service lease customers to hatlubir peak or
seasonal business needs. In addition toaiheemmercial rental transactions, we seek tocbndtional relationshiy
with large national customers to become their preéesource of commercial vehicle rentals. Ourakent
representatives assist in selecting a vehiclesthiggfies the customer’s needs and supervise el fgrocess, which
includes execution of a rental agreement and acleelmspection. In addition to vehicle rental, weesd to our
rental customers liability insurance coverage umagrexisting policies and the benefits of our coamgnsive fuel
services program.

The following table provides information regardithg number of vehicles and customers by FMS product
offering at December 31, 2009:

U.S. Foreign Total
Vehicles Customer Vehicles Customer Vehicles  Customer
Full service leasin 96,00( 12,00C 19,10( 2,40C 115,10( 14,40(
Contract maintenanc®) 29,80( 1,40( 4,60( 20C 34,40( 1,60(
Commercial rente 22,70( 7,90( 4,70C 3,80( 27,40( 11,70(

(1) Contract maintenance customers includes approxin&g@0 full service lease custome

Contract-Related MaintenanceOur full service lease and contract maintenamstoners periodically require
additional maintenance services that are not irezdud their contracts. For example, additional rreaiance servict
may arise when a customer’s driver damages theleetind these services are performed or manag&ydbsr.
Some customers also periodically require maintemavark on vehicles that are not covered by a l@rgitlease or
maintenance contract. Ryder may provide servicthese vehicles and charge the customer on an hioasig for
work performed. We obtain contract-related mainteeavork because of our contractual relationship tie
customers; however, the service provided is intamdio that included in their contractual agreetaen

Fleet Support ServicesWe have developed a variety of fleet supportisesitailored to the needs of our large
base of lease customers. Customers may electltmathese services as part of their full servézesé or contract
maintenance agreements. Currently, we offer tHeviahg fleet support services:

Service Description
Fuel Full service diesel fuel dispensing at competitiviees; fuel planning;
fuel tax reporting; centralized billing; and fuelrds
Insurance Liability insurance coverage under our existingui@mce policies which

includes monthly invoicing, flexible deductiblesaions administration
and discounts based on driver performance and leetpecifications;
physical damage waivers; gap insurance; and fidletassessmel

Safety Establishing safety standards; providing safetiiing, driver
certification, prescreening and road tests; sadatits; instituting
procedures for transport of hazardous materialsrdinating drug and
alcohol testing; and loss prevention consul

Administrative Vehicle use and other tax reporting; permitting hoehsing; and
regulatory compliance (including hours of servidenaistration)

Environmental management Storage tank monitoring; stormwater managementremwmental
training; and 1SO 14001 certificatic

Information technology RydeSmar™is a full-featured GPS fleet location, trackingdamehicle

performance management system designed to prouideustomers
improved fleet operations and cost contréleetCARES our web-based
tool that provides customers with 24/7 access yodgerational and
maintenance management information about theitsfl
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Used Vehicles.We primarily sell our used vehicles at one of Bbiretail sales centers throughout
North America (11 of which are collocated at a F&t®p), at our branch locations or through our wekest
www.Usedtrucks.Ryder.conTypically, before we offer used vehicles for saler technicians assure that iRead
Ready™, which means that the vehicle has passed a coeysete, multi-point performance inspection based on
specifications formulated through our contract rtexiance program. Our retail sales centers througkorh
America allow us to leverage our expertise andiin tealize higher sales proceeds than in the whtdemarket.
Although we generally sell our used vehicles facgs in excess of book value, the extent to whiehave able to
realize a gain on the sale of used vehicles ismtg® upon various factors including the generkesdf the used
vehicle market, the age and condition of the vehitlthe time of its disposal and depreciationsratith respect to
the vehicle.

FMS Business Strategy

Our FMS business mission is to be the leading hggand maintenance service provider for light, medand
heavy duty vehicles. This will be achieved throtigh following goals and priorities:

< improve customer retention levels and focus on ewsign of private fleets and commercial rental consrs
to full service lease custome

» successfully implement sales growth initiative®im contractual product offering
« focus on contractual revenue growth strategiedudneg the evaluation of selective acquisitio

< deliver consistent industry leading maintenanceuiocustomers while continuing to implement process
designs, productivity improvements and complianseigline in a cost effective mann

- offer a wide range of support services that complenour leasing, rental and maintenance busine

- offer competitive pricing through cost managemaitidtives and maintain pricing discipline on new
business

* optimize asset utilization and management;

» leverage infrastructur

Competition

As an alternative to using our services, custormmeg choose to provide these services for themsetvenay
choose to obtain similar or alternative servicesnfiother third-party vendors.

Our FMS business segment competes with companiegdprg similar services on a national, regionad an
local level. Many regional and local competitoreypde services on a national level through theitipigation in
various cooperative programs. Competitive factockide price, equipment, maintenance, service andrgphic
coverage. We compete with finance lessors andveitbatruck and trailer manufacturers, and independealers,
who provide full service lease products, finanasés, extended warranty maintenance, rental aed oth
transportation services. Value-added differentratibthe full service leasing, contract maintenamocatract-related
maintenance and commercial rental service has laeehyill continue to be, our emphasis.

Acquisitions

In addition to our continued focus on organic gtovetcquisitions play an important role in enhanang
growth strategy in the U.S., Canada and the U.Kaskessing potential acquisition targets, we lookémpanies
that would create value for the Company throughctieation of operating synergies, leveraging oistig facility
infrastructure and fixed costs, improving our gegdic coverage, diversifying our customer basei@pdoving oul
competitive position in target markets.
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On February 2, 2009, we acquired the assets oft Edasing LLC (“Edart”), which included Edart’s éeof
approximately 1,600 vehicles and more than 340recohial customers, complementing our FMS markeeicame ir
the Northeast. We also acquired approximately st8oles for remarketing, the majority of which were sold by
end of 2009.

Supply Chain Solutions

Value Proposition

Through our SCS business, we offer a broad rangaokative logistics management services that are
designed to optimize a customer’s supply chainadudiess key customer business requirements. Tine'sepply
chain”refers to a strategically designed process thattiithe movement of materials, funds and relatfimatior
from the acquisition of raw materials to the detivef finished products to the end-user. Our SGRIpct offerings
are organized into three categories: distributi@magement, transportation management and professiervices.
These offerings are supported by a variety of imition technology and engineering solutions whighaa integral
part of our other SCS services. These productioffercan be offered independently or as an intedraplution to
optimize supply chain effectiveness.

Market Trends

The global supply chain logistics market is $498dwi, of which the North America and Asia supplyain
logistics markets are $263 billion. Over the past fears, we have seen significant fluctuatiorthénvariables that
impact supply chains. We have seen the price dfrise and fall, the cost of Asian labor increaastér than
anticipated, and capital become much harder tareldtaaddition, neither the U.S. trucking market J.S. ports
are facing the capacity constraints they were ayfears ago.

Such fluctuations demonstrate how unpredictables#iniables that impact supply chains have andaaititinue
to be. To handle this uncertainty, companies askihg for third-party logistics (3PL) providers wigan create and
execute flexible networks. In order to achieve,tb@mpanies need 3PL providers who are strategtogra. By
aligning into industry verticals, we can betterateesolutions for our customers that meet the nettwir
industries.

Operations
For the year ended December 31, 2009, our SCSdassatcounted for 23% of our consolidated revenue.

U.S. At December 31, 2009, we had 106 SCS customeuats in the U.S., most of which are large
enterprises that maintain large, complex supplynsha@ hese customers operate in a variety of imdssincluding
automotive, electronics, higlech, telecommunications, industrial, consumer gopdper and paper products, off
equipment, food and beverage, and general rethikimies. We continue to further diversify our cusér base by
expanding into new industry verticals, includintgpigconsumer goods. Most of our core SCS businpssations in
the U.S. revolve around our customers’ supply chaimd are geographically located to maximize efficies and
reduce costs. At December 31, 2009, managed waselspace totaled approximately 13 million squaee fiar the
U.S. and Puerto Rico. Along with those core custospecific locations, we also concentrate certagistics
expertise in locations not associated with specifistomer sites. For example, our carrier procunéne®ntract
management and freight bill audit and payment ses/groups operate out of our carrier managemen¢cand
our transportation optimization and execution gaperate out of our logistics center, both of Whiave location
in Novi, Michigan and Fort Worth, Texas.

Canada. At December 31, 2009, we had 45 SCS customenate@and managed warehouse space totaling
approximately 1 million square feet. Given the pmaity of this market to our U.S. and Mexico opeoas, the
Canadian operations are highly coordinated witiir feS. and Mexico counterparts, managing crossiaor
transportation and freight movements. At the end80if8, we acquired CRSA Logistics and
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Transpacific Container Terminals, which manage<stig:to-end supply chain from Asia for the Canadiatail
Shippers Association, further emphasizing our famushe retail industry.

Mexico. We began operating in Mexico in the mid-1990sDatember 31, 2009, we operated and maintained
700 vehicles in Mexico. At December 31, 2009, wed 88 SCS customer accounts and managed wareharse sp
totaling approximately 700,000 square feet. Our i@wperations offer a full range of SCS serviaed manages
approximately 2,000 border crossings each weekdsiviexico and the U.S. and Canada, often higlégnated
with our distribution and transportation operations

Asia. We began operating in Asia in 2000. At Decemler2®09, we had 30 SCS customer accounts and
managed warehouse space totaling approximatelyp882xquare feet. Asia is a key component to oail igtrategy
With the 2008 acquisition of CRSA Logistics and igpacific Container Terminals, we were able to gagnificant
presence in Asia. We now have a network of ownedaayent offices throughout Asia, with headquatriters
Shanghai, China.

Our largest customer, General Motors CorporatioM)Gs comprised of multiple contracts in North Area.
In 2009, GM accounted for approximately 13% of SQt&l revenue and 3% of consolidated revenue. Wigale
approximately 42% of our SCS revenue from the aotoma industry, mostly from manufacturers and sigsplof
original equipment parts.

SCS Product Offerings

Dedicated Contract Carriage.Although offered as a stand-alone service, déeliceontract carriage can also
be offered as part of an integrated supply chditism to our customers. The DCC offering combities
equipment, maintenance and administrative senatadull service lease with drivers and additiosaitvices to
provide a customer with a dedicated transportegaation that is designed to increase their cortigetposition,
improve risk management and integrate their trartapon needs with their overall supply chain. @@&C solution
offers a high degree of specialization to meetbeds of customers with sophisticated service remgnts such as
tight delivery windows, high-value or time-senstifreight, closed-loop distribution, multi-stop giments,
specialized equipment or integrated transportai@eds. For the year ended December 31, 2009, apai@ty 53%
of our SCS revenue was related to dedicated cdrtsauiage services.

Transportation ManagementOur SCS business offers services relating tasgects of a customer’s
transportation network. Our team of transportasipacialists provides shipment planning and exegutidich
includes shipment optimization, load scheduling delivery confirmation through a series of techigidal and
web-based solutions. Our transportation consultémtiiding our freight brokerage department, foonsarrier
procurement of all modes of transportation witheamphasis on truck-based transportation, rate reggwotiand
freight bill audit and payment services. In additiour SCS business provides customers as welirdBMS and
DCC businesses with capacity management servie¢site designed to meet backhaul opportunitiesraninize
excess miles. For the year ended December 31, #@purchased and (or) executed over $3 billicindight
moves on our customers behalf. For the year endegmber 31, 2009, transportation solutions accduoitel 3%
of our U.S. SCS revenue.

Distribution Management.Our SCS business offers a wide range of servaasing to a customer’s
distribution operations from designing a customdi&ribution network to managing distribution fiéte@s. Services
within the facilities generally include managing ttow of goods from the receiving function to gtepping
function, coordinating warehousing and transpartafor inbound and outbound material flows, hargliimport anc
export for international shipments, coordinatingtjin-time replenishment of component parts to nfecturing and
final assembly and providing shipments to custodigribution centers or end-customer delivery middditional
value-added services such as light assembly of ooams into defined units (kitting), packaging aeflirbishment
are also provided. For the year ended Decembe2(B, distribution operations accounted for 29%wfU.S. SC!
revenue.

Professional ServicesOur SCS business offers a variety of knowletdgsed services that support every as
of a customer’s supply chain. Our SCS professioai@savailable to evaluate a customer’s existiqpluchain to
identify inefficiencies, as well as opportunities fntegration and improvement. Once the
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assessment is complete, we work with the customeéevelop a supply chain strategy that will crehéemost value
for the customer and their target clients. Oncestamner has adopted a supply chain strategy, o8rl&gistics
team, supported by functional experts, and reptateas from our information technology, real estand finance
groups work together to design a strategically $ecusupply chain solution. The solution may inclbdéh a
network design that sets forth the number, locagiod function of key components of the network and
transportation solution that optimizes the modenodes of transportation and route selection. Intahdto
providing the distribution and transportation exjsernecessary to implement the supply chain solutur SCS
representatives can coordinate and manage allaspfethe customer’s supply chain provider netwiorlassure
consistency, efficiency and flexibility. For theayeended December 31, 2009, knowledge-based piafiess
services accounted for 5% of our U.S. SCS revenue.

SCS Business Strategy

Our SCS business strategy is to offer our custontiffierentiated functional execution, and proactetutions
from deep expertise in key industry verticals. Shrategy revolves around the following interrelagedls and
priorities:

« Further diversifying our customer base through esfn with key industry vertical:
» Developing services specific to the needs of ttalrand consumer packaged goods indut

» Providing customers with a differentiated qualifyservice through reliable and flexible supply chai
solutions;

e Creating a culture of innovation that fosters nelutsons for our custome’ supply chain need:
« Focusing on continuous improvement and standardizaind
e Training and developing employees to share bestipes and improve taler

Competition

In the SCS business segment we compete with a tangder of companies providing similar servicegheaf
which has a different set of core competenciesrd hee a handful of large integrated companiesanepete with
across all of our service offerings and industréag] other companies who we only compete with acifip service
offerings (transportation management or distributilanagement) or industries. We face different agtitgrs in
each country of operation. Most of our competitersl to have strength in one country or region oteers.
Competitive factors include price, service, makmiwledge, expertise in logistics-related technglamnd overall
performance (e.g. timeliness, accuracy, and fl&éxii

Dedicated Contract Carriage

Value Proposition

Through our DCC business segment, we combine thipmgnt, maintenance and administrative services of
full service lease with drivers and additional $eg% to provide a customer with a dedicated trariapon solution
that is designed to increase their competitivetfmsiimprove risk management and integrate thiairgportation
needs with their overall supply chain. Such addaicservices include routing and scheduling, fieghg, safety,
regulatory compliance, risk management, technology communication systems support including on-dboar
computers, and other technical support. Theseiaddltservices allow us to address, on behalf ofcostomers,
high service levels, efficient routing and the lalssues associated with maintaining a private fié@ehicles, such
as driver turnover, government regulation, inclgdiours of service regulations, DOT audits and wmk
compensation. Our DCC solution offers a high degfespecialization to meet the needs of customéis w
sophisticated service requirements such as tightedy windows, high-value or time-sensitive fretighlosed-loop
distribution, multi-stop shipments, specializedipgqent or integrated transportation needs.
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Market Trends

The U.S. dedicated contract carriage market isneséid to be $11 billion. This market is affectednigny of
the trends that impact our FMS business, inclutlegovercapacity in the current U.S. trucking markae
administrative burden relating to regulations isshg the Department of Transportation (DOT) regagdiriver
screening, training and testing, as well as rekesping and other costs associated with the hdiesreice
requirements, make our DCC product an attractitesrative to private fleet management. In additioarket
demand for just-in-time delivery creates a neednweli-defined routing and scheduling plans thatlzased on
comprehensive asset utilization analysis and flg#nalization studies.

Operations/Product Offerings

For the year ended December 31, 2009, our DCC éssiaccounted for 10% of our consolidated reveiue.
December 31, 2009, we had 162 DCC customer accaoutite U.S. Because it is highly customized, o@@®
product is particularly attractive to companied therate in industries that have time-sensitieveliges or special
handling requirements, as well as to companiesnghoire specialized equipment. Because DCC accaypitsally
operate in a limited geographic area, most of tiveets assigned to these accounts are short-hawgrgly meaning
they return home at the end of each work day. Aigioa significant portion of our DCC operations laeated at
customer facilities, our DCC business utilizes badefits from our extensive network of FMS faclii

In order to customize an appropriate DCC transgiortaolution for our customers, our DCC logistics
specialists perform a transportation analysis uaihganced logistics planning and operating tooésd8l on this
analysis, they formulate a logistics design thakides the routing and scheduling of vehicles gfffieient use of
vehicle capacity and overall asset utilization. el of the plan is to create a distribution systkat optimizes
freight flow while meeting a customer’s service igo@& team of DCC transportation specialists camtimplement
the plan by leveraging the resources, expertiseéestthological capabilities of both our FMS and SiTSinesses.

To the extent a distribution plan includes multipledes of transportation (air, rail, sea and highjwaur DCC
team, in conjunction with our SCS transportatioacsalists, selects appropriate transportation madeéscarriers,
places the freight, monitors carrier performanca amdits billing. In addition, through our SCS mess, we can
reduce costs and add value to a custosndistribution system by aggregating orders intalk looking for shipme
consolidation opportunities and organizing loadsviehicles that are returning from their destinafimint back to
their point of origin (backhaul).

DCC Business Strategy

Our DCC business strategy is to focus sales ot who need specialized equipment, specialiaadlimg
or integrated services. This strategy revolvesraddhe following interrelated goals and priorities:

« Increase market share with customers in the erargyutility, metals and mining, retail, construatio
healthcare products, and food and beverage indas

* Leverage the support and talent of the FMS sabas fa the joint sales prograi

» Align DCC business with other SCS product linesriate revenue opportunities and improve operating
efficiencies in both segments; a

« Improve competitiveness in the r-specialized and n«integrated customer segmer

Competition

Our DCC business segment competes with truckloatecsaand other dedicated providers servicing on a
national, regional and local level. Competitivetéas include price, equipment, maintenance, semegeographi
coverage and driver and operations expertise. Walale to differentiate the DCC product offeringléyeraging
FMS and integrating the DCC services with thos8085 to create a more comprehensive transportatlatia for
our customers.
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ADMINISTRATION

We have consolidated most of our financial admiatste functions for the U.S. and Canada, includiregit,
billing and collections, into our Shared Servicenter operations, a centralized processing centated in
Alpharetta, Georgia. Our Shared Services Centerralnages contracted third parties providing adstretive
finance and support services outside of the U.8rder to reduce ongoing operating expenses andhiizeour
technology resources. This centralization resulimore efficient and consistent centralized praogssf selected
administrative operations. Certain administratiections are also performed at the Shared Ser@easer for our
customers. The Shared Services Center's main dlgsaire to reduce ongoing annual administratiss;@nhance
customer service through process standardizatieate an organizational structure that will improvarket
flexibility and allow future reengineering effottis be more easily attained at lower implementatiosts.

REGULATION

Our business is subject to regulation by variodefal, state and foreign governmental entities. Dbpartmen
of Transportation and various federal and stat@ige exercise broad powers over certain aspeasrdfusiness,
generally governing such activities as authorizatmengage in motor carrier operations, safetyfaratcial
reporting. We are also subject to a variety of hegments of national, state, provincial and localgrnments,
including the U.S. Environmental Protection Agemacyl the Occupational Safety and Health Adminigiratthat
regulate safety, the management of hazardous mlstesiater discharges and air emissions, solidendisposal and
the release and cleanup of regulated substancemadalso be subject to licensing and other reqerdgs impose
by the U.S. Department of Homeland Security and Qi&toms Service as a result of increased focusmoreland
security and our Customs-Trade Partnership Agdiesbrism certification. We may also become sulectew or
more restrictive regulations imposed by these agenor other authorities relating to carbon cdstemd reporting,
engine exhaust emissions, drivers’ hours of sergeeurity and ergonomics.

The Environmental Protection Agency has issuedlagigms that require progressive reductions in esha
emissions from certain diesel engines from 200Guhh 2010. Emissions standards require reductiotisei sulfur
content of diesel fuel since June 2006. Also, ttst phase of progressively stringent emissionsdzteds relating to
emissions after-treatment devices was introduceagesvly-manufactured engines and vehicles utilizing engingls
after January 1, 2007. The second phase, whicliregtjan additional after treatment system, becdffieetere
January 1, 2010.

ENVIRONMENTAL

We have always been committed to sound environrhprdatices that reduce risk and build value foand
our customers. We have a history of adopting “gresigns and processes because they are efficosteffective
transportation solutions that improve our bottone land bring value to our customers. We adoptedimstr
worldwide Environmental Policy mission in 1991 dral/e updated it periodically as regulatory andaustr needs
have changed. Our environmental policy reflectscmmmitment to supporting the goals of sustainable
development, environmental protection and pollupogvention in our business. We have adopted ptigeac
environmental strategies that have advanced bussgresvth and continued to improve our performamocgays tha
reduce emission outputs and environmental impaat.e@vironmental team works with our staff and agiag
employees to develop and administer programs ip@ujef our environmental policy and to help ensina
environmental considerations are integrated iftbudiness processes and decisions.

In establishing appropriate environmental objectiard targets for our wide range of business #ietsvaround
the world, we focus on (i) the needs of our cust@en@) the communities in which we provide sees¢and
(iii) relevant laws and regulations. We reguladyiew and update our environmental management guves, and
information regarding our environmental activitissoutinely disseminated throughout Ryder. We shigid our
first Corporate Responsibility Report (CSR) in 2@@&ch details our sustainable business practinds a
environmental strategies to improve energy usé,cdosts and reduce overall carbon emissions. Ctlyrthere is no
global carbon disclosure requirement for reporéngssions. However, for the past two years, we ipavecipated
in the Carbon Disclosure Project (CDP), voluntarily
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disclosing direct and indirect emissions resulfirogn our operations. Both of these reports areiplybdvailable on
Ryder’s Green Center at http://www.Ryder.com/greater. The Green Center provides all stakeholders infaon
on our key environmental programs and initiatives.

SAFETY

Our safety culture is founded upon a core commitrtthe safety, health and well-being of our ergpks,
customers, and the community, a commitment thatenuacan industry leader in safety throughout ostiohy.

Safety is an integral part of our business strategpause preventing injury improves employee quafitife,
eliminates service disruptions to our customersgiases efficiency and customer satisfaction. é@ra value, our
focus on safety is a daily regimen, reinforced ngnsafety programs and continuous operationaldrgmnent and
supported by a talented and dedicated safety argtéom.

Training is a critical component of our safety peorg. Monthly safety training topics delivered bgdtion
safety committees cover specific and relevant gafgtics and managers receive annual safety |elsigaraining.
Regular safety behavioral observations are condumtenanagers throughout the organization everypahaly
remedial training takes place on-the-spot and etyelcation with a reported injury. We also defige
comprehensive suite of highly interactive trainiegsons through Ryder Pro-TREAD to each driveniddially
over the internet.

Our safety policies require that all managers, stipers and employees incorporate processes asp#cts of
our business. Monthly safety scorecards are traakéldeviewed by management for progress towardsafsty
objectives. Our proprietary web-based safety traglslystem, RyderStar, delivers proactive safetgmams tailored
to every location and helps measure safety actéffigctiveness.

EMPLOYEES

At December 31, 2009, we had approximately 22,2d&time employees worldwide, of which 21,600 were
employed in North America, 1,000 in Europe and BOAsia. We have approximately 13,700 hourly empkxsyin
the U.S., approximately 2,900 of which are orgaghizg labor unions. These employees are principallyesented
by the International Brotherhood of Teamsters Itihernational Association of Machinists and Aerasp#Vorkers,
and the United Auto Workers, and their wages amefits are governed by 96 labor agreements that are
renegotiated periodically. Some of the business&gich we currently engage have experienced ariabteork
stoppage, slowdown or strike. We consider thatrelationship with our employees is good.

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

All of the executive officers of Ryder were electdreelected to their present offices either at or sgbeat tc
the meeting of the Board of Directors held on Mag@09 in conjunction with Ryder's 2009 Annual Magt They
all hold such offices, at the discretion of the Bbaf Directors, until their removal, replacementetirement.

Name Age Position
Gregory T. Swientol 60  Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Offi
Robert E. Sanche 44  Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offi
Robert D. Fatovit 44  Executive Vice President, Chief Legal Officer anorfibrate Secretal
Art A. Garcia 48  Senior Vice President and Control
Gregory F. Green 50 Executive Vice President and Chief Human Resoutdéser
Anthony G. Tegneli 64  President, Global Fleet Management Soluti
John H. Williford 53  President, Global Supply Chain Solutic
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Gregory T. Swienton has been Chairman since Mayp 20@ Chief Executive Officer since November 2000.
He also served as President from June 1999 to20te Before joining Ryder, Mr. Swienton was Senare
President of Growth Initiatives of Burlington Noettm Santa Fe Corporation (BNSF) and before thatSWienton
was BNSF’s Senior Vice President, Coal and Agrimalt Commodities Business Unit.

Robert E. Sanchez has served as Executive Vicé&denesand Chief Financial Officer since October 208e
previously served as Executive Vice President ofr@jons, U.S. Fleet Management Solutions from Bet@005
to October 2007 and as Senior Vice President anef Gifformation Officer from January 2003 to Octol2€05.
Mr. Sanchez joined Ryder in 1993 and has held uarfositions.

Robert D. Fatovic has served as Executive Viceitkea General Counsel and Corporate Secretarg $itay
2004. He previously served as Senior Vice Presjdé®. Supply Chain Operations, High-Tech and Coresu
Industries from December 2002 to May 2004. Mr. Fatgined Ryder’s Law department in 1994 as Assist
Division Counsel and has held various positionsinithe Law department including Vice President Baguty
General Counsel.

Art A. Garcia has served as Senior Vice PresidedtG@ontroller since October 2005 and as Vice Peggidnd
Controller since February 2002. Mr. Garcia joingal& in December 1997 and has held various positiathin
Corporate Accounting.

Gregory F. Greene has served as Executive Vicederdssince December 2006 and as Chief Human Ress
Officer since February 2006. Previously, Mr. Gresaeved as Senior Vice President, Strategic Plgrenil
Development from April 2003. Mr. Greene joined RydeAugust 1993 and has since held various pastisithin
Human Resources.

Anthony G. Tegnelia has served as President, Gllkeat Management Solutions since October 2005. He
previously served as Executive Vice President, Siufaply Chain Solutions from December 2002 to Oet@®05.
Prior to that, he was Senior Vice President, Gl&hadiness Value Management. Mr. Tegnelia joineddRyal 1977
and has held a variety of other positions with Rydeluding Senior Vice President and Chief FinahCfficer of
Supply Chain Solutions and Senior Vice PresideieldA-inance.

John H. Williford has served as President, Glohgd@y Chain Solutions since June 2008. Prior toijaj
Ryder, Mr. Williford founded and served as Prestderd Chief Executive Officer of Golden Gate Logist.LC
from 2006 to June 2008. From 2002 to 2005, he semgePresident and Chief Executive Officer of Menlo
Worldwide, Inc., the supply chain business of CMIE, From 2005 to 2006, Mr. Williford was engagexdaa
advisor to Menlo Worldwide subsequent to the séMenlo Forwarding to United Parcel Service.

FURTHER INFORMATION

For further discussion concerning our businessttseeformation included in Items 7 and 8 of treport.
Industry and market data used throughout Item lobkéasined through a compilation of surveys andistud
conducted by industry sources, consultants and/stsal

We make available free of charge through the Iroreéltlations page on our website at www.ryder.com o
Annual Report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports omnrd 0-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and all ameeuiis to
those reports as soon as reasonably practicaklesaith material is electronically filed with orriished to the
Securities and Exchange Commission.

In addition, our Corporate Governance Guidelinemdiples of Business Conduct (including our Finra@nde
of Conduct), and Board committee charters are dastethe Corporate Governance page of our webisite a
www.ryder.com.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

In addition to the factors discussed elsewheraimreport, the following are some of the importiactors that
could affect our business.

11
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Our operating and financial results may fluctuate die to a number of factors, many of which are beyondur
control.

Our annual and quarterly operating and financisiliits are affected by a number of economic, regoland
competitive factors, including:

< changes in current financial, tax or regulatoryuisgments that could negatively impact the leasiagket;

« our inability to obtain expected customer retent@rels or sales growth targe

* unanticipated interest rate and currency exchaaigefluctuations

» labor strikes, work stoppages or driver shortadiesng us or our customer

e sudden changes in fuel prices and fuel shortz

« relationships with and competition from vehicle mtatturers

< changes in accounting rules, estimates, assumgiwhgsccruals; ar

e outages, system failures or delays in timely actesisita in legacy information technology systehad t
support key business process

Our business and operating results could be adverseaffected by unfavorable economic and industry
conditions.

In 2009, we managed through the challenges of thlemged freight recession. The recession impaated
FMS customers which continued to cope with reddoeight activity by downsizing their fleets and ning less
miles with the existing fleet. Our transactionafoercial rental business also felt the effectsunfent market
conditions as demand continued to decline througti@uyear. In addition, we were impacted by lo®&S
automotive production volumes and overall freigblinmes. Uncertainty around macroeconomic and imgust
conditions may impact the spending and financisitmm of our customers.

Challenging economic and market conditions may edsalt in:

« difficulty forecasting, budgeting and planning dodimited visibility into the spending plans ofrcent or
prospective customer

« increased competition for fewer projects and sapgmrtunities

« pricing pressure that may adversely affect revemgbgross margir

« higher overhead costs as a percentage of rev

* increased risk of charges relating to asset impaits) including goodwill and other intangible asgs
« customer financial difficulty and increased riskunicollectible accounts receivab

« diminished liquidity and credit availability resinlty in higher short-term borrowing costs and madragent
borrowing terms

« fleet downsizing which could adversely impact patfility; and
* increased risk of declines in the residual valdesuo vehicles

We are uncertain as to how long current, unfaveratcroeconomic and industry conditions will pérarsd
the magnitude of their effects on our businessrandlts of operations. If these conditions peistrther weaken,
our business and results of operations could benmafly adversely affected.

We bear the residual risk on the value of our vehies.

We generally bear the residual risk on the valueusfvehicles. Therefore, if the market for useticles
declines, or our vehicles are not properly mairgdjrwe may obtain lower sales proceeds upon the

12
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sale of used vehicles. Changes in residual valisesimpact the overall competitiveness of our &divice lease
product line, as estimated sales proceeds aréi@atdomponent of the overall price of the proddalditionally,
technology changes and sudden changes in supplgieandnd together with other market factors beyamdcontrol
vary from year to year and from vehicle to vehidweking it difficult to accurately predict residualues used in
calculating our depreciation expense. Although aechdeveloped disciplines related to the manageareht
maintenance of our vehicles that are designedeeemt these losses, there is no assurance thatphaesices will
sufficiently reduce the residual risk. For a det@itliscussion on our accounting policies and assangorelating to
depreciation and residual values, please see thiersditled “Critical Accounting Estimates — Depiation and
Residual Value Guarantees” in Management’s Disonsand Analysis of Financial Condition and Resaofts
Operations.

Our profitability could be adversely impacted by ou inability to maintain appropriate commercial rent al
utilization rates through our asset management inititives.

We typically do not purchase vehicles for our &élvice lease product line until we have an execotmtract
with a customer. In our commercial rental prodirat,| however, we do not purchase vehicles agajrestific
customer contracts. Rather, we purchase vehiclésptimize the size and mix of the commercial refieet based
upon our expectations of overall market demanda Aessult, we bear the risk for ensuring that weelthe proper
vehicles in the right condition and location toeetively capitalize on market demand in order fwadthe highest
levels of utilization and revenue per unit. We emyph sales force and operations team on a full-basss to
manage and optimize this product line; howevel &fforts may not be sufficient to overcome a #figant change
in market demand in the rental business or useitieemarket.

Volatility in automotive volumes and shifting custaner demand in the automotive industry would adversky
affect our results.

Approximately 42% of our global SCS revenue is frihv® automotive industry and is directly impactgd b
automotive vehicle production. In addition, a numbeour FMS customers, particularly transportatéon trucking
companies, provide services to the automotive imgu8utomotive sales and production are impactgdéneral
economic conditions, consumer preference, fuekpritabor relations, the availability of credit astter factors.
The automotive industry in 2009 was significantiypiacted by the global recession resulting in tisgueturing of
General Motors Corporation (GM) and Chrysler, LO®e restructuring of these North American OEMs ltesiuin
more competitive cost structures and capacitynie With demand. However, if stronger sales do ratenmlize in
2010 due to a still weakened economy, the OEMslikély respond by reducing production capacitytbirough
plant shutdowns and a reduction in the number aflpetion shifts as they did in early 2009. Thessmpshutdowns
and shift eliminations have negatively impacted msults in 2009. Any prolonged plant shutdowns aaditional
shift eliminations can significantly reduce our ogg@®ns with the OEMs as well as the operationthefautomotive
suppliers and transportation providers that weiserwn both our FMS and SCS businesses, and candaegative
impact on our future results.

We derive a significant portion of our SCS revenudérom a relatively small number of customers.

During 2009, sales to our top ten SCS customergsepting all of the industry groups we servicepanted
for 61% of our SCS total revenue and 60% of our 88&ating revenue (revenue less subcontractesiaiation)
with GM accounting for 13% and 14% of our SCS tatadl operating revenue, respectively. The lossipfod these
customers or a significant reduction in the sewigmvided to any of these customers, particul@iy, could
impact our domestic and international operatiorssaaversely affect our SCS financial results. Whitecontinue
to focus our efforts on diversifying our customase we may not be successful in doing so in the-sn.

In addition, our largest SCS customers can exevhei@rd pricing pressure and often require modificet to
our standard commercial terms. While we believeamgoing cost reduction initiatives have helpedgaie the
effect of price reduction pressures from our SC8amers, there is no assurance that we will betalbieaintain or
improve profitability in those accounts.

13
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Our profitability could be negatively impacted if the key assumptions and pricing structure of our SC:!
contracts prove to be invalid.

Substantially all of our SCS services are provideder contractual arrangements with our custoniarder
most of these contracts, all or a portion of oucipg is based on certain assumptions regardingtbpe of service
production volumes, operational efficiencies, thg of fixed versus variable costs, productivity astier factors. I
as a result of subsequent changes in our custoimessiess needs or operations or market forcesathatutside of
our control, these assumptions prove to be inval&could have lower margins than anticipated. éutyh certain
of our contracts provide for renegotiation uponatenal change, there is no assurance that webe/iluccessful in
obtaining the necessary price adjustments.

We operate in a highly competitive industry and ourbusiness may suffer if we are unable to adequately
address potential downward pricing pressures and ber competitive factors.

Numerous competitive factors could impair our &pilo maintain our current profitability. These fais
include the following:

« we compete with many other transportation and tagiservice providers, some of which have greater
capital resources than we ¢

« some of our competitors periodically reduce theicgs to gain business, which may limit our abitiby
maintain or increase price

« because cost of capital is a significant competifactor, any increase in either our debt or equatst of
capital as a result of reductions in our debt gatinstock price volatility could have a signifitampact on
our competitive position; ar

< advances in technology require increased invessrtertemain competitive, and our customers maybaot
willing to accept higher prices to cover the cdsthese investment

We operate in a highly regulated industry, and cost of compliance with, or liability for violation of, existing o1
future regulations could significantly increase ourcosts of doing business.

Our business is subject to regulation by variodefal, state and foreign governmental entitiescipally, the
U.S. Department of Transportation and various statefederal agencies exercise broad powers ovanotor
carrier operations, safety, and the generationdlivaqn storage, treatment and disposal of wastenas. We may
also become subject to new or more restrictivelegiguns imposed by the Department of Transportatioe
Occupational Safety and Health Administration, Brepartment of Homeland Security and U.S. CustomgiGe
the Environmental Protection Agency or other auttesy, relating to the hours of service that ouvels may
provide in any one-time period, homeland secudéybon emissions and reporting and other mattenqpgiance
with these regulations could substantially impabdr and equipment productivity and increase oatscdrecent
changes in and ongoing development of data prila@g may result in increased exposure relatingutodata
security costs in order to comply with new standard

With respect to our international operations, wesrbject to compliance with local laws and reguiat
requirements in foreign jurisdictions, includingéd tax laws, and compliance with the Federal QuirRractices
Act. Adherence to rigorous local laws and regulatequirements may limit our ability to expand irtain
international markets and result in residual lispflor legal claims and tax disputes arising oup@viously
discontinued operations.

New regulations governing exhaust emissions codiebisely impact our business. The Environmental
Protection Agency has issued regulations that requiogressive reductions in exhaust emissions rerain diese
engines from 2007 through 2010. Emissions standalgre reductions in the sulfur content of didgel since
June 2006. Also, the first phase of progressivelpgent emissions standards relating to emissidies-treatment
devices was introduced on newly-manufactured esgamel vehicles utilizing engines built after Jagugr2007.
The second phase, which required an additional-affatment system, became
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effective after January 1, 2010. In addition, eatthese requirements could result in higher prioesehicles,
diesel engines and fuel, which are passed on tousiomers, as well as higher maintenance costsseettainty a
to reliability of the new engines, all of which dduover time, increase our costs and adversescatiur business
and results of operations. The new technology nstyienpact the residual values of these vehiclesndold in the
future.

Volatility in assumptions and asset values relatetb our pension plans may reduce our profitability and
adversely impact current funding levels.

We historically sponsored a number of defined biepé&ins for employees in the U.S., U.K. and offoeeign
locations. In the past few years, we have made dments to defined benefit plans which freeze thiecraent
benefits for non-grandfathered and certain non+ueimployees. Our major defined benefit plans aneéd, with
trust assets invested in a diversified portfolibeTash contributions made to our defined benk&fitpare required
to comply with minimum funding requirements impodsdemployee benefit and tax laws. The projectetebe
obligation and assets of our global defined bemddihs as of December 31, 2009 were $1.60 billiah a
$1.28 million, respectively. The difference betwgden obligations and assets, or the funded stdtti®e plans, is a
significant factor in determining pension expense the ongoing funding requirements of those plans.
Macroeconomic factors, as well as changes in invesst returns and discount rates used to calcuétsipn
expense and related assets and liabilities camlagile and may have an unfavorable impact on ostsand
funding requirements. We also participate in twalv8. multi-employer pension (MEP) plans that pdeviefined
benefits to employees covered by collective baiggiagreements. In the event that we withdraw fpamicipation
in one of these plans, then applicable law coulgiire us to make an additional lump-sum contributmthe plan.
Our withdrawal liability for any MEP plan would depd on the extent of the plan’s funding of vestendiits.
Economic conditions have caused MEP plans to befgigntly underfunded. If the financial conditiofthe MEP
plans were to continue to deteriorate, particigpémployers could be subject to additional assessmalthough
we have actively sought to control increases isdhmsts and funding requirements, there can lassirance that
we will succeed, and continued cost pressure cagldce the profitability of our business and negdyiimpact our
cash flows.

We establish self-insurance reserves based on histal loss development factors, which could lead to
adjustments in the future based on actual developnm experience.

We retain a portion of the accident risk under glghliability and workers’ compensation insurancegrams.
Our self-insurance accruals are based on actuaestimated, undiscounted cost of claims, whichuihes claims
incurred but not reported. While we believe that @stimation processes are well designed, eveipaison proces
is inherently subject to limitations. Fluctuatidnghe frequency or severity of accidents makaefitadilt to precisely
predict the ultimate cost of claims. In recent geaur development has been favorable compareidtarical
selected loss development factors because of iregreafety performance, payment patterns and setftiepattern:
however, there is no assurance we will continuenjoy similar favorable development in the futier a detailed
discussion on our accounting policies and assumgtielating to our self-insurance reserves, pleasghe section
titled “Critical Accounting Estimates — Self-Insun@e Accruals” in Management’s Discussion and Arialg$
Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our properties consist primarily of vehicle mairgeoe and repair facilities, warehouses and ottedreistate
and improvements.
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We maintain 724 FMS properties in the U.S., PuRitim and Canada; we own 454 of these and lease the
remaining 270. Our FMS properties are primarily poised of maintenance facilities generally inclugarepair
shop, rental counter, fuel service island admiatste offices, and used vehicle retail sales center

Additionally, we manage 218 on-site maintenancdéifies, located at customer locations.

We also maintain 123 locations in the U.S. and @ana connection with our domestic SCS and DCC
businesses. Almost all of our SCS locations areddand generally include a warehouse and adnativagroffices.

We maintain 92 international locations (locatiomssade of the U.S. and Canada) for our internationa
businesses. These locations are in the U.K., Luxemgy Germany, Mexico, China and Singapore. Theritgjof
these locations are leased and may be a repair sfaophouse or administrative office.

Additionally, we maintain 10 U.S. locations primanused for Central Support Services. These faedliare
generally administrative offices, of which we owmecand lease the remaining nine.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are involved in various claims, lawsuits and eudlstrative actions arising in the normal cours@of
businesses. Some involve claims for substantialuaitsoof money and (or) claims for punitive damag®hile any
proceeding or litigation has an element of uncetyaimanagement believes that the disposition offi snatters, in
the aggregate, will not have a material impact mnamnsolidated financial condition or liquidity.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

There were no matters submitted to a vote of ocursty holders during the quarter ended Decembe3Q9.

PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELA TED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Ryder Common Stock Prices

Dividends pe
Common
Stock Price Share
High Low Share
2009
First quarter $41.2¢  19.0( 0.2
Second quarter 32.8¢ 23.4i 0.2z
Third quarter 43.1¢  24.0¢ 0.2t
Fourth quarter 46.5¢ 35.9] 0.2t
2008
First quartel $65.25  40.3] 0.2
Second quarte 76.6¢ 60.2¢ 0.2:
Third quartel 75.0¢ 58.0Z 0.2:
Fourth quarte 62.1¢ 27.71 0.2:

Our common shares are listed on the New York SEbakhange under the trading symbol “R.” At Janua@y 2
2010, there were 9,482 common stockholders of deand our stock price on the New York Stock Excleanwgs
$36.40.
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Performance Graph

The following graph compares the performance ofammmon stock with the performance of the Standard
Poor’s 500 Composite Stock Index and the Dow Jdmassportation 20 Index for a five year period bgasuring
the changes in common stock prices from Decembe2@M to December 31, 2009.
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50 — —
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—#— Ryder Sysiem, Inc, 100,00 ®7.20 110.24 103.20 Bi.54 G4 81
—— 5407 500 Index S100L00 10491 121 46 128.13 80,73 102,10
—d— Dow Jones Index S100,00 111.64 12259 124.35 47,73 115.91

The stock performance graph assumes for compattistithe value of the Company’s Common Stock and of
each index was $100 on December 31, 2004 and ltlthtvidends were reinvested. Past performanceis n

necessarily an indicator of future results.
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Purchases of Equity Securitie:

The following table provides information with regpéo purchases we made of our common stock dahieg

three months ended December 31, 2009:

Approximate Dollar

Total Number of Maximum Number Value That May
Shares Purchased ¢ of Shares That May Yet Be Purchasec
Total Number  Average Price Part of Publicly Yet Be Purchasec Under the
of Shares Paid per Announced Under the Anti-Dilutive Discretionary
Purchased® Share Program Program @. (4 Program ®)

October 1 through
October 31, 2009 264,290 $  43.6¢ 250,00( 386,56: $ 130,400,43
November 1 through

November 30, 2009 2,461,40: 42.5( 2,459,72! 275,74¢ 30,472,33
December 1 through

December 31, 2009 18,73¢ 40.61 16,55¢ 2,000,001 —
Total 2,744,43" $  42.6C 2,726,28.

@

@)

©)

4)

During the three months ended December 31, 200punehased an aggregate of 18,154 shares of ounvamstock in employ-related
transactions. Employee-related transactions majuihe: (i) shares of common stock delivered as payifoe the exercise price of options
exercised or to satisfy the option holders’ taxtwilding liability associated with our share-bassgmpensation programs and (ii) open-
market purchases by the trustee of Ryder’s defesoatpensation plan relating to investments by eygae in our common stock, one of the
investment options available under the pl

In December 2007, our Board of Directors authorizetivc-year anti-dilutive repurchase program. Under th&iadilutive program,
management is authorized to repurchase sharesrofraan stock in an amount not to exceed the lessheafumber of shares issued to
employees upon the exercise of stock options ougir the employee stock purchase plan for the gdraom September 1, 2007 to
December 12, 2009, or 2 million shares. Share repases of common stock may be made periodicatiper-market transactions and are
subject to market conditions, legal requirements ather factors. Management may establish a presgeal written plan for the Company
under Rule 10b5-1 of the Securities Exchange At984 as part of the anti-dilutive repurchase prar;, which would allow for share
repurchases during Ryder’s quarterly blackout pds@s set forth in the trading plan. During theg@imonths ended December 31, 2009,
we repurchased 377,372 shares under this prog

In December 2007, our Board of Directors also auihed a $300 million share repurchase program cagreriod not to exceed two yea
Share repurchases of common stock may be madeljpatdiy in open-market transactions and are subjeainarket conditions, legal
requirements and other factors. Management mayb#skaa prearranged written plan for the CompanylenRule 10b5-1 of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 as part of the $300 millioarstrepurchase program, which would allow for sheepurchases during Ryc's
quarterly blackout periods as set forth in the iragiplan. During the three months ended Decembeg8@9, we repurchased

2,348,909 shares under this progre

In December 2009, our Board of Directors authorizeshare repurchase program intended to mitigageditutive impact of shares issu
under our various employee stock, stock optionemgloyee stock purchase plans. Under the Decentl$& grogram, management is
authorized to repurchase shares of common stoek iamount not to exceed the number of shares igsustployees under the Company’s
various employee stock, stock option and emplaype& purchase plans from December 1, 2009 througbeinber 15, 2011. The December
2009 program limits aggregate share repurchasesatanore than 2 million shares of Ryder common stBhlare repurchases of common
stock are made periodically in open-market trangaxt and are subject to market conditions, legaluieements and other factors.
Management may establish prearranged written pfanshe Company under Rule 10b5-1 of the Securii@hange Act of 1934 as part of
the December 2009 program, which allow for shaggurehases during Ryder’s quarterly blackout periadsset forth in the trading plan.
We did not repurchase any shares under this prograg009.
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Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Corpensation Plans

The following table includes information as of Dedeer 31, 2009 about certain plans which provideter
issuance of common stock in connection with the@se of stock options and other share-based awards

Number of
Securities
Remaining
Available for
Number of Future Issuance
Securities to be Under Equity
Issued upon Weighted-Average Compensation
Exercise of Exercise Price of Plans Excluding
Outstanding Outstanding Securities
Options, Warrants Options, Warrants Reflected in
Plans and Rights and Rights Column (a)
@) (b) (©
Equity compensation plans approved by security holers:
Broad based employee stock plar 3,505,771 % 43.850) 4,130,90:
Employee stock purchase plai — — 319,07
Non-employee directors’ stock plans 145,522 32.510) 41,47]
Equity compensation plans not approved by securityolders — — —
Total 3,651,29! $ 43.700) 4,491,441

(1) Includes 516,461 tin-vested and performan-based restricted stock awarc
(2) Includes 105,522 restricted stock un

(3) Weighteraverage exercise price of outstanding options; ke restricted stock awards and restricted stogisL
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected consolidated financial imf@tion should be read in conjunction with Itemsd &8 of
this report.

Years ended December
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
(Dollars and shares in thousands, except per stmaceints;

Operating Data:

Revenue $4,887,25. 5,999,04. 6,363,131 6,136,41i 5,598,64.
Earnings from continuing operatio() $ 90,117 257,57 251,77 246,69: 228,76¢
Net earning1).(2) $ 61,94¢ 199,88: 253,86 248,95¢ 226,92¢

Per Share Data:

Earnings from continuing operatio— Diluted () $ 1.62 4,51 4.1¢ 3.9¢ 3.5:
Net earning— Diluted W:(2) $ 1.11 3.5C 4.2z 4.0z 3.5C
Cash dividend $ 0.9¢ 0.92 0.84 0.7z 0.64
Book value® $ 26.71 2417 32.52 28.3¢ 24.6¢
Financial Data:

Total asset $6,259,831 6,689,50! 6,854,64! 6,828,992 6,033,26
Average assei® $6,507,43. 6,924,34. 6,914,06/ 6,426,541 5,922,75!
Return on average assets(4) 1.C 2.¢ 3.7 3.¢ 3.8
Long-term debt $2,265,07. 2,478,53 2,553,43. 2,484,191 1,915,92
Total debi $2,497,69. 2,862,79' 2,776,12' 2,816,94. 2,185,36!
Shareholder equity®) $1,426,99' 1,345,16. 1,887,58' 1,720,77° 1,527,45!
Debt to equity(%®) 17t 212 147 164 14z
Average shareholde' equity 3).(4) $1,395,62' 1,778,48° 1,790,81- 1,610,321 1,554,71
Return on average shareholc equity(%)®).(4) 4.4 11.2 14.2 15.5 14.€
Adjusted return on average capital(® 4.1 7.3 7.4 7.¢ 7.8
Net cash provided by operating activities of couitigy

operations $ 984,95t 1,248,16' 1,096,55' 852,46t 776,38¢
Free cash flov® $ 614,09 340,66! 380,26¢ (438,61) (207,96()
Capital expenditures pa $ 651,95! 1,230,40. 1,304,03. 1,692,71' 1,387,51:

Other Data:

Average common shar— Diluted 55,09 56,53¢ 59,72¢ 61,47¢ 64,46"
Number of vehicle— Owned and lease 152,40(  163,40( 160,70( 167,20( 163,60(
Average number of vehicl— Owned and lease 159,50( 161,50( 165,40( 164,40( 166,70(
Number of employee 22,90( 28,00( 28,80( 28,60( 27,80(

@

@

®

@
®)

(6)

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

Comparable earnings from continuing operatic $94,630 267,144 248,227 243,618 221,141
Comparable earnings per diluted common share frontinuing operation: $ 1.70 4.68 4.13 3.94 3.41

Refer to the section title‘Overview” and “Non-GAAP Financial Measures” in Ite 7 of this report for a reconciliation of compatatearnings to net
earnings.

Net earnings in 2009, 2008, 2007, 2006 and 200kided (losses) earnings from discontinued operatiof$(28) million, or $(0.5:
per diluted common share, $(58) million, or $(1.9&) diluted common share, $2 million, or $0.03 giduted common shar

$2 million, or $0.04 per diluted common share a@dbillion, or $0.01 per diluted common share pexstively. Net earnings in
2005 also included the cumulative effect of a cleangaccounting principle for costs associated wfité future removal of
underground storage tanks resulting in an &tax charge of $2 million, or $0.04 per diluted coomshare

Shareholders’ equity at December 31, 2009, 2008720006 and 2005 reflected after-tax equity chargie$412 million,
$480 million, $148 million, $201 million and $221llfon, respectively, related to our pension andspetirement plans

Amounts were computed using époint average based on quarterly informatis

Our adjusted return on capital (ROC) representsrite of return generated by the capital deployedur business. We use ROC
an internal measure of how effectively we use #pétal invested (borrowed or owned) in our operasoRefer to the section titled
“Non-GAAP Financial Measures” in Item 7 of this reg for a reconciliation of return on average shhodders’ equity to adjusted
return on average capita

Refer to the section title‘Financial Resources and Liquidity” in Item 7 ofighreport for a reconciliation of net cash provided
operating activities to free cash flo
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following Management’s Discussion and Analydi§inancial Condition and Results of Operations
(MD&A) should be read in conjunction with our cotidated financial statements and related notesatoed in
Item 8 of this report on Form 10-K. The followingDM.A describes the principal factors affecting résudf
operations, financial resources, liquidity, contuat cash obligations, and critical accountingreates.

OVERVIEW

Ryder System, Inc. (Ryder) is a global leaderamsportation and supply chain management solutious.
business is divided into three business segmetiishvoperate in highly competitive markets. Ourtoogers select
us based on numerous factors including servicdtguptice, technology, and service offerings. Asadternative to
using our services, customers may choose to prdkigke services for themselves, or may chooset&rnogimilar
or alternative services from other third-party versd Our$ customer base includes enterprises apgiata variety
of industries including automotive, electronicgnsportation, grocery, lumber and wood products feervice, and
home furnishing.

The Fleet Management Solutions (FM8)siness segment is our largest segment providihgdrvice leasing,
contract maintenance, contract-related maintenaammecommercial rental of trucks, tractors anddraito
customers principally in the U.S., Canada and th€ BMS revenue and assets in 2009 were $3.2®biind
$5.76 billion, respectively, representing 67% of consolidated revenue and 92% of consolidatedssse

The Supply Chain Solutions (SCl8)siness segment provides comprehensive supplg cbasulting including
distribution and transportation services throughdotth America and Asia. SCS revenue in 2009 wag4bhillion,
representing 23% of our consolidated revenue.

The Dedicated Contract Carriage (DCChusiness segment provides vehicles and driveraragfa dedicated
transportation solution in the U.S. DCC revenu2009 was $471 million, representing 10% of our otidated
revenue.

In 2009, we managed through the impacts of a pgedreconomic recession and the cyclical impacts in
commercial rental, used vehicle sales, and SCSraiiee volumes and concentrated on cost improvemetdns.
In the second half of 2009, we successfully impletae our plan to disengage SCS operations in Sautrica ant
Europe. Throughout 2009, we experienced signifizalime declines across all business segmentgirestiom
the weak overall economic environment and protdhfiteight recession. However, our free cash flow Bauidity
position remained strong.

Total revenue was $4.89 billion, down 19% from $6bilion in 2008. Operating revenue (total reveless
fuel and subcontracted transportation) was $4.06min 2009, down 11%. Operating revenue declipadharily
due to lower commercial rental revenue and red&e8 automotive industry volumes. To a lesser extgrrating
revenue was also impacted by lower SCS and DCQpaasgdthroughs, unfavorable foreign currency movementk
lower FMS contractual revenues partially offsetlyy benefit of acquisitions.

Earnings from continuing operations decreased @rfi#lion in 2009 from $258 million in 2008 and eargs
from continuing operations per diluted common sllereased to $1.62 from $4.51 in 2008. Earnirys fr
continuing operations included certain items wendbconsider indicative of our ongoing operationd have been
excluded from our comparable earnings measurefdilosving discussion provides
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS — (Co ntinued)

a summary of the 2009 and 2008 special items wdmiehdiscussed in more detail throughout our MD&A arithin
the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements:

Continuing Operation
Earnings Befor Diluted Earning
Income Taxe! Earnings per Share
(Dollars in thousand:
except per share amoun

2009
Earnings / EPS from Continuing Operati $ 143,76¢ $ 90,117 $ 1.62
« Restructuring and other charg 6,40¢ 4,17¢ 0.0¢

» Benefit associated with the reversal of resefeesincertain tax
positions due to the expiration of statutes off&tion in various

jurisdictions — (2,239 (0.09

» Benefit from a tax law change in Ontario, Can — (4,100 (0.07)

« Charges related to impairment of international (1) 6,67¢ 6,67¢ 0.12

Comparable earnings from continuing operati $ 156,85 $94.63( $ 1.7C
2008

Earnings / EPS from Continuing Operatic $ 409,28{ $257,57¢ $ 4.51

» Restructuring and other charg 21,48( 17,49: 0.31

* Benefit associated with the reversal of resefeesincertain tax
positions due to the expiration of statutes off&tion in various

jurisdictions — (7,937 (0.19

« Benefit from a tax law change primarily in Massasxdits — (1,619 (0.0%)

» Charges related to impairment of international (1) 1,615 1,615 0.0z
Comparable earnings from continuing operati $ 432,38! $267,14: $ 4.6¢

(1) Refer to Note 2¢“ Other ltems Impacting Comparabili” in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme

Excluding the special items listed above, comparabinings from continuing operations were down &%
$95 million in 2009. Comparable earnings per ddutemmon share from continuing operations were dé4éb to
$1.70 in 2009. Results reflect significantly lovearnings in FMS, driven by the current economigvdlown and
freight recession, which resulted in a declinelobgl commercial rental and full service lease @enance and
lower used vehicle sales results. Results in 208@\also impacted by higher pension expense. Egnvere
favorably impacted by cost reduction initiatives;luding workforce reductions implemented in e2009.

Free cash flow was up 80% to $614 million in 2008is increase reflects lower capital expenditur@sially
offset by lower earnings and higher pension coatiiims. With our strong cash flows, we repurchaséatal of
2.7 million shares of common stock in 2009 for $idilion and made voluntary pension contributiofs o
approximately $100 million. We also increased aqumial dividend by 9% to $1.00 per share of commooks

Capital expenditures decreased 52% to $611 milid2009. The decrease in capital expendituresatsfle
reduced full service lease vehicles spending dlevier new and replacement sales in the currerit@mwent, and
planned minimal spending on transactional commkreigal vehicles. Our debt balances decreasedt®3%
$2.50 billion at December 31, 2009 due to thea#tion of free cash flow to repay debt. Our del#daity ratio als:
decreased to 175% from 213% in 2008. Our totabaltibns (including off-balance sheet debt) to gqratio also
decreased to 183% from 225% in 2008.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS — (Co ntinued)

2010 Outlook

In 2010, we plan to manage through the cumulatiyasicts of a prolonged recession on full servicedewhile
driving benefits from actions taken in 2009 as vaslinew initiatives. Earnings per share growthxeeted from
improved commercial rental performance, produgtiinitiatives, better used vehicle sales operatistrenger SCS
results, lower annual pension expense and the iben@009 stock repurchases. These items aregligirtiffset by
significantly reduced full service lease resultg hegative impact of vehicle residual value charagel some
currently intended compensation restoration.

Total revenue for the full-year 2010 is forecasb&$4.90 billion, which is flat compared with 20@perating
revenue for the full-year 2010 is forecast to be@% to $4.00 billion compared with 2009. In FMS8re
contractual leasing and maintenance revenue iscéaghéo decline 4%, or down 5% excluding foreignreange,
reflecting the cumulative effect of customer fldetvnsizing. Commercial rental revenue is foreaasgfrow by 9%,
driven by moderately higher demand, somewhat highieing and improved utilization. Total SCS reverisi
forecast to decrease by 2%. SCS operating reveraricipated to decrease by 3%, or 6% excludiagrtipacts of
foreign exchange and fuel, reflecting the impaatarfi-renewed contracts. Total DCC revenue is erpeitt be
unchanged. DCC operating revenue is expected tease by 1%, or 2% excluding the impact of fuel dulewer
freight volumes.

ITEMS AFFECTING COMPARABILITY BETWEEN PERIODS
Revenue Reporting

In transportation management arrangements whegctheas principal, revenue is reported on a grosts tiar
subcontracted transportation services billed tocostomers. We realize minimal changes in profiitgtas a result
of fluctuations in subcontracted transportationtedbmining whether revenue should be reported assgwithin
total revenue) or net (deducted from total reveisibased on an assessment of whether we are astithg
principal or the agent in the transaction and imgsljudgment based on the terms and conditiortsecditrangemer
Effective January 1, 2008, our contractual relegiop with a significant customer for certain tramigation
management services changed, and we determinedadfirmal review of the terms and conditionshaf $ervices,
that we were acting as an agent based on the detasms of the arrangement. This contract modificatequired a
change in revenue recognition from a gross basaset basis for subcontracted transportation Inéggnon
January 1, 2008. This contract represented $64mdf total revenue for the year ended Decemlie2807.

Accounting Changes

See Note 2, “Accounting Changes,” for a discussibiine impact of changes in accounting standards.

ACQUISITIONS

We completed five FMS acquisitions in the pastehyears, under which we acquired a company'’s #rdt
contractual customers. The FMS acquisitions openatier Ryder's name and complemented our existiadet
coverage and service network. The results of thegaisitions have been included in our consolidagedlts since
the dates of acquisition.

Business Contractual
Company Acquired Segment Date Vehicles Customers Market
Edart Leasing LLC FMS February 2, 20C 1,60(C 34C Northeast U.¢
Gordon Truck Leasin FMS August 29, 200 50C 13C Pennsylvanic
Gator Leasing, Inc FMS May 12, 200¢ 2,30( 30C Florida
Lily Transportation Corp. FMS January 11, 20( 1,60( 20C  Northeast U.¢
Pollock NationalLeas FMS/SCS October 5, 200 2,00( 20C Canade

23




Table of Contents

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS — (Co ntinued)

On December 19, 2008, we acquired substantiallgfalie assets of Transpacific Container Termindl bnd
CRSA Logistics Ltd. (CRSA) in Canada, as well asS@Roperations in Hong Kong and Shanghai, Chinas Thi
strategic acquisition added complementary solutiormur SCS capabilities including consolidatiorvaes in key
Asian hubs, as well as deconsolidation operatipngincouver, Toronto and Montreal.

FULL YEAR CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

Change
Years ended December 2009/ 2008/
2009 2008 2007 2008 2007
(Dollars in thousands
Earnings from continuing operations before
income taxe: $143,76¢ 409,28¢( 402,20: (65% 2%
Provision for income taxe 53,65: 151,70¢ 150,42! (65) 1
Earnings from continuing operatio 90,117 257,57¢ 251,77¢ (65) 2
Loss from discontinued operations, net of (28,177 (57,699 2,08. NM NM
Net earning: $ 61,94 199,88. 253,86. (69% (21)%
Earnings (loss) per common sh— Diluted
Continuing operation $ 1.62 4.51 4.1¢ (6% &%
Discontinued operatior (0.51) (1.01) 0.0 NM NM
Net earning: $ 1.1 3.5C 4.2 (6% (17%
Weightec-average shares outstand— Diluted 55,09« 56,53¢ 59,72¢ (% (O)%

Earnings from continuing operations before incomes$ (NBT) decreased 65% in 2009 to $144 million.
Excluding restructuring and other items, compar&#d declined 64% in 2009 to $157 million, and cargble
earnings from continuing operations declined 65%36 million. The decrease in comparable NBT andiegs
from continuing operations reflects significanthler earnings in our FMS business segment becdusdexline ir
commercial rental, full service lease and usedalelsiales as well as higher pension expense. NBTalsa
negatively impacted by lower global automotive istiiy volumes. Net earnings decreased 69% in 2009 to
$62 million or $1.11 per diluted common share. daings in 2009 included losses from discontimygetations
for SCS South America and Europe of $28 million.

NBT increased 2% in 2008 to $409 million. Excludiegtructuring and other items, comparable NBTdasel
8% in 2008 to $432 million, and comparable earniings continuing operations increased 8% to $26Hani The
improvement in comparable NBT was driven by betgarating performance in our FMS contractual bissine
partially offset by a decline in commercial rentegults and reduced profitability in our SCS businsegment. Net
earnings decreased 21% in 2008 to $200 million306Cper diluted common share. Net earnings in 20€18ded
losses from discontinued operations for SCS Soutlerca and Europe of $58 million.

See subsequent discussion within “Full Year Codstdéid Results” and “Full Year Operating Results by
Business Segment” and refer to our Notes to Cottesteld Financial Statements for other items impgctin
comparability related to discontinued operatiorstnucturing and other charges and income taxes.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS — (Co ntinued)

Years ended December Change
2009/ 2008/
2009 2008 2007 2008 2007
(Dollars in thousands
Revenue

Fleet Management Solutiol $3,567,83 4,454,25. 4,167,30. (20)% 7%

Supply Chain Solution 1,139,91.  1,429,63. 2,038,18 (20) (30

Dedicated Contract Carriay 470,95t 547,75. 567,64( (14) (4)

Eliminations (291,449  (432,59) (409,99) 33 (6
Total $4,887,25. 5,999,04. 6,363,13 19% (6%
Operating revenu(® $4,062,51. 4,590,081 4,515,080 (11)% 2%

(1) We use operating revenue, a nGAAP financial measure, to evaluate the operatiaggrmance of our businesses and as a measurdex
activity. FMS fuel services revenue net of relateersegment billings, which is directly impactedfluctuations in market fuel prices, is
excluded from the operating revenue computatiofuakis largely a pass-through to our customersviiich we realize minimal changes in
profitability during periods of steady market fyelces. However, profitability may be positivelyraggatively impacted by increases
decreases in market fuel prices during a shortquof time as customer pricing for fuel servicesstablished based on market fuel costs.
Subcontracted transportation revenue in our SCSREE business segments is excluded from the opgregvenue computation as
subcontracted transportation is largely a pass-tigh to our customers and we realize minimal chamggsofitability as a result of
fluctuations in subcontracted transportation. Refethe section title“Non-GAAP Financial Measures” for a reconciliatioof total revenue
to operating revenu

Total revenue decreased 19% to $4.89 billion ind2@dlecting lower fuel services and operating rewe
Operating revenue decreased 11% to $4.06 billic@dD9 primarily due to lower commercial rental newe and
SCS automotive production volumes. To a lesseméxtperating revenue was also negatively impalsyeldwer
SCS and DCC fuel pass-throughs, unfavorable foreigrency movements and lower FMS contractual regsn
partially offset by the benefit of acquisitions.t@lorevenue in 2009 included an unfavorable foregigchange impa
of 1.4% due primarily to the weakening of the Biitpound and Mexican peso.

Total revenue decreased 6% to $6.00 billion in 2888 was impacted by a change, effective Janué29d8,
in our contractual relationship with a significamitstomer that required a change in revenue redogriiom a gross
basis to a net basis for subcontracted transpamtafinis change did not impact operating revenugaonings.
During 2007, total revenue from this contractugtienship was $640 million. Excluding this iterotdl revenue
increased 5% during 2008 primarily as a resultighiér fuel services revenue. Operating revenuesaszd 2% to
$4.59 billion in 2008 primarily due to FMS contraat revenue growth, including acquisitions, whicbrethan
offset a decline in commercial rental revenue. Maaenue in 2008 included an unfavorable foreigchange
impact of 0.3% due primarily to the weakening af British pound.

Our FMS segment leases revenue earning equipmdrgraxides fuel, maintenance and other ancillaryises
to our SCS and DCC segments. Eliminations relaietés-segment sales that are accounted for a satailar to
those executed with third parties. The decreasdinmnations in 2009 reflects primarily the passstigh of lower
average fuel costs. The increase in eliminatior008 reflects primarily the pass-through of higaeerage fuel

costs.
Years ended December Change
2009/ 2008
2009 2008 2007 2008 2007

(Dollars in thousands

Operating expense (exclusive of items shown seggji $2,229,53 2,959,511 2,739,95. (25)% 8%
Percentage of reveni 46% 49% 43%
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS — (Co ntinued)

Operating expense and operating expense as a tageesf revenue decreased in 2009 primarily asultref
lower fuel costs. The reduction in fuel costs wasgeh by a decline in average U.S. fuel prices aB as lower fuel
volumes. Fuel costs are largely a pass-throughigtomers for which we realize minimal changes ofifability
during periods of steady market fuel prices.

The decrease in operating expense as a percerftegpenue in 2009 was partially offset by higherimtenanc
costs and safety and insurance costs. The growttaintenance costs reflects the impact of an agjioigal fleet.
The growth in safety and insurance costs refless favorable development in self-insured losgveseln recent
years, our development has been favorable compédtkdistorical selected loss development fact@sanse o
improved safety performance, payment patterns atitésent patterns. During 2009, 2008 and 2007rewerded a
benefit of $1 million, $23 million, and $24 millignespectively, to reduce estimated prior year$-issured loss
reserves for the reasons noted above.

Operating expense increased 8% to $2.96 billic0i®8 as a result of higher fuel costs. The incraaseel
costs was due to higher average market prices.

Years ended December Change
2009/ 2008/
2009 2008 2007 2008 2007
(Dollars in thousands
Salaries and employ-related cost $1,233,24 1,345,211 1,348,21. (8)% —%
Percentage of reveni 25% 22% 21%
Percentage of operating rever 30% 29% 30%

Salaries and employee-related costs decreased 8%28 billion in 2009 primarily due to lower headat,
favorable foreign exchange rate changes and laveentive-based compensation and commissions pacifdet
by higher pension expense and the impact of adoprisi Average headcount, excluding discontinuegtaipons,
decreased 9% in 2009. The number of employeesarblger 31, 2009 decreased to approximately 22,900
compared to 25,500 (excluding those from discortihoperations) at December 31, 2008. The lowerdoead wa:
driven by reduced volumes in our SCS and DCC bssisegments and workforce reductions made asfpart o
restructuring initiatives announced in the fourttager of 2008.

Pension expense totaled $66 million in 2009 conp&res2 million in 2008. Increased pension expemnas
primarily a result of significant negative pensasset returns in 2008. Our Board of Directors Ippsaved
amendments to freeze U.K. and Canadian pensios pffective in 2010. The Canadian pension planfweeen for
current participants who did not meet certain gfatiering criteria. As a result, these employedkogase accruin
further benefits after the freeze and begin pardittng in defined contribution plans. See Note“Ednployee
Benefit Plans,” in the Notes to Consolidated FinanStatements, for additional information regagdthese items.
We expect 2010 pension expense to decrease aptekn$23 million primarily because of higher thexpected
return on assets in 2009, the favorable impact frolantary pension contributions made in the foutfarter of
2009, and the freeze of the U.K. and Canadian pangans. However, we expect this pension decrease
partially offset by increased defined contributfdan expense. Our 2010 pension expense estima&easibject to
change based upon the completion of the actuar&ysis for all pension plans. See the sectioaditCritical
Accounting Estimates — Pension Plans” for furthecdssion on pension accounting estimates.

Salaries and employee-related costs decreased\sligi$1.35 billion in 2008 primarily due to lower
headcount, including cost savings initiatives frd@@07. Average headcount decreased 3% in 2008 cechpath
2007. Pension expense decreased by $25 millidmeault of a freeze of our U.S. and Canadianipensans;
however, this benefit was patrtially offset by aorease of $20 million in defined contribution pkxpense.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS — (Co ntinued)

Years ended December Change
2009/ 2008/
2009 2008 2007 2008 2007
(Dollars in thousands
Subcontracted transportati $198,861 233,10t 868,43 (15)% (73)%
Percentage of reveni 4% 4% 14%

Subcontracted transportation expense represeigbtfraanagement costs on logistics contracts fachvive
purchase transportation from third parties. Subreatéd transportation expense is directly impabtedhether we
are acting as an agent or principal in our trarnsgion management contracts. To the extent thareecting as a
principal, revenue is reported on a gross basiscanihge costs to third parties are recorded lasmuracted
transportation expense. Subcontracted transpartatipense decreased 15% to $199 million in 20@9rasult of
decreased freight volumes in the current economirenment.

Subcontracted transportation expense decreasedd’$283 million in 2008 as a result of net repaytirom a
contract change. Effective January 1, 2008, outraotual relationship with a significant custombanged, and we
determined, after a formal review of the terms emidditions of the services, we were acting as amilgased on tl
revised terms of the arrangement. As a resultatheunt of total revenue and subcontracted trarsfiamtexpense
decreased by $640 million in 2008 due to the répgf revenue net of subcontracted transportatiqense for
this particular customer contract.

Years ended December Change
2009/ 2008/
2009 2008 2007 2008 2007
(Dollars in thousands
Depreciation expens $881,21( 836,14¢ 810,54+ 5% 3%
Gains on vehicle sales, r (12,292) (39,020 (44,090 (68) (11)
Equipment rente 65,828 78,292 86,415 (16) 9

Depreciation expense relates primarily to FMS rexeegarning equipment. Depreciation expense inctea¥#e
to $881 million in 2009 because of increased wdibesns in the carrying value of vehicles held fdesz
$24 million, accelerated depreciation of $10 millien certain classes of vehicles expected to lkteadugh 2010,
the impact of recent acquisitions, higher averagfgcle investments and impairment charges on aaporg facility
partially offset by the impact of foreign exchamgées and a lower number of owned vehicles. Degtieci expense
increased 3% to $836 million in 2008 reflecting impact of recent acquisitions and increased ceg@nding.
These increases were partially offset by lowerevdbwns in the carrying value of vehicles helddale of
$13 million.

We periodically review and adjust residual valuesgrves for guaranteed lease termination valugsiseful
lives of revenue earning equipment based on cuanethiexpected operating trends and projected adddizalues.
See the section titled “Critical Accounting Estiemt— Depreciation and Residual Value Guaranteedufther
discussion. While we believe that the carrying ealand estimated sales proceeds for revenue eamimgment ai
appropriate, there can be no assurance that detisioin economic conditions or adverse changexpectations
of future sales proceeds will not occur, resulimgpwer gains or losses on sales. In 2009, basezlorent and
expected market conditions, we accelerated depi@tian certain classes of vehicles expected teolk through
2010. The impact of this change increased depreoialy $10 million in 2009. At the end of 2009, 30&nd 2007,
we completed our annual depreciation review ofrésédual values and useful lives of our revenueiegr
equipment. Our annual review is established wittng-term view considering historical market pratenges,
current and expected future market price trendseeted life of vehicles and extent of alternatiges: Based on the
results of the 2008 and 2007 review, the adjustritedepreciation was not significant for 2009 af0&,
respectively. Based on the results of our 2009yaiglwe adjusted the residual values of certainsgs of our
revenue earning equipment effective
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January 1, 2010. The residual value changes willedese pre-tax earnings for 2010 by approximatgdyrsillion
compared with 2009.

Gains on vehicle sales, net decreased 68% to $lidmmn 2009 due to lower average pricing on véscsold.
Gains on vehicle sales, net decreased 11% to $86min 2008 due to a 32% decline in the numbevaetiicles sol
partially offset by improved gains per unit sold.

Equipment rental consists primarily of rent expefosd=-MS revenue earning equipment under leasestasu
lessee. Equipment rental decreased 16% to $6@®miti 2009 and decreased 9% to $78 million in 208&use of
a reduction in the average number of vehicles tb&een third parties.

Years ended December Change
2009/ 2008/
2009 2008 2007 2008 2007
(Dollars in thousands
Interest expens $144,34; 152,44¢ 155,97( (5)% (2)%
Effective interest rat 5.4% 5.3% 5.5%

Interest expense decreased 5% to $144 million @®2@cause of lower average debt balances partiffitigt
by a higher effective interest rate. Interest espettecreased 2% to $152 million in 2008 becausmnedr average
cost of debt principally from lower commercial paperrowing rates. A hypothetical 10 basis poirdrde in short-
term market interest rates would change annuatgxearnings by $0.6 million.

Years ended December

2009 2008 2007
(In thousands
Miscellaneous (income) expense, $(3,657) 2,56¢ (15,309

Miscellaneous (income) expense, net consists @stment (income) losses on securities held to éemthin
benefit plans, interest income, (gains) losses feafas of property, foreign currency transactiair(g) losses, and
non-operating items. Miscellaneous (income) expemseimproved $6 million in 2009 due to better ker
performance of our investment securities partiaffget by lower foreign currency transaction gam2009.

Miscellaneous expense (income), net decreased $ll@nmn 2008 primarily due to a $10 million gaon sale
of property recognized in the prior year. See Nagtg“Other Items Impacting Comparability,” in thefés to
Consolidated Financial Statements for additionfrimation on the property sale. Miscellaneous egpen 2008
was also negatively impacted by $6 million dueh® decline in market performance of our investnsectrities an
was partially offset by foreign currency transaetgains compared to losses in 2007.

Years ended December

2009 2008 2007
(In thousands
Restructuring and other charges, $6,40¢ 21,48( 10,79

See Note 5, “Restructuring and Other Charges fiénNotes to Consolidated Financial Statementsufithér
discussion around the charges related to thesanacti

Years ended December Change
2009/ 2008
2009 2008 2007 2008 2007
(Dollars in thousands
Provision for income taxe $53,65. 151,70¢ 150,42! (65)% 1%
Effective tax rate from continuing operatic 37.3%  37.1% 37.4%
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The 2009 effective income tax rate benefited fraraoted tax law changes in Ontario, Canada, thedal®
settlement of a foreign tax audit and reversakserves for uncertain tax positions for which tta¢use of limitation
in various jurisdictions had expired. In the aggiteg these items reduced the effective rate by &bpte-tax
earnings. The current year tax rate benefits wartgtly offset by the impact of non-deductible erges on lower
pre-tax earnings from continuing operations. The&eéffective income tax rate benefited from enatdedaw
changes in Massachusetts and the reversal of essBwuncertain tax positions for which the s&iftlimitation in
various jurisdictions had expired which, in the eggte, totaled 3.3% of ptax earnings. The benefits in 2008 w
partially offset by the adverse impact of non-deihle restructuring and other charges. The 200&ctiffe income
tax rate included a net tax benefit of $5 millidmd@s of pre-tax earnings) from the reduction ofediefd income
taxes as a result of enacted changes in tax lawarious jurisdictions.

Years ended December

2009 2008 2007
(In thousands
(Loss) earnings from discontinued operations, hédo $(28,177) (57,69¢) 2,08

Pre-tax (loss) earnings from discontinued operatiar2009, 2008 and 2007 included operating (Igssesme
of $(11) million, $(12) million and $6 million, reectively. During 2009, 2008 and 2007, we also firexl
$17 million, $47 million, and $2 million, respeatly, of pre-tax restructuring and other charges(grily exit-
related) related to discontinued operations. Sele Mp“Discontinued Operations,” in the Notes tcn€alidated
Financial Statements for further discussion.
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FULL YEAR OPERATING RESULTS BY BUSINESS SEGMENT

Change
Years ended December 2009/ 2008,
2009 2008 2007 2008 2007
(Dollars in thousands
Revenue
Fleet Management Solutiol $3,567,831 4,454,25. 4,167,30. (20% 7%
Supply Chain Solution 1,139,91 1,429,63. 2,038,18¢ (200 (30)
Dedicated Contract Carriay 470,95¢ 547,75. 567,64( (14) 4)
Eliminations (291,449 (432,59) (409,99) 33 (6)
Total $4,887,25. 5,999,04 6,363,131 (19% (6)%
Operating Revenut
Fleet Management Solutiol $2,817,73. 3,038,92. 2,983,39 M% 2%
Supply Chain Solution 955,40¢ 1,207,52. 1,184,491 (21) 2
Dedicated Contract Carria 456,59¢ 536,75¢ 552,89. (15 (©)]
Eliminations (167,229 (193,12() (205,70 13 6
Total $4,062,51; 4,590,081 4,515,080 (11)% 2%
NBT:
Fleet Management Solutiol $ 140,40( 395,90¢ 370,50¢ (65% 7%
Supply Chain Solution 35,70( 56,95 60,22¢ (37) (5)
Dedicated Contract Carria 37,64 49,62¢ 47,40¢ (29 5
Eliminations (21,059 (31,809 (31,24 34 2
192,68! 470,68° 446,89. (59) 5
Unallocated Central Support Servic (35,839 (38,307 (44,009 6 13
Restructuring and other charges, net and
other items(®) (13,087 (23,097 (685) NM NM
Earnings from continuing operations before
income taxe: $ 143,76¢ 409,28( 402,20: (65)% 2%

(1) See Note 5, “Restructuring and Other Charges” araté\26, “Other Items Impacting Comparabilityifi the Notes to Consolidated Financ
Statements for a discussion of items excluded fnansegment measure of profitabili

As part of management’s evaluation of segment dipgraerformance, we define the primary measureroent
our segment financial performance as “Net Befonee§a (NBT) from continuing operations, which inckslan
allocation of CSS and excludes restructuring ahérotharges, net.
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The following table provides a reconciliation adrits excluded from our segment NBT measure to their
classification within our Consolidated StatemeritEarnings:

Consolidatec

Statements of Earning Years ended December
Description Line ltem® 2009 2008 2007
(In thousand:
Severance and employ-related cost(?) Restructuring $ (2,206 (11,209 (8,929
Contract termination cos® Restructuring — (29 (591)
Early retirement of det@ Restructuring (4,179 — (1,280
Asset impairment® Restructuring (22) (10,247) —
Restructuring and other charges, (6,406 (21,48() (10,795
International asset impairme® Depreciation expens  (6,67€) (1,617 —
Gain on sale of proper®) Miscellaneous incom — — 10,11
Restructuring and other charges, net and othesi $(13,08:) (23,097 (68E)

(1) Restructuring refers to tt“Restructuring and other charges, net;” and Mis@aleous income refers to “Miscellaneous (incomekesp,
ne” on our Consolidated Statements of Earnir

(2) See Note £ Restructuring and Other Charg” in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statememtsdflditional information
(3) See Note 2¢‘ Other Items Impacting Comparabili” in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statememtsélditional information

Our FMS segment leases revenue earning equipmdngramides fuel, maintenance and other ancillaryises
to our SCS and DCC segments. Inter-segment revemi&BT are accounted for at rates similar to tleoseuted
with third parties. NBT related to inter-segmentiggnent and services billed to customers (equiproentribution)
are included in both FMS and the business segmkichveerved the customer and then eliminated (ptedeas
“Eliminations”).

The following table sets forth equipment contribuatincluded in NBT for our SCS and DCC segments:

Years ended December
2009 2008 2007
(In thousands

Equipment Contributior

Supply Chain Solution $ 9,461 16,701 16,28
Dedicated Contract Carrial 11,59’ 15,10: 14,96¢
Total $21,05¢ 31,80:  31,24¢

CSS represents those costs incurred to suppditisithess segments, including human resourcescénan
corporate services and public affairs, informatiechnology, health and safety, legal and corparatemunications
The objective of the NBT measurement is to prowideity on the profitability of each business segirand,
ultimately, to hold leadership of each businessrsad and each operating segment within each bisssggnent
accountable for their allocated share of CSS c&&gment results are not necessarily indicatithefesults of
operations that would have occurred had each segmen an independent, stand-alone entity duriagpériods
presented. Certain costs are considered to be @agnhot attributable to any segment and remairlagzdéd in
CSS. Included within the unallocated overhead ramgiwithin CSS are the costs for investor relaiqrublic
affairs and certain executive compensation. See B8} “Segment Reporting,” in the Notes to Consaéd
Financial Statements for a description of how #raainder of CSS costs is allocated to the bussegments.
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Fleet Management Solutions

Years ended December Change
2009/ 2008/
2009 2008 2007 2008 2007
(Dollars in thousands
Full service leas $1,989,671 2,041,51. 1,965,300 (3% 4%
Contract maintenanc 167,18. 168,15 159,63! (1) 5
Contractual revenu 2,156,85! 2,209,671 2,124,94. (2) 4
Contrac-related maintenanc 163,30t 193,85¢ 198,74 (16) 2
Commercial rente 431,05¢ 557,49. 583,33t (23) 4
Other 66,51. 77,90¢ 76,37. (15 2
Operating revenu®@) 2,817,73. 3,038,92: 2,983,39: (7) 2
Fuel services revent 750,10: 1,415,32¢ 1,183,90. (47) 20
Total revenue $3,5667,831 4,454,25. 4,167,30. (20)% 7%
Segment NB $ 140,400 395,90¢ 370,50: (65)% 7%
Segment NBT as a % of total rever 3.9% 8.9% 8.9% (50C) bps — bps
Segment NBT as a % of operating reve®@ 5.0% 13.0% 12.4% (80C) bps 60 bps

(1) We use operating revenue, a non-GAAP financial omeaso evaluate the operating performance of oMSbusiness segment and as a
measure of sales activity. Fuel services revenh&hwis directly impacted by fluctuations in markeg! prices, is excluded from our
operating revenue computation as fuel is largepaas-through to customers for which we realize maichanges in profitability during
periods of steady market fuel prices. However,itability may be positively or negatively impactegdsudden increases or decrease
market fuel prices during a short period of timecastomer pricing for fuel services is establisbeded on market fuel cos

2009 versus 2008

Total revenue decreased 20% in 2009 to $3.57 bithee primarily to lower fuel services revenue. |FRggvice:
revenue decreased 47% in 2009 because of loweagerénel prices as well as reduced gallons punmppdrating
revenue decreased 7% in 2009 to $2.82 billion céfig declines in all product lines, especially eoercial rental,
in light of the deterioration in global economimditions in the past year, partially offset by tenefit of
acquisitions. Total and operating revenue in 2068 mcluded an unfavorable foreign exchange imp&dt2% and
1.7%, respectively.

Full service lease revenue declined 3% and contnagitenance revenue declined 1% as a resultetf fle
downsizing decisions and lower variable revenumffewer miles driven by our customers with thetets. We
expect unfavorable contractual revenue comparigersyear based on the carryover effect of 200& fle
downsizings actions. Commercial rental revenueadsad 23% in 2009 reflecting weak global marketatehand
lower pricing. In 2009, we reduced the size and afigur rental fleet in order to better align wittarket demand.
The average global rental fleet size declined 13%009 and yeaend fleet counts decreased by 15% comparec
2008. As a result of our fleet right-sizing actipremtal fleet utilization in the fourth quarter 2009 improved over
the prior-year period for the first time in 2008.light of current economic conditions, we expestdrable
commercial rental comparisons next year driven ogenately higher demand, somewhat higher pricirty an
improved utilization.
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The following table provides rental statistics am global fleet:

Years ended December Change
2009/ 2008/
2009 2008 2007 2008 2007
(Dollars in thousands
Non-lease customer rental rever $265,14. 329,87! 330,19¢ (20)% —%
Lease customer rental rever(@) $165,91! 227,61t 253,13t (2% (10)%
Average commercial rental power fleet size — ivieer@)

©) 22,90( 25,70C 25,60C (11)% —%

Commercial rental utilizatio— power fleet 68.(% 71.4% 71.(% (34C) bps 40 bps

(1) Lease customer rental revenue is revenue from rgetzcles provided to our existing full servicade customers, generally during pe¢
periods in their operation:

(2) Number of units rounded to nearest hundred andutated using average coun
(3) Fleet size excluding trailer:

FMS NBT decreased 65% in 2009 to $140 million duipeimarily by the current economic slowdown and
freight recession, which resulted in a declinelobgl commercial rental demand, lower full senliease
performance and lower used vehicle sales resudtsuls in 2009 were also impacted by significahtggher pensiol
expense. These items were partially offset by m@hiction initiatives, including workforce redugt®implemented
in early 2009. Commercial rental results were inady weak global demand which drove lower utilmaand, tc
a lesser extent, reduced pricing on a smaller.fladt service lease results were adversely impbloiethe protracte
length and severity of the current freight recessihich has resulted in reduced customer demanukf leases
and downsizing of customer fleets. Customers givaied fewer miles with their existing fleets, efhlowered ou
variable revenue and fuel gallons sold. Howevearsdéemileage comparisons showed sequential impraveméhe
second half of the year. Used vehicle sales redeltined primarily due to weak market demand whiadve lower
pricing, as well as higher average inventory levidiswever, our used vehicle inventory levels imgawuring the
second half of the year and our year-end inventonnts were 10% below the prior year. Pension esgpen
significantly increased in 2009 because of poofguarance in the overall stock market in 2008.

2008 versus 2007

Total revenue increased 7% in 2008 to $4.45 biltlae to higher fuel services revenue and contrhotvanue
growth. Fuel services revenue increased 20% in p@@&use of higher fuel prices partially offsetréguced fuel
volumes. Operating revenue increased 2% in 2083 @4 billion as a result of contractual revenusngh,
including acquisitions, which more than offset alae in commercial rental revenue. Total and opegarevenue i
2008 also included an unfavorable foreign exchamgeact of 0.5% and 0.7%, respectively.

Revenue growth was realized in both contractual fluct lines in 2008. Full service lease revegnesv 4%
reflecting increases in the North American markénprily due to acquisitions. Contract maintenareeenue
increased 5% due primarily to new contract salesn@ercial rental revenue decreased 4% in 200&at#rily weak
global market demand and reduced pricing partibularthe fourth quarter of 2008. The average globatal fleet
size declined 5% in 2008 compared with 2007.

FMS NBT increased 7% in 2008 to $396 million duinarily to improved contractual business performanc
including acquisitions, and to a lesser extenimftogher fuel margins associated with unusuallatitd fuel prices
and better used vehicle sales results. This impneve was partially offset by a decline in commdnaatal results,
especially in the fourth quarter of 2008, as weakkat demand drove lower
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pricing. Used vehicle sales results improved $3ionilin 2008 primarily because of lower averagedusehicle
inventories.

Our global fleet of owned and leased revenue egraguipment and contract maintenance vehicles is
summarized as follows (number of units roundedheortearest hundred):

December 3: Change
2009/ 2008/
2009 2008 2007 2008 2007
End of period vehicle count
By type:
Trucks®) 63,60( 68,30( 62,80( (N% 9%
Tractors@ 50,30( 51,90( 50,40( (3) 3
Trailers®) 35,40( 39,90( 40,40C (11) (@)
Other 3,10( 3,30( 7,10( (6) (54)
Total 152,40( 163,40( 160,70( (N% 2%
By ownership
Owned 147,20( 158,10( 155,10( (M% 2%
Leasec 5,20( 5,30( 5,60( 2 (5)
Total 152,40( 163,40! 160,70( (M% 2%
By product line;
Full service leas 115,10( 120,60( 115,50( (5)% 1%
Commercial rente 27,40( 32,30( 34,10 (15 (5)
Service vehicles and oth 3,00( 2,80( 3,60( 7 (22
Active units 145,50( 155,70! 153,20( (7 2
Held for sale 6,90( 7,70( 7,50 (10) 3
Total 152,40( 163,40! 160,70( (7 2
Customer vehicles under contract maintens 34,40( 35,50( 31,50( 3% 13%
Average vehicle coun
By product line;
Full service leas 118,80( 118,10( 116,40( 1% 1%
Commercial rente 29,40( 33,90( 35,80C (13 (5)
Service vehicles and oth 2,90( 3,30(C 3,50( 9) (6)
Active units 151,10( 155,30( 155,70( 2 —
Held for sale 8,40( 6,20( 9,70( 35 (36)
Total 159,50( 161,50( 165,40( @) 2
Customer vehicles under contract maintene 35,20( 33,90( 30,80( 4% 1%

(1) Generally comprised of Class 1 through Class 6 tgdgcles with a Gross Vehicle Weight (GVW) up&®@0 pounds

(2) Generally comprised of over the road on highwaytwas and are primarily comprised of Classes 7 8rglpe vehicles with a GVW of over
26,000 pounds

(3) Generally comprised of dry, flatbed and refrigedhtgpe trailers
(4) Amounts were computed using point average based on monthly informati
Note: Prior year vehicle counts have been recléssifo conform to current year presentati
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The totals in the previous table include the foilogvnon-revenue earning equipment for the glolestfl
(number of units rounded to the nearest hundred):

December 3: Change

2009/ 2008/

Number of Units 2009 2008 2007 2008 2007

Not yet earning revenue (NYI 70C 1,50C 1,30C (53)% 15%

No longer earning revenue (NLE

Units held for salt 6,90C 7,70C 7,50C (100 3
Other NLE units 2,90C 2900 240 — 21

Total 10,50C 12,10 11,20( (13)% 8%

NYE units represent new vehicles on hand that anegoprepared for deployment to a lease customigit@the
rental fleet. Preparations include activities saskadding lift gates, paint, decals, cargo areaaifnideration
equipment. For 2009, the number of NYE units dessdacompared with prior year consistent with lonew
replacement lease activity. NLE units representetiicles held for sale and vehicles for which eeenue has been
earned in the previous 30 days. Accordingly, thedecles may be temporarily out of service, beingppared for
sale or awaiting redeployment. For 2009, the nunb®&LE units decreased compared with the prior egause
of lower used vehicle inventory levels. For 200t humber of NLE units increased slightly compasitti the priol
year because of the decline in commercial rentalashel. We expect NLE levels in 2010 to be consistetit 2009.

Supply Chain Solutions

Years ended December Change
2009/ 2008/
2009 2008 2007 2008 2007
(Dollars in thousands

U.S. operating revenu

Automotive $ 335,11¢ 499,38¢ 506,26 (39% (D)%
High-tech and Consumi 210,65¢ 257,59. 234,93: (18 10
Industrial and Othe 158,37¢ 139,09! 132,04: 14 5
U.S. operating revent 704,15 896,07! 873,23¢ (22) 3
International operating reven 251,25. 311,44¢ 311,25¢ (19 —
Total operating revent(®) 955,40¢ 1,207,52: 1,184,49 (22) 2
Subcontracted transportati 184,50. 222,10¢ 853,68! ()] (74
Total revenus $1,139,91 1,429,63; 2,038,18 (20% (30)%
Segment NB1 $  35,70( 56,951 60,22¢ (30% (5)%
Segment NBT as a % of total rever 3.1% 4.0% 3.0% (90) bps 10C bps
Segment NBT as a % of operating reve®@ 3.7% 4.7% 5.1% (100 bps (4C) bps
Memo: Fuel cost@ $ 64,91 136,400 114,77: (52)% 19%

(1) We use operating revenue, a hon-GAAP financial omeaso evaluate the operating performance of c08®usiness segment and as a
measure of sales activity. Subcontracted transpiomnas excluded from our operating revenue compaitieas subcontracted transportation
is largely a pas-through to customers. We realize minimal changesdfitability as a result of fluctuations in subdoacted transportation

(2) Fuel costs are largely a pe-through to customers and therefore have a diregiich on revenue
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2009 versus 2008

Total revenue decreased 20% in 2009 to $1.14 billiod operating revenue decreased 21% in 2009 to
$955 million. Total revenue and operating reveneereased as a result of lower automotive productieerall
freight volumes and fuel cost pass-throughs. F&O28CS total revenue and operating revenue indlade
unfavorable foreign currency exchange impact o¥2ahd 2.0%, respectively. We expect unfavorableaifey
revenue comparisons next year reflecting the impfnbn-renewed automotive contracts. General Motor
Corporation (GM) accounted for approximately 13% 44% of SCS total and operating revenue in 2009,
respectively, and is comprised of multiple consantNorth America. In the U.S., we provide supgiiain
management and other transportation-related sokisapporting twelve GM plants and operations;gfukthese
operations closed in 2009 as a result of GM’s eBrganization plan. For 2009, revenue associatédthe three
closed Ryder-supported GM locations totaled appnately $20 million, representing 2% of SCS reveane 14%
of GM revenue.

SCS NBT decreased 37% in 2009 to $36 million pritpaiue to significantly reduced North American
automotive volumes which decreased NBT by $19 amillincluding costs incurred upon the terminatibnestain
automotive operations. During the second quart@008, several of our automotive customers filedokmkruptcy,
including our largest customer, GM. We did not iimabny losses on our pre-petition accounts rebévaith any
of these customers.

2008 versus 2007

Total revenue decreased 30% in 2008 to $1.43 bii®a result of net reporting of a transportatimmagemel
arrangement previously reported on a gross bafecctive January 1, 2008, our contractual relatiopsvith a
significant customer for certain transportation aggment services changed, and we determined aafibemal
review of the terms and conditions of the servitleat we were acting as an agent based on thestktésms of the
arrangement. As a result, total revenue and sulaxiet] transportation expense decreased by $646mii 2008.
Operating revenue grew 2% due to new and expangsiddss and higher fuel cost pass-throughs andffset by
lower automotive volumes, especially in the fougttarter of 2008. For 2008, GM accounted for appnaely 16%
and 18% of SCS total and operating revenue, reispct

SCS NBT decreased 5% in 2008 to $57 million largklyen by lower operating results related to the
start-up of a U.S. based operation. NBT was algmagted by higher overhead spending from increaaled sind
marketing investments and facility relocation cadightly offset by lower incentive-based compeiwsat
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Dedicated Contract Carriage

Years ended December Change
2009/ 2008/
2009 2008 2007 2008 2007
(Dollars in thousands
Operating revenu®) $456,59¢ 536,75: 552,89. (15% (3)%
Subcontracted transportati 14,35¢ 10,997 14,74¢ 31 (25)

Total revenue $470,95¢ 547,75 567,64( (14)% (4)%

Segment NB $ 37,64 49,628 47,40¢ (24)% 5%
Segment NBT as a % of total rever 8.0% 9.1% 8.4% (11C) bps 70 bps
Segment NBT as a % of operating reve®) 8.2% 9.2% 8.6% (100) bps  60Q bps

Memo: Fuel cost(® $ 69,85¢ 123,00 107,14( (43)% 15%

(1) We use operating revenue, a hon-GAAP financial omreaso evaluate the operating performance of o@@business segment and as a
measure of sales activity. Subcontracted transpionas excluded from our operating revenue comparmeas subcontracted transportation
is largely a pas-through to customers. We realize minimal changgsafitability as a result of fluctuations in subrdeacted transportation

(2) Fuel costs are largely a pe-through to customers and therefore have a diregiich on revenue

2009 versus 2008

Total revenue declined 14% in 2009 to $471 milkonl operating revenue declined 15% in 2009 to
$457 million as a result of lower fuel cost pas®itighs, lower freight volumes and non-renewal citomer
contracts. We expect unfavorable operating reveougparisons next year because of slightly loweglfte
volumes.

DCC NBT decreased 24% in 2009 to $38 million assalt of lower revenue, and to a lesser extenteased
self-insurance costs. The increase in self-inswaosts reflects less favorable development imeséd prior years
self-insured loss reserves.

2008 versus 2007

Total revenue declined 4% in 2008 to $548 milliowl @perating revenue declined 3% in 2008 to $53Ifomi
as a result of the non-renewal of certain custaroatracts partially offset by the pass-throughighker fuel costs.

DCC NBT increased 5% in 2008 to $50 million assuteof better operating performance partially effgy
higher safety and insurance costs. The increasafaty and insurance costs reflects less favoddilelopment in
estimated prior years’ self-insured loss reserves.
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Central Support Services

Years ended December Change
2009/ 2008/
2009 2008 2007 2008 2007
(Dollars in thousands
Human resource $ 14,707 15,94 16,50¢ (8)% ()%
Finance 51,35: 55,83¢ 58,20¢ (8) (4)
Corporate services and public affe 11,55¢ 13,117 12,12¢ (12) 8
Information technolog 52,82¢ 57,53¢ 54,82¢ (8) 5
Health and safet 6,67: 7,754 7,97 (14) ©)]
Other 30,45(  34,84% 40,38! (13) (19
Total CSS 167,56' 185,03: 190,01¢ (9) ©)]
Allocation of CSS to business segme (131,73) (146,73) (146,01) 10 —
Unallocated CS: $ 35,83¢  38,30: 44,000 (6% (1%

2009 versus 2008

Total CSS costs decreased 9% in 2009 to $168 miléflecting lower spending across all functionales as a
result of cost reduction actions implemented inye2009 and lower incentive-based compensationsé&liems
were partially offset by higher professional feascost savings initiatives. Unallocated CSS costsehsed 6% in
2009 to $36 million due to lower incentive-basedhpensation offset slightly by higher spending ost@avings
initiatives.

2008 versus 2007

Total and unallocated CSS costs decreased 3% andr&3pectively, in 2008 to $185 million and $38liom,
respectively, because of lower foreign currencydeation losses, reduced severance costs and $tvaer-based
compensation expense due to a 2007 charge retathd ticcelerated amortization of restricted stodkexpense.
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FOURTH QUARTER CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

Three months ended December Change
2009 2008 2009/ 2008
(Dollars and shares in thousands, ex
per share amount

Total revenue $1,246,96! 1,337,20: (M%
Operating revenu $1,019,82; 1,087,25. (6)%
Earnings from continuing operations before income$ $ 31,80( 75,35 (58)%
Provision for income taxe 8,13( 24,88¢ (67)
Earnings from continuing operatio 23,67( 50,46 (53
Loss from discontinued operations, net of (15,429 (39,81) (61)
Net earning: $  8,24¢ 10,64: (23)%
Earnings (loss) per common sh— Diluted

Continuing operation $ 0.4: 0.91 (53)%

Discontinued operatior (0.2 (0.77) (61)

Net earning: $ 0.1t 0.1¢ (21)%
Weightec-average shares outstand— Diluted 54,23t 55,23 (2)%

Total revenue decreased 7% in the fourth quart@06® to $1.25 billion primarily due to lower openg
revenue in all our business segments. The decire&stal revenue was also impacted by lower fudlinees and, to
a lesser extent, fuel prices, partially offset Aydrable foreign exchange rate movements. Operegvenue
decreased 6% to $1.02 billion in the fourth quanfe2009 primarily due to lower full service lesed commercial
rental revenue and lower automotive volumes p#yrtafset by favorable exchange movements. Totaéneie and
operating revenue in the fourth quarter of 200uided a favorable foreign exchange impact of 1.3 h5%,
respectively.

NBT from continuing operations decreased 58% inftlueth quarter of 2009 to $32 million which reflec
significantly lower earnings in our FMS businesgraent. The decline was driven by decreased glaitladdrvice
lease results, higher pension expense, reducedlglobmercial rental performance and lower redutt: used
vehicle sales operations. To a lesser extent, mgsnn our SCS and DCC business segments were tiatbby
higher self-insurance costs.

Earnings from continuing operations in the fourttader of 2009 included an income tax benefit ofi§#lion
or $0.07 per diluted common share related primaoilghanges in Canadian income tax laws. Earniragys f
continuing operations in the fourth quarter of 2@@8uded an income tax benefit of $8 million, &34 per diluted
common share associated with reversal of reseoramtertain tax positions due to the expiratiothef statutes of
limitation in various jurisdictions.

We previously announced a plan to discontinue S@8ations in South America and Europe. During kel t
quarter of 2009, we ceased customer operations $oath American markets and part of Europe. Dyitime fourth
quarter of 2009, we ceased SCS customer operatiailsof Europe. Accordingly, results of these mgi®ns are
reported as discontinued operations for all permésented. Pre-tax losses from discontinued dpasatotaled
$15 million ($15 million after-tax or $0.28 per aliéd common share) in the fourth quarter of 20@.ting
accumulated foreign currency translation losse&ldf million ($14 million after-tax or $0.26 peraiéd common
share) associated with the substantial liquidadibimvestments in certain discontinued operatiéhig-tax losses
from discontinued operations totaled $42 milliorthe fourth
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quarter of 2008 and included $41 million of restasing charges and other items primarily relatedegeerance and
employee-related costs, impairment charge and acintgrmination costs.

FOURTH QUARTER OPERATING RESULTS BY BUSINESS SEGMEN

Three months ended December Change
2009 2008 2009/2008
(Dollars in thousands
Revenue
Fleet Management Solutiol $ 900,21¢ 977,12. (8)%
Supply Chain Solution 302,08! 319,04( 5)
Dedicated Contract Carria 119,26 126,20¢ (6)
Eliminations (74,609 (85,16¢) 12
Total $1,246,96: 1,337,20. (M%
Operating Revenut
Fleet Management Solutiol $ 699,45. 737,49¢ 5)%
Supply Chain Solution 247,59¢ 271,06¢ 9
Dedicated Contract Carriay 113,44« 123,62 (8)
Eliminations (40,670 (44,939 9
Total $1,019,82: 1,087,25: (6)%
NBT:
Fleet Management Solutiol $ 31,94¢ 86,07: (69)%
Supply Chain Solution 11,73¢ 17,12¢ (32)
Dedicated Contract Carriay 6,92 12,72( (46)
Eliminations (4,889 (8,399 42
45,72« 107,51¢ (57)
Unallocated Central Support Servic (11,257 (9,037 (25)
Restructuring and other charges, net and othessi (2,677 (23,130 NM
Earnings from continuing operations before income$ $  31,80( 75,35! (5%

Fleet Management Solutions

Total revenue decreased 8% to $900 million in theth quarter of 2009 reflecting lower operatingarue an
lower fuel services revenue due to reduced volunteta a lesser extent lower prices. Operating regatecreased
5% to $699 million in the fourth quarter of 200base of lower full service lease revenue fromamast fleet
downsizings and lower commercial rental revenulecéhg weak global market demand and lower prickFigS
total revenue and operating revenue in the fountdrtgr of 2009 included a favorable foreign excleaingpact of
1.3% and 1.6%, respectively.

FMS NBT decreased 63% to $32 million in the fougtlarter of 2009 reflecting lower global full sewilease
results, higher pension expense, a decline in cacialeental demand and lower used vehicle salagite These
items were partially offset by cost reduction @itves, including workforce reductions implemeniteéarly 2009.

Supply Chain Solutions

Total revenue decreased 5% to $302 million in theth quarter of 2009 and operating revenue deece8%o
to $248 million in the fourth quarter of 2009. Bdthial revenue and operating revenue declined
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primarily due to lower automotive and other freigbtumes partially offset by favorable foreign eaohe rate
movements. In the fourth quarter of 2009, SCS t@atnue and operating revenue both included adale foreigr
currency exchange impact of 2%.

SCS NBT decreased 31% to $12 million in the fogdhrter of 2009 because of higher self-insuransésco
compared with favorable claims experience in therprear and shutdown costs related to the terriuinatf certain
automotive operations.

Dedicated Contract Carriage

Total revenue decreased 6% to $119 million in theth quarter of 2009 and operating revenue deece8%o
to $113 million in the fourth quarter of 2009. Batial revenue and operating revenue decreasetbdbe non-
renewal of customer contracts and reduced freighirmes.

DCC NBT decreased 46% to $7 million in the fourttager of 2009 because of higher self-insurancescos
compared with favorable claims experience in therprear and a decline in revenue.

Central Support Services

Unallocated CSS costs increased 25% to $11 miitiche fourth quarter of 2009 because of highefgasiona
fees associated with cost savings initiatives.
FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

Cash Flows

The following is a summary of our cash flows fropeeating, financing and investing activities froontinuing
operations:

Years ended December
2009 2008 2007
(In thousands

Net cash provided by (used il

Operating activitie: $984,95¢ 1,248,16' 1,096,55!
Financing activitie: (542,016 (148,155 (304,600
Investing activities (448,61() (1,103,46) (811,209
Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢ 1,79¢ 1,40¢ 6,734
Net change in cash and cash equival $ (3,876 (2,047 (12,509

Cash provided by operating activities from contiguoperations decreased $263 million in 2009 bexafis
lower cash-based earnings and higher pension batitrhs. Cash used in financing activities increldb®4 million
in 2009 reflecting higher net debt repayments tegufrom less borrowing needs to fund capital slieg, including
acquisitions. Cash used in investing activitiesrdased $655 million in 2009 compared primarily tueower
vehicle capital spending and acquisition-relateghpents in 2009.

Cash provided by operating activities from contimguoperations increased $152 million in 2008 beeatis
higher cash-based earnings and reduced workingatapieds primarily from improved accounts receligab
collections. Cash used in financing activities eéased $156 million in 2008 because of higher barrgweeds to
fund net capital spending, including acquisitiofiash used in investing activities increased $29komiin 2008
primarily due to acquisition-related payments analdr proceeds from sales of revenue earning equipwigich
included proceeds of $150 million from a sale-léask transaction in 2007. This increase was pbridset by
lower vehicle capital spending.

Our principal sources of operating liquidity arelcdrom operations and proceeds from the salevefinge
earning equipment. We refer to the sum of operatagh flows, proceeds from the sales of revenue
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earning equipment and operating property and eqgiipnsale and leaseback of revenue earning equtpmen
collections on direct finance leases and other g#kiws as “total cash generated.” We refer torikeamount of
cash generated from operating and investing aiev{excluding changes in restricted cash and aitiunis) as free
cash flow.” Although total cash generated and &&sh flow are noitGAAP financial measures, we consider ther
be important measures of comparative operatingpegnce. We also believe total cash generated &mbe
important measure of total cash inflows generatenh four ongoing business activities. We believe frash flow
provides investors with an important perspectivét@ncash available for debt service, acquisitimd for
shareholders after making capital investments redub support ongoing business operations. Ogutzlon of
free cash flow may be different from the calculatised by other companies and therefore compagaivifiy be
limited.

The following table shows the sources of our fraghcflow computation:

Years ended December

2009 2008 2007
(In thousands
Net cash provided by operating activit $ 984,95¢ 1,248,16! 1,096,55!
Sales of revenue earning equipm 211,00: 257,67¢ 354,73t
Sales of operating property and equiprr 4,63¢ 3,72 18,72t
Collections on direct finance leas 65,24 61,09¢ 62,34¢
Sale and leaseback of revenue earning equip — — 150,34
Other, ne 20¢ 39t 1,58¢
Total cash generate 1,266,04: 1,571,06f 1,684,30.
Purchases of property and revenue earning equig (651,95) (1,230,40) (1,304,03)
Free cash flov $ 614,09( 340,66 380,26

Free cash flow increased to $614 million in 200&hpared with $341 million in 2008 as lower net calpit
expenditures were partially offset by lower caskdshearnings and higher pension contributions. €ask flow
decreased to $341 million in 2008 compared withB3dlion in 2007 because of lower proceeds frotesaf
revenue earning equipment, primarily from the $a6llion sale-leaseback transaction in 2007. Thisrease was
partially offset by higher cash flows from operasaand lower cash payments for vehicle capital dipgn We
expect free cash flow in 2010 to be approximat@yGmillion reflecting higher capital expendituresytially offse
by lower pension contributions.

Capital expenditures are generally used to purctesue earning equipment (trucks, tractors argjlwithin
our FMS segment. These expenditures primarily supe full service lease product line and alsodbeamercial
rental product line. The level of capital requitedsupport the full service lease product line eadirectly with the
customer contract signings for replacement vehiatesgrowth. These contracts are ldagn agreements that res
in predictable cash flows typically over a threes¢wen year term for trucks and tractors and uprigyears for
trailers. The commercial rental product line ukzcapital for the purchase of vehicles to repkearsd expand the
fleet available for shorter-term use by contractwabccasional customers. Operating property anghatent
expenditures primarily relate to FMS and SCS spandn items such as vehicle maintenance facilétres
equipment, computer and telecommunications equipnrarestments in technologies and warehouse figsiland
equipment.
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The following is a summary of capital expenditures:

Years ended December
2009 2008 2007
(In thousands

Revenue earning equipme

Full service leas $547,75( 985,92: 888,73
Commercial rente 7,43¢€ 171,12¢ 218,83l
555,18t 1,157,05. 1,107,56
Operating property and equipme 56,21¢ 108,28« 74,06¢
Total capital expenditure®) 611,40 1,265,331 1,181,63.
Changes in accounts payable related to purchageseriue earning
equipmen 40,55 (34,939 122,40(
Cash paid for purchases of property and revenugrgpequipmen $651,95. 1,230,40. 1,304,03.

(1) Capital expenditures exclude non-cash additionsppiroximately $2 million, $1 million, and $11 nwli in 2009, 2008, and 2007,
respectively, in assets held under capital leasssilting from the extension of existing operateasks and other additior

Capital expenditures decreased 52% to $611 milic2009 as a result of reduced full service lead@ale
spending due to lower new and replacement sald=®iourrent global economic environment, as welhaseased
use of lease term extensions and used vehicle Imaeents. Additionally, the decrease reflects pthminimal
spending on transactional commercial rental vekidlapital expenditures increased 7% to $1.27hiiln 2008 as
result of higher full service lease spending f@laeement and expansion of customer fleets andceetspending
on transactional commercial rental vehicles to mestket demand. We expect capital expendituresa@ase to
approximately $1.1 billion, including an estimat2i70 million to refresh an aging commercial refiegt. We
expect to fund 2010 capital expenditures with botérnally generated funds and additional financing

Working Capital

December 3:
2009 2008
(Dollars in thousands
Current assel $880,37. $ 957,58:
Current liabilities 850,27 1,111,16!
Working capital $ 30,09¢ $ (153,589

Our net working capital (current assets less ctiigbilities) was $30 million at December 31, 20&8npared
with negative $154 million at December 31, 2008e Tiicrease in net working capital was primarily due
decrease of $152 million in short-term debt. Extigdhe decline in short-term debt, working capitaireased
$32 million in 2009 because of the payment of testiring related reserves and incentive compensafiois
increase was partially offset by a decline in actsueceivables as we discontinued operations gperienced
volume declines.

Financing and Other Funding Transactions

We utilize external capital primarily to support fkimg capital needs and growth in our asset-basedyat
lines. The variety of financing alternatives typigavailable to fund our capital needs include coencial paper,
long-term and medium-term public and private dabset-backed securities, bank term loans, leasinaggements
and bank credit facilities. Our principal sourcésimancing are issuances of commercial paper aediom-term
notes.
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Our ability to access unsecured debt in the capitakets is linked to both our short-term and lomgn debt
ratings. These ratings are intended to provideandd to fixed income investors in determining treadit risk
associated with particular Ryder securities baseduorent information obtained by the rating agesadrom us or
from other sources. Lower ratings generally reisultigher borrowing costs as well as reduced acmesasecured
capital markets. A downgrade of our short-term aabhgs to a lower tier would impair our ability issue
commercial paper. As a result, we would have tp oal alternative funding sources. A downgrade afdrbt
ratings would not affect our ability to borrow anmésiunder our revolving credit facility describegldw, given
ongoing compliance with the terms and conditionthefcredit facility.

Our debt ratings at December 31, 2009 were asvstio

Short-term Long-term Outlook
Moody'’s Investors Service P2 Baal Stable (reaffirmed February 2009
Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services A2 BBB+ Negative (lowered January 2009)
Fitch Ratings F2 A- Stable (reaffirmed March 2009)

We believe that our operating cash flow, togethigh wur access to commercial paper markets and othe
available debt financing, will be adequate to nmetoperating, investing and financing needs inftheseeable
future. However, there can be no assurance thattici@ated volatility and disruption in commercgper markets
would not impair our ability to access these mazkat terms commercially acceptable to us or egtitelve cease
to have access to commercial paper and other soafasmsecured borrowings, we would meet our liyideeds
by drawing upon contractually committed lendingesgnents as described below and/or by seeking fatheing
sources.

In April 2009, we executed a new $875 million glbtevolving credit facility with a syndicate of tféen
lending institutions led by Bank of America N.A.aBk of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd, Mizuho Corpora&ank,
Ltd., Royal Bank of Scotland Plc and Wells Farg& NLhis facility replaced a $870 million credit faty that was
scheduled to mature in May 2010. The new globalitfacility matures in April 2012 and is used parily to
finance working capital and provide support for iggiance of unsecured commercial paper in thedh&Canada.
This facility can also be used to issue up to $1bam in letters of credit (there were no lettafscredit outstanding
against the facility at December 31, 2009). At option, the interest rate on borrowings under tieglit facility is
based on LIBOR, prime, federal funds or local egléwat rates. The credit facility’s current annwadility fee is
37.5 basis points, which applies to the total fgcdize of $875 million. This fee ranges from 2Bdsis points to
62.5 basis points and is based on Ryder’s long-teedit ratings. The credit facility contains n@yisions limiting
its availability in the event of a material advecbange to Ryder’s business operations; howeverrndit facility
does contain standard representations and warsaetients of default, cross-default provisions, egntiain
affirmative and negative covenants. In order tori@an availability of funding, we must maintainatio of debt to
consolidated tangible net worth of less than oaétmu300%. Tangible net worth, as defined in tregit facility,
includes 50% of our deferred federal income talility and excludes the book value of our intang&lIThe ratio at
December 31, 2009 was 155%. At December 31, 2088, #illion was available under the credit faciligyt
December 31, 2009, no foreign borrowings were antiihg under the facility.

We have a trade receivables purchase and saleapnpgursuant to which we sell certain of our doimdsade
accounts receivable to a bankruptcy remote, cattestelil subsidiary of Ryder, that in turn may seilaaevolving
basis, an ownership interest in certain of thesewuts receivable to a receivables conduit or catethpurchasers.
We use this program to provide additional liquidibyfund our operations, particularly when it isteffective to do
s0. The costs under the program may vary basettiamges in interest rates. In October 2009, we reddie trade
receivables purchase and sale program. The avaimbteeds amount that may be received under tgggn was
reduced at that time from $250 million to $175 raill at our election based on our projected finapcaguirement:
If no event occurs which causes early terminatilba,364-day program will expire on October 29, 200lte
program contains provisions restricting its avallgb
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in the event of a material adverse change to osinkas operations or the collectibility of the atdralized
receivables. At December 31, 2009, no amounts waistanding under the program. At December 31, 2008
$190 million was outstanding under the programwaad included within “Short-term debt and currenttipo of
long-term debton our Consolidated Balance Sheets. At Decembe2@®18, the amount of collateralized receiva
under the program was $210 million.

Historically, we have established asset-backedrgeation programs whereby we sell beneficial iets in
certain long-term vehicle leases and related vehsiduals to a bankruptcy-remote special purpasgy that in
turn transfers the beneficial interest to a spgui@pose securitization trust in exchange for c@sle. securitization
trust funds the cash requirement with the issuahesset-backed securities, secured or otherwitselized by
the beneficial interest in the long-term vehiclades and the residual value of the vehicles. Ttarisigation
provides us with further liquidity and access tditidnal capital markets based on market conditi@s June 18,
2008, a special purpose bankruptcy-remote subgidibolly-owned by Ryder, filed a registration statnt on
Form S-3 with the Securities and Exchange Commis&dC) for the registration of $600 million in eskacked
notes. The registration statement became effeotivdovember 6, 2008 and allows us to access thkcagset-
backed securities market for three years, subgectarket conditions. Based on current market candit we do na
expect to utilize this program in the near term.

On February 27, 2007, Ryder filed an automaticfgleglistration statement on Form Sv8h the Securities ar
Exchange Commission. The registration is for ariedninate number of securities and is effectiveatoee years.
Under this universal shelf registration statemesethave the capacity to offer and sell from timéree various
types of securities, including common stock, pref@istock and debt securities, subject to marketaael and
ratings status. We intend to file a new shelf regison with the SEC before the current registrastatement
expires.

In August 2008, we issued $300 million of unsecureslium-term notes maturing in September 2015. The
proceeds from the notes were used for general catgpurposes. If the notes are downgraded follgwand as a
result of, a change of control, the note holderreguire us to repurchase all or a portion of tbees at a purchase
price equal to 101% of the principal amount plusraed and unpaid interest. Our other outstandirsgcured
U.S. notes are not subject to change of contralndase obligations. See Note 16, “Delfty’ other issuances unc
this registration statement.

In September 2009, we completed a $100 million tiefider offer at a total cost of $104 million. We¢hased
$50 million aggregate principal amount of outstagds.95% medium-term notes maturing May 2011 and
$50 million aggregate principal amount of outstaigdd.625% medium-term notes maturing April 2010. We
recorded a pre-tax debt extinguishment charge ohi#iton which included $3 million for the premiupaid, and
$1 million for the write-off of unamortized origihdebt discount and issuance costs and fees dnahgaction.

At December 31, 2009, we had the following amouantsilable to fund operations under the aforemertion

facilities:

(In millions)
Global revolving credit facility $681
Trade receivables program 17t
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The following table shows the movements in our deld@ince:

Years ended December

2009 2008
(In thousands
Debt balance at Januan $2,862,79' 2,776,12!
Casl-related changes in del
Net change in commercial paper borrowil 148,25t (522,319
Proceeds from issuance of med-term note: — 550,00(
Proceeds from issuance of other debt instrurr 2,01 194,00:
Retirement of mediu-term notes and debentui (276,000 (90,000
Other debt repaid, including capital lease oblmya (243,71() (28,647
Net change from discontinued operatit (9,427 (2,47%)

(378,86 100,57:
Non-cash changes in del

Fair market value adjustment on notes subject tiging (6,290 18,391
Addition of capital lease obligatiol 1,94¢ 1,43(C
Changes in foreign currency exchange rates and ndr-cash item: 18,10( (33,729
Total changes in del (365,109 86,67(
Debt balance at December $2,497,69. 2,862,79!

In accordance with our funding philosophy, we afietn match the aggregate average remaining réagride
of our debt with the aggregate average remainingriceng life of our assets. We utilize both fixeake and variable-
rate debt to achieve this match and generally taxrgeix of 25% - 45% variable-rate debt as a pdeggnof total
debt outstanding. The variable-rate portion oftotal obligations (including notional value of swagreements)
was 26% at both December 31, 2009 and 2008.

Ryder’s leverage ratios and a reconciliation ofoatance sheet debt to total obligations were dgvist

December 31 % December 3: %
2009 of Equity 2008 of Equity
(Dollars in thousands

On-balance sheet de $2,497,69. 175%  $2,862,79 213%
Off-balance sheet debt — PV of minimum lease paysand

guaranteed residual values under operating leaseglfficles

@ 118,82¢ 163,03¢

Total obligations $2,616,51! 183%  $3,025,831 225%

(1) Present value (PV) does not reflect payments weédnmrirequired to make if we terminated the reldeabes prior to the schedul
expiration dates

On-balance sheet debt to equity consists of balaneet stebt divided by total equity. Total obligatidosquity
represents balance sheet debt plus the presemwt @bininimum lease payments and guaranteed residliads
under operating leases for vehicles, discounteddan our incremental borrowing rate at lease iticepall
divided by total equity. Although total obligatioissa nonGAAP financial measure, we believe that total cdufigns
is useful as it provides a more complete analylsiio existing financial obligations and helps betissess our
overall leverage position. The decrease in ourrbaye ratios in 2009 was driven by reduced fundiegas to suppc
our contractual full service lease business anccommercial rental business.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Sale and leaseback transactionsVe periodically enter into sale and leasebaakstations in order to lower
the total cost of funding our operations, to difgreur funding among different classes of invest(®.g., regional
banks, pension plans, insurance companies, et foatversify our funding among different typesfafding
instruments. These sale-leaseback transactioraftareexecuted with third-party financial institutis. In general,
these sale-leaseback transactions result in atieduo revenue earning equipment and debt on étenlge sheet, as
proceeds from the sale of revenue earning equiparergrimarily used to repay debt. Accordinglyesl@laseback
transactions will result in reduced depreciatiod arterest expense and increased equipment reqgahse.

Our sale-leaseback transactions contain limitedaguees by us of the residual values of the leashitles
(residual value guarantees) that are condition@ch ulisposal of the leased vehicles prior to thedrtteir lease
term. The amount of future payments for residuileguarantees will depend on the market for usdicles and
the condition of the vehicles at time of dispo§a#e Note 19, “Guarantees,” in the Notes to Conatditl Financial
Statements for additional information. In May 200/& completed a sale-leaseback transaction of tevearning
equipment with a third party and this transactiaaliied for off-balance sheet operating leasetinemt. Proceeds
from the sale-leaseback transaction totaled $1%@®miWe did not enter into any saleaseback transactions dur
the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008.

Guarantees. We executed various agreements with third patiiascontain standard indemnifications that
require us to indemnify a third party against lesagsing from a variety of matters such as leddigations,
financing agreements, environmental matters, angeagents to sell business assets. In each of ih&is@ces,
payment by us is contingent on the other partydanigy about a claim under the procedures outlingtiénspecific
agreement. Normally, these procedures allow usstoute the other party’s claim. Additionally, owligations
under these agreements may be limited in termiseoadinount and/or timing of any claim. We have euénto
individual indemnification agreements with eacltoof independent directors, through which we wilémnify sucl
director acting in good faith against any and @dkles, expenses and liabilities arising out of sliglttor’'s service
as a director of Ryder. The maximum amount of piidefuture payments under these agreements isrgiyne
unlimited.

We cannot predict the maximum potential amountuaire payments under certain of these agreements,
including the indemnification agreements, due tdhntingent nature of the potential obligationd tre distinctive
provisions that are involved in each individualesgnent. Historically, no such payments made by Rigdee had a
material adverse effect on our business. We betieateif a loss were incurred in any of these rmatie loss woul
not result in a material adverse impact on our cbaated results of operations or financial positidhe total
amount of maximum exposure determinable under ttygmes of provisions at December 31, 2009 and 2008
$11 million and $14 million, respectively, and weceued $9 million in 2009 and $1 million in 2008, &
corresponding liability. See Note 19, “Guarante@sthe Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemfamtfurther
discussion.
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Contractual Obligations and Commitments

As part of our ongoing operations, we enter intagements that obligate us to make future paymerdsr
contracts such as debt agreements, lease agreesmenisiconditional purchase obligations. The foltmatable
summarizes our expected future contractual casbaitins and commitments at December 31, 2009:

2010 2011 2012 201 2014 Thereafter Total
(In thousands)

Debt $230,75: 871,99 611,76: 772,17 2,486,68!
Capital lease obligations 1,86¢ 3,35¢€ 3,45¢€ 2,33¢ 11,01
Total debt, including capital lease<?) 232,61 875,35, 615,21 774,50: 2,497,69.
Interest on debt(@) 122,19: 192,12¢ 122,86« 167,55: 604,73:
Operating lease<®) 79,23 149,74: 75,351 34,04 338,37!
Purchase obligations® 214,82¢ 20,10( 10,997 12,67 258,60(
Total contractual cash obligations 416,25¢ 361,96¢ 209,21¢ 214,26t 1,201,701
Insurance obligations®) 111,14. 90,77¢ 34,56¢ 25,69¢ 262,18
Other long-term liabilities (©).().(8) 8,707 2,36¢ 1,75¢€ 45,04« 57,87¢
Total $768,72. 1,330,461 860,76. 1,059,51. 4,019,46

(1) Net of unamortized discout

(2) Total debt matures at various dates through figesdr 2025 and bears interest principally at fixedes. Interest on variable-rate debt is
calculated based on the applicable rate at Decen®ier2009. Amounts are based on existing debt atidigs, including capital leases, and
do not consider potential refinancings of expirihgbt obligations

(3) Represents future lease payments associated witbles, equipment and properties under operatirsgés. Amounts are based upon
general assumption that the leased asset will rarailease for the length of time specified byréspective lease agreements. No effect
been given to renewals, cancellations, contingentals or future rate change

(4) The majority of our purchase obligations are payyasi-go transactions made in the ordinary coursbudiness. Purchase obligations
include agreements to purchase goods or servicgsatte legally binding and that specify all sigoént terms, including: fixed or minimum
guantities to be purchased; fixed minimum or valegtrice provisions; and the approximate timingleé transaction. The most significant
item included in the above table are purchase abiims related to vehicles. Purchase orders madéénordinary course of business that
are cancelable are excluded from the above tahhg. #mounts for which we are liable under purchasters for goods received are
reflected in our Consolidated Balance Sheet“ Accounts payab” and“ Accrued expenses and other current liabili’”

(5) Insurance obligations are primarily comprised offtinsurance accruals

(6) Represents other lo-term liability amounts reflected in our ConsoliddtBalance Sheets that have known payment strddasnost
significant items included were asset retiremenigaltions and deferred compensation obligatic

(7) The amounts exclude our estimated pension conimitsit For 2010, our pension contributions, inclugliour minimum funding requirements
as set forth by ERISA and international regulatboglies, are expected to be $17 million. Our mininfunaing requirements after 2010 are
dependent on several factors. However, we estithate¢he undiscounted required global contributiaver the next five years is
approximately $337 million (pre-tax) (assuming eotpd long-term rate of return realized and otheswsptions remain unchanged). We
also have payments due under our other postretintimenefit (OPEB) plans. These plans are not reglto be funded in advance, but are
pay-as-yoL-go. See Note 2 Employee Benefit Plar’ in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statememt$urther discussior

(8) The amounts exclude $76 million of liabilities asated with uncertain tax positions as we are ueablreasonably estimate the ultimate
amount or timing of settlement. See Note" Income Taxe” in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statememtsurther discussior

48




Table of Contents

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS — (Co ntinued)

Pension Information
Over the past few years, we have made the followimgndments to our defined benefit retirement plans

* In July 2009, our Board of Directors approved areadment to freeze our United Kingdom (UK) retirett
plan for all participants effective March 31, 20

« In July 2008, our Board of Directors approved areadment to freeze the defined benefit portion af ou
Canadian retirement plan effective January 1, 26d.8urrent participants who do not meet certain
grandfathering criterie

« In January 2007, our Board of Directors approvedaimendment to freeze the U.S. pension plans ifect
December 31, 2007 for current participants whorditimeet certain grandfathering critel

As a result of these amendments, goandfathered plan participants will cease accrbmgefits under the plz
as of the respective amendment effective date ah8egin receiving an enhanced benefit under aneelf
contribution plan. All retirement benefits earnadofithe amendment effective date will be fullygaered and will
be paid in accordance with the plan and legal requénts. The freeze of the Canadian defined belefitcreated
pre-tax curtailment gain in 2008 of $4 million. Thevas no material impact to our financial conditand operating
results from the other plan amendments in 20096 2

Due to the underfunded status of our defined bepkfhs, we had an accumulated net pension equésge
(after-tax) of $412 million and $480 million at Deober 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. The lowsitggharge
in 2009 reflects higher actual returns comparetthécexpected asset returns during 2009. The tesaitaeturn for
our U.S. qualified pension plan (our primary plam@s 23% in 2009.

The funded status of our pension plans is depengeart many factors, including returns on investeskts and
the level of certain market interest rates. Weaevpension assumptions regularly and we may fram to time
make voluntary contributions to our pension plavisich exceed the amounts required by statute. QU009, total
pension contributions, including our internatiopkns, were $131 million compared with $21 millior2008. We
made voluntary pension contributions of $102 milio 2009. We estimate 2010 required pension dmutidns will
be $17 million. After considering the 2009 conttibus and asset performance, the projected presérg of
estimated global pension contributions that wodddxuired over the next 5 years totals approxilpate
$286 million (pre-tax). Changes in interest rated the market value of the securities held by taagcould
materially change, positively or negatively, thelerfunded status of the plans and affect the lefzpknsion
expense and required contributions in future yelms. ultimate amount of contributions is also dejgsr upon the
requirements of applicable laws and regulations. ISete 24, “Employee Benefit Plans,” in the Notes t
Consolidated Financial Statements for additionfarimation.

We participate in twelve U.S. multi-employer pems{MEP) plans that provide defined benefits to empés
covered by collective bargaining agreements. Atdbdner 31, 2009, approximately 1,100 employees
(approximately 5% of total employees) participatethese MEP plans. The annual net pension casieoMEP
plans is equal to the annual contribution deterchineaccordance with the provisions of negotiatdzbl contracts.
Our current MEP plan contributions total approxietats5 million. Pursuant to current U.S. pensiondaif any
MEP plan fails to meet certain minimum funding 8irelds, we could be required to make additional NdER
contributions, until the respective labor agreensxuires, of up to 10% of current contractual regmients. Several
factors could cause MEP plans not to meet thesarmam funding thresholds, including unfavorable istreent
performance, changes in participant demographiabjrecreased benefits to participants. The planiaigtrators
and trustees of the MEP plans provide us with tiveual funding notice as required by law. This n@gets forth th
funded status of the plan as of the beginning efptior year but does not provide any company-$igeci
information.
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Employers participating in MEP plans can elect tthdraw from the plans, contingent upon labor union
consent, and be subject to a withdrawal obligadbased on, among other factors, the MEP plan’s uiddivested
benefits. U.S. pension regulations provide thatmployer can fund its withdrawal obligation in alp sum or over
a time period of up to 20 years based on previoagribution rates. Based on the most recently aféal plan
information, collectively as of January 2009, wéreate our pre-tax contingent MEP plan withdrawaligation to
be approximately $28 million. We have no curretéimion of taking any action that would subjectaihe
payment of material withdrawal obligations; howewerder applicable law, in very limited circumstaagcthe plan
trustee can impose these obligations on us.

Share Repurchase Programs and Cash Dividends

As discussed in Note 20, “Shareholders’ Equity,tha Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, in
December 2009, our Board of Directors authorizetlare repurchase program intended to mitigateithiéve
impact of shares issued under our various empleiek, stock option and employee stock purchasesplander
the December 2009 program, management is authdizeghurchase shares of common stock in an ammmirib
exceed the number of shares issued to employees thelCompany’s various employee stock, stocloapind
employee stock purchase plans from December 1, 206Agh December 15, 2011. The December 2009 anogr
limits aggregate share repurchases to no more2tmaitlion shares of Ryder common stock. Share repases of
common stock are made periodically in open-maniegtstactions and are subject to market conditieusl |
requirements and other factors. Management mablestarearranged written plans for the Companyeund
Rule 10b5-1 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1884art of the December 2009 program, which allovshare
repurchases during Ryder’s quarterly blackout plsrias set forth in the trading plan. We did notirepase any
shares under this program in 2009.

In December 2007, our Board of Directors authoriaég800 million discretionary share repurchase aiog
over a period not to exceed two years. Additionallyr Board of Directors authorized a separate year anti-
dilutive repurchase program. The adiidtive program limited aggregate share repurchasao more than 2 millic
shares of Ryder common stock. Towards the endeothtind quarter of 2008, we paused purchases watar
programs given market conditions at that time. W&umed purchases under both programs in the fqudtter of
2009 through the end of the programs’ two year $2im 2009 and 2008, we repurchased and retired
2,348,909 shares and 2,615,000 shares, respectivelgr the $300 million program at an aggregast ab
$100 million and $170 million, respectively. In 208nd 2008, we repurchased and retired 377,372shad
1,363,436 shares, respectively, under the anttrddyprogram at an aggregate cost of $16 milliod $86 million,
respectively.

Cash dividend payments to shareholders of comnuak stere $53 million in 2009, $52 million in 2008ca
$50 million in 2007. During 2009, we increased annual dividend to $1.00 per share of common stock.

Market Risk

In the normal course of business, we are expos#ddimations in interest rates, foreign currengghange
rates and fuel prices. We manage these exposusevémal ways, including, in certain circumstanties,use of a
variety of derivative financial instruments whereded prudent. We do not enter into leveraged d@revéinancial
transactions or use derivative financial instruradat trading purposes.

Exposure to market risk for changes in interegsaixists for our debt obligations. Our interett rask
management program objectives are to limit the thphinterest rate changes on earnings and casls fand to
lower overall borrowing costs. We manage our exposu interest rate risk primarily through the pdjpn of
fixed-rate and variable-rate debt we hold in thaltdebt portfolio. From time to time, we also uisierest rate swap
and cap agreements to manage our fixed-rate amblarate exposure and to better match the reygyiof debt
instruments to that of our portfolio of assets. Be¢e 18, “Financial Instruments and Risk Managetfiémthe
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements foh&urtliscussion on interest rate swap agreem
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At December 31, 2009, we had $1.90 billion of fixate debt outstanding (excluding capital leaset) s
weighted-average interest rate of 5.2% and a &irevof $1.99 billion. A hypothetical 10% decreaséncrease in
the December 31, 2009 market interest rates wonhct the fair value of our fixed-rate debt by apjmately
$20 million at December 31, 2009. Changes in thaive sensitivity of the fair value of our finaatinstrument
portfolio for these theoretical changes in the l®fénterest rates are primarily driven by changresur debt
maturities, interest rate profile and amount.

At December 31, 2009, we had $591 million of vaeatate debt, including the impact of interest mt&ps,
which effectively changed $250 million of fixed-eadebt instruments with an interest rate of 6.0%/BOR-based
floating-rate debt with an interest rate of 2.9@hanges in the fair value of the interest rate swere offset by
changes in the fair value of the debt instrumentsreo net gain or loss was recognized in earnifigs.fair value of
our interest rate swap agreement at December 8B, ®@s recorded as an asset totaling $12 millitve. fair value
of our variable-rate debt at December 31, 2009%685 million. A hypothetical 10% increase in markeérest
rates would have impacted 2009 pre-tax earninga frontinuing operations by approximately $1 million

Exposure to market risk for changes in foreign ency exchange rates relates primarily to our fareig
operations’ buying, selling and financing in cuci&s other than local currencies and to the cagryalue of net
investments in foreign subsidiaries. The majoritpuar transactions are denominated in U.S. dollBng principal
foreign currency exchange rate risks to which veeaposed include the Canadian dollar, British gogterling anc
Mexican peso. We manage our exposure to foreigreeay exchange rate risk related to our foreigrratens’
buying, selling and financing in currencies othert local currencies by naturally offsetting assets liabilities not
denominated in local currencies to the extent fessA hypothetical uniform 10% strengthening ie tralue of the
dollar relative to all the currencies in which dtemsactions are denominated would result in aedeserto pre-tax
earnings from continuing operations of approxima$ million. We also use foreign currency optiamtacts and
forward agreements from time to time to hedge fpraurrency transactional exposure. We generallgaldvedge
the translation exposure related to our net investrin foreign subsidiaries, since we generallyehaw near-term
intent to repatriate funds from such subsidiatitmvever, we had a $78 million cross-currency swaplace to
hedge our net investment in a foreign subsidiarickvimatured in 2007. As of December 31, 2009 tloeiiulated
derivative net loss in “Accumulated other compredies loss” was $17 million, net of tax, and will tecognized in
earnings upon sale or repatriation of our net iaest. At December 31, 2008, we also had forwardifm
currency exchange contracts with an aggregateddiie of negative $0.6 million used to hedge théabdity of
foreign currency equivalent cash flows.

Exposure to market risk for fluctuations in fueices relates to a small portion of our service st for
which the cost of fuel is integral to service deliy and the service contract does not have a mesrhada adjust for
increases in fuel prices. At December 31, 2009alse had various fuel purchase arrangements i ptaensure
delivery of fuel at market rates in the event adlfshortages. We are exposed to fluctuations ihgees in these
arrangements since none of the arrangements figritbe of fuel to be purchased. Increases and dsesein the
price of fuel are generally passed on to our custsrfor which we realize minimal changes in prdifility during
periods of steady market fuel prices. However, ifability may be positively or negatively impactbg sudden
increases or decreases in market fuel prices darstwprt period of time as customer pricing foll Bervices is
established based on market fuel costs. We believexposure to fuel price fluctuations would neattenially
impact our results of operations, cash flows aarfitial position.

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

Refer to Note 25, “Environmental Matters,” in thetls to Consolidated Financial Statements for eudsion
surrounding environmental matters.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith U.S. GAAP requires us to make estimates and
assumptions. Our significant accounting policiesascribed in the Notes to Consolidated Finargtaiements.
Certain of these policies require the applicatibeubjective or complex judgments, often as a tesfuthe need to
make estimates about the effect of matters thahherently uncertain. These estimates and assangére based
on historical experience, changes in the businegisament and other factors that we believe todasonable
under the circumstances. Different estimates thaldchave been applied in the current period ongka in the
accounting estimates that are reasonably likelyreanlt in a material impact on our financial cdiwdi and
operating results in the current and future perivds periodically review the development, selectond disclosure
of these critical accounting estimates with Rydéwslit Committee.

The following discussion, which should be readdnjanction with the descriptions in the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements, is furnishedéatitional insight into certain accounting estiesathat we
consider to be critical.

Depreciation and Residual Value Guaranteéale periodically review and adjust the residudliga and usefi
lives of revenue earning equipment of our FMS bessrsegment as described in Note 1, “Summary oifigignt
Accounting Policies — Revenue Earning Equipmentei@png Property and Equipment, and Depreciation’ a
“Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — Rasadl Value Guarantees and Deferred Gains,” in thiedltm
Consolidated Financial Statements. Reductionssitlual values (i.e., the price at which we ultinhaexpect to
dispose of revenue earning equipment) or usefaslivill result in an increase in depreciation exqaeover the life
of the equipment. Based on the mix of revenue agragquipment at December 31, 2009, a 10% decreaseecte
vehicle residual values would increase depreciaigpense in 2010 by approximately $98 million. \Beiew
residual values and useful lives of revenue earaqgpment on an annual basis or more often if @glenecessary
for specific groups of our revenue earning equipmi@aviews are performed based on vehicle clasergdy
subcategories of trucks, tractors and trailers bigtt and usage. Our annual review is establish#daniong-term
view considering historical market price changesrent and expected future market price trendseeteal life of
vehicles included in the fleet and extent of alédivre uses for leased vehicles (e.g., rental fleed, SCS and DCC
applications). As a result, future depreciationenge rates are subject to change based upon charigese factor
At the end of each year, we complete our annuaveof the residual values and useful lives of reieearning
equipment. Based on the results of our analys2909, we will adjust the residual values of cerdasses of our
revenue earning equipment effective January 1, ZDA€ residual value change will decrease earrnmg810 by
approximately $14 million compared with 2009. Fastihat could cause actual results to materiaffgdfrom the
estimated results include significant changes énubed-equipment market brought on by unforeseangss in
technology innovations and any resulting changdleruseful lives of used equipment.

We also lease vehicles under operating lease agrasnCertain of these agreements contain limitedantee
for a portion of the residual values of the equipm&esults of the reviews described above for anaguipment
are also applied to equipment under operating l&ds=amount of residual value guarantees expectbd paid is
recognized as rent expense over the expected remgaarm of the lease. At December 31, 2009, tathllities for
residual value guarantees of $4 million were inetilich “Accrued expenses and other current liabditi(for those
payable in less than one year) and in “Other naneat liabilities.” Based on the existing mix ofhieles under
operating lease agreements at December 31, 20@%alecrease in expected vehicle residual valuesdwocreas
rent expense in 2010 by approximately $2 million.

Pension Plans. We apply actuarial methods to determine the anmetgperiodic pension expense and pension
plan liabilities on an annual basis, or on an intdrasis if there is an event requiring remeasurgnieach
December, we review actual experience comparedthitimore significant assumptions used and makestdgnts
to our assumptions, if warranted. In determiningannual estimate of periodic pension cost, we
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are required to make an evaluation of criticaldestsuch as discount rate, expected long-ternofateturn,
expected increase in compensation levels, retirena¢és and mortality. Discount rates are based @pduration
analysis of expected benefit payments and the atprivaverage yield for high quality corporate fixecome
investments as of our December 31 annual measutetatn In order to provide a more accurate estérofthe
discount rate relevant to our plan, we use modiaisrhatch projected benefits payments of our pyneaE. plan to
coupons and maturities from a hypothetical portfoli high quality corporate bonds. Long-term rateeturn
assumptions are based on actuarial review of aatadlocation strategy and long-term expectedt astens.
Investment management and other fees paid usimgasisets are factored into the determination aftassurn
assumptions. In 2009, we adjusted our long-terneetgal rate of return assumption for our primary.l8n down
to 7.9% from 8.4% based on the factors reviewe@. ddmposition of our pension assets was 66% egqaityrities
and 34% debt securities and other investmentsjaenisg the reallocation of excess cash. As padusfstrategy to
manage future pension costs and net funded stataslity, we regularly assess our pension invesins¢rategy. W
evaluate our mix of investments between equityfawd income securities and may adjust the comjmosdf our
pension assets when appropriate. The rate of iseri@acompensation levels and retirement ratebaged primaril
on actual experience.

Accounting guidance applicable to pension plans dm¢ require immediate recognition of the effedta
deviation between these assumptions and actuafierpe or the revision of an estimate. This appncaows the
favorable and unfavorable effects that fall withimacceptable range to be netted and recordechwiticicumulatec
other comprehensive loss.” We had a pre-tax actllass of $638 million at the end of 2009 companéith a loss
of $750 million at the end of 2008. The decreasthénnet actuarial loss in 2009 resulted primdrityn higher than
expected pension asset returns. To the extenntioerat of actuarial gains and losses exceed 10%edfrger of thi
benefit obligation or plan assets, such amountnisriized over the average remaining service lifactive
participants or the remaining life expectancy @fdtive participants if all or almost all of a plarparticipants are
inactive. The freeze of the qualified U.S. pengitan caused almost all of the plan’s participaotsg¢come inactive
on January 1, 2008. Consequently, by rule, the timation period for actuarial losses on the quadifU.S. pension
plan was changed to the average remaining life@apey of plan participants (28 years) resultinginextended
amortization period. The amount of the actuariaslsubject to amortization in 2010 and future yealide
$478 million. The effect on years beyond 2010 dépend substantially upon the actual experiencaioplans.

Disclosure of the significant assumptions usediiiviag at the 2009 net pension expense is predéante
Note 24,"Employee Benefit Plans,” in the Notes to ConsdkdbFinancial Statements. A sensitivity analysis of
projected 2010 net pension expense to changeyiorderlying assumptions for our primary plan, th&. pension
plan, is presented below.

Effect on
Impact on 2010 Ne' December 31, 200!
Assumed Rat Change Pension Expenst Projected Benefit Obligatior
Expected lon¢-term rate of
return on assets 7.65% +/-0.25%  —/+ $2.0 million
Discount rate increase 6.20% + 0.25% - $0.5 million - $37 million
Discount rate decreast 6.20% - 0.25% + $0.3 million + $37 million

Self-Insurance Accruals Self-insurance accruals were $243 million andéb2fllion as of December 31, 2009
and 2008, respectively. The majority of our sefftirance relates to vehicle liability and worke@mpensation. We
use a variety of statistical and actuarial methtbds are widely used and accepted in the insuremtestry to
estimate amounts for claims that have been repbréedot paid and claims incurred but not reportedpplying
these methods and assessing their results, wedeorssich factors as frequency and severity of daataim
development and payment patterns and changes imathee of our business, among other factors. $aatbrs are
analyzed for each of our business segments. Ounagss may
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be impacted by such factors as increases in thkaharice for medical services, unpredictabilitytioé size of jury
awards and limitations inherent in the estimatioocpss.

In recent years, our actual claim development leas lfavorable compared with historical selected los
development factors because of improved safetyopadnce, payment patterns and settlement patt@cming
2009, 2008, and 2007, we recorded a benefit of filbm $23 million, and $24 million, respectiveltg reduce
estimated prior years’ self-insured loss reserBesed on self-insurance accruals at December 8B, 205%
adverse change in actuarial claim loss estimatesgdincrease operating expense in 2010 by apprdrisgna
$11 million.

Goodwill Impairment. We assess goodwill for impairment, as describaddte 1, “Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies — Goodwill and Other Intangilssets,” in the Notes to Consolidated Financiat&hents,
on an annual basis or more often if deemed negessabecember 31, 2009, goodwill totaled $216 ioill To
determine whether goodwill impairment indicatorgsgxwe are required to assess the fair valueeféporting unit
and compare it to the carrying value. A reporting is a component of an operating segment for Wwhliscrete
financial information is available and managemegutarly reviews its operating performance.

Our valuation of fair value for each reporting usitletermined based on an average of discounteckfaash
flow models that use ten years of projected cashisfland various terminal values based on multiflesk value or
growth assumptions. We considered the currentrigadiultiples for comparable publicly-traded comgsrand the
historical pricing multiples for comparable merg@d acquisition transactions that have occurrediirindustry.
Rates used to discount cash flows are dependentinf@est rates and the cost of capital at a pnitime. Our
discount rates reflect a weighted average cosapital based on our industry and capital struchdijested for
equity risk premiums and size risk premiums basetharket capitalization. Estimates of future cdsiv$ are
dependent on our knowledge and experience abotiapdsurrent events and assumptions about conslitie
expect to exist, including long-term growth rateepital requirements and useful lives. Our estimafecash flows
are also based on historical and future operatamfppmance, economic conditions and actions we @xpeake. In
addition to these factors, our SCS reporting uaniésdependent on several key customers or indsstitprs. The
loss of a key customer may have a significant ihfmone of our SCS reporting units, causing usstgess whether
or not the event resulted in a goodwill impairmkeaists. While we believe our estimates of future dashs are
reasonable, there can be no assurance that datenoin economic conditions, customer relationshipadverse
changes to expectations of future performancenaiiloccur, resulting in a goodwill impairment lo§sir annual
impairment test performed as of April 1, 2009 did result in any impairment of goodwill. The exceégair value
over carrying value for each of our reporting umissof April 1, 2009, our annual testing date, eghfyom
approximately $4 million to approximately $315 naill. In order to evaluate the sensitivity of the falue
calculations on the goodwill impairment test, welal a hypothetical 5% decrease to the fair vabfessach
reporting unit. This hypothetical 5% decrease waekllt in excess fair value over carrying valuggiag from
approximately $3 million to approximately $214 nati for each of our reporting units.

Revenue Recognitionln the normal course of business, we may act as@an agent in executing transact
with our customers. The accounting issue encouthierthese arrangements is whether we should repeehue
based on the gross amount billed to the customen ¢ihe net amount received from the customer pfigments to
third parties. To the extent revenues are recootheal gross basis, any payments to third partiescam@ded as
expenses so that the net amount is reflected irareings. Accordingly, the impact on net earnilsghe same
whether we record revenue on a gross or net basis.

Determining whether revenue should be reported@ssgr net is based on an assessment of whethamrewe
acting as the principal or the agent in the tratisa@nd involves judgment based on the terms@ftinangement.
To the extent we are acting as the principal inttaesaction, revenue is reported on a gross bEsithe extent we
are acting as an agent in the transaction, revismaported on a net basis. In the
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majority of our arrangements, we are acting asrecipal and therefore report revenue on a gross bidswever,
our SCS husiness segment engages in some tramsasti@re we act as agents and thus record revenaaet
basis.

In transportation management arrangements whegcthas principal, revenue is reported on a grosts thar
subcontracted transportation billed to our cust@mierom time to time, the terms and conditionswf o
transportation management arrangements may chamgs) could require a change in revenue recognitiom a
gross basis to a net basis or vice versa. Our nasAFGmeasure of operating revenue would not be ingaafrom
this change in revenue reporting. Effective Jandar3008, our contractual relationship for certaamsportation
management services changed, and we determinedadfirmal review of the terms and conditionshaf $ervices,
that we were acting as an agent in the arrangemsrd.result, total revenue and subcontracted piatetion
expense decreased in 2008 due to the reportirgyehtie net of subcontracted transportation expénging 2007,
revenue associated with this portion of the comtnas $640 million.

Income Taxes.Our overall tax position is complex and requitageful analysis by management to estimate
expected realization of income tax assets andiliabi

Tax regulations require items to be included intthereturn at different times than the items aftected in the
financial statements. As a result, the effectivertde reflected in the financial statements ifedént than that
reported in the tax return. Some of these diffeesrare permanent, such as expenses that are netidédon the
tax return, and some are timing differences, ssctlegreciation expense. Timing differences createrced tax
assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets gdgesgiresent items that can be used as a tax dedumtcredit in the
tax return in future years for which we have alsesgtorded the tax benefit in the financial stateteeDeferred tax
assets amounted to $320 million and $405 milliobetember 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. We degor
valuation allowance for deferred tax assets togedwch assets to amounts expected to be realized.
December 31, 2009 and 2008, the deferred tax vatuatlowance, principally attributed to foreignxtioss
carryforwards in the SCS business segment, wasriiégn and $35 million, respectively. In determigi the
required level of valuation allowance, we consid@ether it is more likely than not that all or sopwtion of
deferred tax assets will not be realized. Thissssent is based on management’s expectationsxdsetber
sufficient taxable income of an appropriate chanaeill be realized within tax carryback and caonyfard periods.
Our assessment involves estimates and assumpbons matters that are inherently uncertain, anchiicipated
events or circumstances could cause actual rasutiffer from these estimates. Should we changeestimate of
the amount of deferred tax assets that we woulbbeto realize, an adjustment to the valuatioomadince would
result in an increase or decrease to the provisioimcome taxes in the period such a change imagt was made.

We are subject to tax audits in numerous jurisoitgiin the U.S. and around the world. Tax auditthieyr very
nature are often complex and can require seveaabyte complete. In the normal course of busingssare subject
to challenges from the Internal Revenue Servic&)l&d other tax authorities regarding amountsxag due.
These challenges may alter the timing or amourdxable income or deductions, or the allocatiomobme among
tax jurisdictions. As part of our calculation oktprovision for income taxes on earnings, we ddtexrwhether the
benefits of our tax positions are at least moreljilthan not of being sustained upon audit basetth@mechnical
merits of the tax position. For tax positions theg more likely than not of being sustained upatitawe accrue the
largest amount of the benefit that is more likélgrt not of being sustained in our consolidatedniire statements.
Such accruals require management to make estimatefsdgments with respect to the ultimate outcofreetax
audit. Actual results could vary materially fronesle estimates. See Note 14, “Income Taxes,” ilNttes to
Consolidated Financial Statements for further dismn of the status of tax audits and uncertairptesitions.
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RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

See Note 1, “Summary of Significant Accounting Biels — Recent Accounting Pronouncemeritsthe Note
to Consolidated Financial Statements for a disomssf recent accounting pronouncements.

NON-GAAP FINANCIAL MEASURES

This Annual Report on Form 10-K includes informatiextracted from consolidated financial informatimrt
not required by generally accepted accounting fpies (GAAP) to be presented in the financial stagats. Certain
of this information are considered “non-GAAP finaleneasuresés defined by SEC rules. Specifically, we refe
adjusted return on average capital, operating tevesalaries and employee-related costs as a pegeeof
operating revenue, FMS operating revenue, FMS NBa % of operating revenue, SCS operating reve3s,
NBT as a % of operating revenue, DCC operatingmegeDCC NBT as a % of operating revenue, totah
generated, free cash flow, total obligations, totdigations to equity, and comparable earningsmfoontinuing
operations and comparable earnings per diluted ammshare from continuing operations. We believé tira
comparable earnings from continuing operationsamparable earnings per diluted common share fiamtiraing
operations measures provide useful informatiomtestors because they exclude significant itemsatteaunrelated
to our ongoing business operations. As require8BE rules, we provide a reconciliation of each G¥AP
financial measure to the most comparable GAAP nreaaod an explanation why management believes that
presentation of the non-GAAP financial measure jples useful information to investors. Non-GAAP ficéal
measures should be considered in addition to, Giua® a substitute for or superior to, other messsaf financial
performance prepared in accordance with GAAP.

The following table provides a numerical recontitia of earnings from continuing operations befmeme
taxes to comparable earnings from continuing operatbefore income taxes for the years ended DeeeB1h
2007, 2006 and 2005 which was not provided withenD&A discussion:

Years ended December

2007 2006 2005

(In thousands
Earnings from continuing operations before income$ $402,20:  390,27* 357,37
Net restructuring charge 9,29( — —
Pension accounting char — 5,87z —
Gain on sale of proper (10,110 — —
Comparable earnings from continuing operationsfeeficome taxe $401,38: 396,14° 357,37
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The following table provides a numerical recontitia of earnings from continuing operations anchaays pel
diluted common share from continuing operationsamparable earnings from continuing operations and
comparable earnings per diluted common share framtirwuing operations for the years ended Decembg@07,

2006 and 2005 which was not provided within the MDdiscussion:

Years ended December

2007 2006 2005
(In thousands
Earnings from continuing operatio $251,77¢ 246,69: 228,76¢
Net restructuring charge 5,93t — —
Tax law change (3,339 (6,79€) (7,627)
Pension accounting char — 3,72 —
Gain on sale of proper (6,159 — —
Comparable earnings from continuing operati $248,22° 243,61t 221,14:
Earnings per diluted common share from continuipgrations $ 4.1¢ 3.9¢ 3.5¢
Net restructuring charge 0.1 — —
Tax law change (0.0¢) (0.17) (0.12)
Pension accounting char — 0.0€ —
Gain on sale of proper (0.10 — —
Comparable earnings per diluted common share fraamtiruing operation $ 4.1c 3.94 3.41

The following table provides a numerical recontitia of total revenue to operating revenue foryibars ende

December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 which was notigedwvithin the MD&A discussion:

Years ended December

2009 2008 2007
(In thousands
Total revenue $4,887,25. 5,999,04. 6,363,13!
FMS fuel services and SCS/DCC subcontracted trategjmn revenus (948,969 (1,648,43) (2,052,34)
Fuel elimination: 124,22: 239,47 204,29(
Operating revenu $4,062,51. 4,590,081 4,515,08!
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The following table provides a numerical recontitia of return on average shareholders’ equitydjosted
return on average capital for the years ended Dieeefil, 2009, 2008, 2007, 2006 and 2005 which was n
provided within the MD&A discussion:

Years ended December

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
(Dollars in thousands
Net earningq{A] $ 61,94F 199,88. 253,86: 248,95 226,92
Cumulative effect of change in accounting princ — — — 2,44(
Restructuring and other charges (recoveries), net
and other item() 29,94 70,44’ 1,467 — (1,749
Income taxe: 53,737 150,07 151,60: 144,01: 129,46(
Adjusted net earnings before income ta 145,62! 420,40: 406,93. 392,97 357,08t
Adjusted interest expen (@) 149,96¢ 164,97' 169,06( 146,568 127,07:
Adjusted income taxe®) (121,75 (230,45¢) (219,97) (207,18) (185,91)
Adjusted net earning[B] $ 173,83! 354,92¢ 356,02( 332,35! 298,24
Average total dek $2,691,56! 2,881,93 2,847,69. 2,480,31. 2,147,83
Average of-balance sheet de 141,62¢ 170,69¢ 150,12 98,767 147,85!
Average obligation[C] 2,833,19: 3,052,62! 2,997,811 2,579,08. 2,295,69:
Average shareholde’ equity[D] 1,395,62' 1,778,48' 1,790,81. 1,610,32i 1,554,71:
Average adjustments to sharehol’ equity (4 15,64¢ 9,60¢ 85E (5,114 (4,680
Average adjusted shareholc’ equity [E] 1,411,27. 1,788,09 1,791,66' 1,605,21. 1,550,03:
Average adjusted capit $4,244,47, 4,840,72; 4,789,48 4,184,29! 3,845,72!
Return on average sharehol¢ equity (%)[A/D] 4.4 11.2 14.Z 15.5 14.€
Adjusted return on average capital ([B]/[C+E] 4.1 7.3 7.4 7.8 7.8

(1) For 2009 and 2008, see Note“Discontinued operations,” Note 5, “Restructuringnd Other Charges” and Note 26, “Other
Iltems Impacting Comparabili” in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme2807 includes restructuring and other charges
(recoveries) of $11 million in the second half 602 and a gain of $10 million related to the salgmperty in the third quarter.
Restructuring and other charges (recoveries), met ather items not presented in this reconciliatieere not significant in the respecti
periods.

(2) Includes interest on c¢balance sheet vehicle obligatior

(3) Calculated by excluding taxes related to restruictgrand other charges (recoveries), net and ottems, impacts of tax law changes or
reserve reversals and interest expel

(4) Represents comparable earnings adjustments foectisie periods
SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Forward-looking statements (within the meaninghef Federal Private Securities Litigation Reform aict
1995) are statements that relate to expectati@tigfs, projections, future plans and strategiaicgated events or
trends concerning matters that are not historietlst These statements are often preceded bylodénthe words

“believe,” “expect,” “intend,” “estimate,” “anticigte,” “will,” “may,” “could,” “should” or

” " ” ” i, ” ”u ” o«
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similar expressions. This Annual Report contaimsvérd-looking statements including, but not limiteg
statements regarding:

« the status of our unrecognized tax benefits fol92@0ated to the U.S. federal, state and foreigrptasitions
and the impact of recent state tax law chan

e our expectations as to anticipated revenue andnggrtrends and future economic conditions spelfic
earnings per share, operating revenue, used vedalds results, contract revenue declines, nonafanef
automotive contracts, commercial rental growth famht volume projections

» the economic and business impact of our strategpndinue supply chain operations in the U.S., @apa
Mexico and Asia markets, discontinue supply chaierations in South America and Europe and carry out
workforce reductions

« the anticipated p-tax cost annual savings from our global cost savingiatives;

< our ability to successfully achieve the operatiayzdls that are the basis of our business strateigiduding
offering competitive pricing and value-added diffietiation, diversifying our customer base, optimigi
asset utilization, leveraging the expertise ofvanious business segments, serving our customiefsalg
needs and expanding our support servi

« impact of losses from conditional obligations argsfrom guarantee:

< number of NLE vehicles in inventory, and the siteur commercial rental fleet, for the remaindettod
year;

« estimates of free cash flow and capital expenditéwe 2010;

« the adequacy of our accounting estimates and reséov pension expense, depreciation and residlaév
guarantees, seinsurance reserves, goodwill impairment, accountimgnges and income tax

« our ability to fund all of our operations for theréseeable future through internally generated<amtl
outside funding source

e our expected level of use of outside funding sasii
« the anticipated impact of fuel price fluctuatio

e our expectations as to future pension expense amttiloutions, the impact of pension legislationyasl as
the effect of the freeze of our pension plans anbamefit funding requirement

e our expectations relating to withdrawal liabilitycafunding levels of mul-employer plans

« the anticipated deferral of tax gains on dispo$aligible revenue earning equipment pursuant to ou
vehicle like-kind exchange prograr

e our expectations regarding the completion and altitmoutcome of certain tax audi

« the anticipated effects of our decision to resunmestiare repurchase progre

« the ultimate disposition of legal proceedings astihgated environmental liabilitie

e our expectations relating to compliance with negufatory requirements; ar

e our expectations regarding the effect of the adoptif recent accounting pronounceme

These statements, as well as other forward-lookiagements contained in this Annual Report, aredas our
current plans and expectations and are subjectis, uncertainties and assumptions. We cautiottersahat certai
important factors could cause actual results arditsvto differ significantly from those

59




Table of Contents

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS — (Co ntinued)

expressed in any forward-looking statements. Fatailed description of certain of these risk festplease see
“ltem 1A. Risk Factors” of this Annual Report.

The risks included in the Annual Report are notagitive. New risk factors emerge from time to tenel it is
not possible for management to predict all sudhfastors or to assess the impact of such rislofaain our
business. As a result, no assurance can be givitenoas future results or achievements. You showldplace undue
reliance on the forward-looking statements conthimerein, which speak only as of the date of thisu#al Report.
We do not intend, or assume any obligation, to tgpdarevise any forward-looking statements corgim this
Annual Report, whether as a result of new infororatfuture events or otherwise.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK
The information required by ITEM 7A is includedlifEM 7 (page 50) of PART Il of this report.
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MANAGEMENT'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANC IAL REPORTING

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF RYDER SYSTEM, INC.:

Management of Ryder System, Inc., together witledtssolidated subsidiaries (Ryder), is respondixie
establishing and maintaining adequate internalrobover financial reporting as defined in Rulea135(f) and
15d-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1$84der’s internal control over financial reportirsgdesigned to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the réyabflfinancial reporting and the preparation lo¢ ttonsolidated
financial statements for external purposes in a@ore with accounting principles generally accepigtie United
States of America.

Ryder’s internal control over financial reportinieiudes those policies and procedures that (1xipetd the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detlrately and fairly reflect the transactions disgpositions of the
assets of Ryder; (2) provide reasonable assurhatéransactions are recorded as necessary totgeeparation of
financial statements in accordance with generalbepted accounting principles, and that our reseiptl
expenditures are being made only in accordanceamthorizations of Ryder's management and directord
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prereatitimely detection of unauthorized acquisitiose or
disposition of Ryder’s assets that could have @nwteffect on the consolidated financial statetpen

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or déte
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluatibeffectiveness to future periods are subjechéorisk that
controls may become inadequate because of chamgesditions, or that the degree of compliance Withpolicies
or procedures may deteriorate.

Management assessed the effectiveness of Rydeztaah control over financial reporting as of Detem31,
2009. In making this assessment, management useditéria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission in “Ing¢i@ontrol — Integrated Framework.” Based on our
assessment and those criteria, management detertheteRyder maintained effective internal contreér financia
reporting as of December 31, 2009.

Ryder’s independent registered certified publiccaicting firm has audited the effectiveness of Rigleternal
control over financial reporting. Their report appeon page 63.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED CERTIFIED PUBLIC A CCOUNTING FIRM

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SHAREHOLDERS OF
RYDER SYSTEM, INC.:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated bhadasheets and the related consolidated statenfents o
earnings, shareholders’ equity, and cash flowsaprtefgirly, in all material respects, the finangalkition of Ryder
System, Inc. and its subsidiaries at December 329 2nd 2008, and the results of their operationstieir cash
flows for each of the three years in the periodeghDecember 31, 2009 in conformity with accounprigciples
generally accepted in the United States of Ametitaddition, in our opinion, the financial statamhechedule liste
in the accompanying index presents fairly, in adltemial respects, the information set forth theveiren read in
conjunction with the related consolidated finanstattements. Also in our opinion, the Company nadied, in all
material respects, effective internal control diegincial reporting as of December 31, 2009, basedriteria
established in Internal Control - Integrated Framewssued by the Committee of Sponsoring Orgaitiratof the
Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company’s manageimeasponsible for these financial statements and
financial statement schedule, for maintaining effecinternal control over financial reporting aftd its assessment
of the effectiveness of internal control over fingh reporting, included in the accompanying Mamaget's Report
on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Oesponsibility is to express opinions on these fimarstatements,
on the financial statement schedule and on the @awig internal control over financial reporting bedson our
integrated audits. We conducted our audits in atzomre with the standards of the Public Company Aating
Oversight Board (United States). Those standamgisinethat we plan and perform the audits to obta&sonable
assurance about whether the financial statemeatises of material misstatement and whether effedtiternal
control over financial reporting was maintainedglhmaterial respects. Our audits of the finanstatements
included examining, on a test basis, evidence stipgahe amounts and disclosures in the finarstaements,
assessing the accounting principles used and &ignifestimates made by management, and evaluagngverall
financial statement presentation. Our audit ofrimaécontrol over financial reporting included dbtag an
understanding of internal control over financiglagiing, assessing the risk that a material weakegssts, and
testing and evaluating the design and operatirgcgffeness of internal control based on the asdesde Our audi
also included performing such other proceduresexsamsidered necessary in the circumstances. Visvbehat ou
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated findrst&ements, in 2007 the Company changed its rdaiho
accounting for uncertainty in income taxes.

A company'’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonablesass
regarding the reliability of financial reportingathe preparation of financial statements for exaepurposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting ipfeez A company’s internal control over finanaiaporting
includes those policies and procedures that (fppeto the maintenance of records that, in redsengetail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions disgositions of the assets of the company; (iiyvjule reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as ngctsparmit preparation of financial statementadcordance wit
generally accepted accounting principles, andréipts and expenditures of the company are breadg only in
accordance with authorizations of management anedtdirs of the company; and (iii) provide reasoaassurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauitexd acquisition, use, or disposition of the comps assets that
could have a material effect on the financial stegets.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or dete
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluatibeffectiveness to future periods are subjechéorisk that
controls may become inadequate because of chamgesdlitions, or that the degree of compliance wWithpolicies
or procedures may deteriorate.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

February 12, 2010
Miami, Florida
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RYDER SYSTEM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS

Years ended December

2009 2008 2007
(In thousands, except per share amot
Revenue $4,887,25. 5,999,04. 6,363,13I
Operating expense (exclusive of items shown segls: 2,229,53" 2,959,511 2,739,95
Salaries and employ-related cost 1,233,24. 1,345,211 1,348,21.
Subcontracted transportati 198,86( 233,10¢ 868,43"
Depreciation expens 881,21¢ 836,14¢ 810,54«
Gains on vehicle sales, r (12,299 (39,020 (44,090
Equipment rente 65,82¢ 78,29: 86,41°
Interest expens 144,34 152,44 155,97(
Miscellaneous (income) expense, (3,657%) 2,56¢ (15,309
Restructuring and other charges, 6,40¢ 21,48( 10,79t
4,743,48' 5,589,75. 5,960,92
Earnings from continuing operations before income$ 143,76¢ 409,28t 402,20«
Provision for income taxe 53,65: 151,70¢ 150,42!
Earnings from continuing operatio 90,11" 257,57¢ 251,77¢
(Loss) earnings from discontinued operations, hédo (28,177) (57,699 2,082
Net earningt $ 61,94 199,88: 253,86:
Earnings (loss) per common sh— Basic
Continuing operation $ 1.62 4.54 4.22
Discontinued operatior (0.57) (1.02) 0.0z
Net earning: $ 1.11 3.5z 4.2t
Earnings (loss) per common sh— Diluted
Continuing operation $ 1.6Z 4.51 4.1¢
Discontinued operatior (0.57) (1.07) 0.0:
Net earningt $ 1.11 3.5C 4.22

See accompanying notes to consolidated financééstents.
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RYDER SYSTEM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 3:
2009 2008
(Dollars in thousands, except
per share amoun

Assets:
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivale $ 98,52 120,30!
Receivables, ne 598,66: 635,37¢
Inventories 50,14¢ 48,324
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 133,04: 153,57¢
Total current asse 880,37: 957,58:
Revenue earning equipment, net of accumulated diegian of $3,013,179 and
$2,749,654, respective 4,178,65' 4,565,22
Operating property and equipment, net of accumdldepreciation of $855,657 and
$842,427, respective 543,91( 546,81t
Goodwill 216,44 198,25:
Intangible assel 39,12( 36,70¢
Direct financing leases and other as: 401,32 384,92¢
Total asset $6,259,83( 6,689,50!

Liabilities and shareholde equity:
Current liabilities:

Shor-term debt and current portion of Ic-term debt $ 232,61 384,26:
Accounts payabl 262,71: 295,08
Accrued expenses and other current liabili 354,94! 431,82(
Total current liabilities 850,27 1,111,16!
Long-term debt 2,265,07. 2,478,53
Other nol-current liabilities 681,61: 837,28(
Deferred income taxe 1,035,87. 917,36!
Total liabilities 4,832,831 5,344,34

Shareholder equity:
Preferred stock of no par value per share — authdri3,800,917; none outstanding
December 31, 2009 or 20! — —
Common stock of $0.50 par value per share — autbdyi400,000,000; outstanding,

2009— 53,419,721; 200— 55,658,05¢ 26,71( 27,82¢
Additional paic-in capital 743,02¢ 756,19(
Retained earning 1,036,17: 1,105,36!
Accumulated other comprehensive |i (378,919 (544,22)

Total shareholde’ equity 1,426,99' 1,345,16:
Total liabilities and sharehold¢ equity $6,259,83( 6,689,50!

See accompanying notes to consolidated financédstents.
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RYDER SYSTEM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years ended December
2009 2008 2007
(In thousands

Cash flows from operating activities of continuimgerations

Net earnings $ 61,94¢ 199,88: 253,86
Less: (Loss) earnings from discontinued operatinaspf tax (28,179) (57,699 2,082
Earnings from continuing operatio 90,117 257,57¢ 251,77¢
Depreciation expens 881,21¢ 836,14¢ 810,54«
Gains on vehicle sales, r (12,297 (39,020 (44,090
Goodwill impairmen — 10,32 —
Shar-based compensation expel 16,40 17,07¢ 16,75¢
Amortization expense and other -cash charges, n 41,30: 14,941 14,99¢
Deferred income tax expen 92,68: 128,80( 64,19¢
Tax (charge) benefits from sh-based compensati (425 1,151 1,45¢
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, natqfiisitions
Receivable: 19,47¢ 173,87 63,49
Inventories (1,087 10,497 1,40¢
Prepaid expenses and other as (11,589 (33,36() 5,31¢
Accounts payabl 15,57( (109,149 (19,04
Accrued expenses and other -current liabilities (146,42f) (20,695) (70,25%)
Net cash provided by operating activities of camitiig operation: 984,95¢ 1,248,16! 1,096,55!
Cash flows from financing activities of continuingerations
Net change in commercial paper borrowii 148,25t (522,31) (159,77)
Debt proceed 2,01¢ 744,00 506,10!
Debt repaid, including capital lease obligatir (519,710  (118,64) (435,399
Dividends on common stoc (53,339 (52,23¢) (50,157
Common stock issue 7,44 54,71% 42,34(
Common stock repurchas (116,28)  (256,13) (209,019
Excess tax benefits from sh-based compensatic 77t 6,471 3,371
Debt issuance cos (11,179 (4,019 (2,089
Net cash used in financing activities of continuamgerations (542,01  (148,15) (304,60()
Cash flows from investing activities of continuiogerations
Purchases of property and revenue earning equig (651,95) (1,230,40) (1,304,03)
Sales of revenue earning equipm 211,00: 257,67¢ 354,73t
Sales of operating property and equipn 4,63¢ 3,721 18,72¢
Sale and leaseback of revenue earning equip — 150,34¢
Acquisitions (88,879  (246,99) (75,22¢)
Collections on direct finance leas 65,24: 61,09¢ 62,34¢
Changes in restricted ca 11,12¢ 51,02¢ (19,68¢)
Other, ne 20¢ 39t 1,58¢
Net cash used in investing activities of continuipgrations (448,610 (1,103,46) (811,207)
Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢ 1,794 1,40¢ 6,73¢
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents from congiraperation: (3,876 (2,049 (12,509
Cash flows from discontinued operatio
Operating cash flow (25,73)) 7,362 6,38(
Financing cash flow (9,427 (2,479 5,397
Investing cash flow 16,66¢ 67€ (12,019
Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢ 591 327 56¢
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalentsdiscontinued operatiol (17,909 5,88¢ 32¢
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equive (21,780 3,84¢ (22,180
Cash and cash equivalents at Janue 120,30! 116,45¢ 128,63
Cash and cash equivalents at Decembe $ 98,52¢ 120,30 116,45¢

See accompanying notes to consolidated financédstents.
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RYDER SYSTEM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Balance at January 1, 20

Components of comprehensive incor
Net earnings
Foreign currency translation adjustme
Unrealized loss related to derivativ
Amortization of pension and postretirement iten&t, of tax of
$(5,808)
Pension curtailment gain, net of tax of $(5,9
Change in net actuarial loss, net of tax of $(14):
Total comprehensive incon
Common stock dividends pa— $0.84 per shar
Common stock issued under employee stock optiorstouk purchase
plans®
Benefit plan stock sale
Common stock repurchas
Shar«-based compensatic
Tax benefits from sha-based compensatic
Adoption of accounting guidance for uncertain tasifions®
Balance at December 31, 20

Components of comprehensive incor
Net earnings
Foreign currency translation adjustme
Net unrealized loss related to derivati
Amortization of pension and postretirement iten&t, of tax of
$(1,344)
Pension curtailment loss, net of tax of $¢
Change in net actuarial loss, net of tax of $188
Total comprehensive lo:
Common stock dividends pa— $0.92 per shar
Common stock issued under employee stock optiorstuk purchase
plans®)
Benefit plan stock sale@
Common stock repurchas
Shar«-based compensatic
Tax benefits from sha-based compensatic
Balance at December 31, 20

Components of comprehensive incor
Net earnings
Foreign currency translation adjustme
Net unrealized gain related to derivati
Amortization of pension and postretirement iten&t, of tax of
$(7,930)
Pension curtailment loss, net of tax of $4,!
Change in net actuarial loss, net of tax of $(38)¢
Total comprehensive incon
Common stock dividends pa— $0.96 per shar
Common stock issued under employee stock optiorstouk purchase
plans®)
Benefit plan stock sale)
Common stock repurchas
Shar«-based compensatic
Tax benefits from sha-based compensatic

Balance at December 31, 20

Accumulatec
Preferre Additional Other
Stock Common Stocl Paic-In Retainec  Comprehensiv
Amount Shares Par Capital Earnings Loss Total
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amot
$ — 60,721,52 $30,22( 713,26 1,123,78 (146,494 1,720,77
— — — — 253,86 —  253,86:
— — — — — 62,05! 62,05!
= = = = = (52) (52)
— — — — — 11,26¢ 11,26¢
— — — — — 10,51( 10,51(
— — — — — 31,83¢ 31,83¢
369,47¢
— — — — (50,152 — (50,153
— 1,202,16! 604 41,69( — — 42,29
— 364 — 46 — — 46
— (3,882,49) (1,941 (47,139 (159,939 — (209,019
— — — 16,75 — — 16,75
— — — 483t — — 4,83t
— — — (7,427 — (7,427)
— 58,041,56 28,88: 729,45. 1,160,13 (30,877 1,887,58!
— — — — 199,88 — 199,88
— — — — — (180,819 (180,819
— — — — — (119 (119
_ _ — — — 2,56¢ 2,56¢
— — — — — (1,287%) (1,287%)
— — — — — (333,689 (333,689
(313,46¢)
— — — — (52,239 — (52,239
— 1,593,07 934 53,49t — — 54,43(
— 1,85¢ 1 28z — — 282
— (3,978,43) (1,989 (51,73) (202,400 —  (256,13)
— — — 17,07¢ — — 17,07¢
— — — 7,622 — — 7,622
— 55,658,05 27,82¢ 756,19( 1,105,36' (544,22) 1,345,16.
— — — — 61,94 — 61,94
— — — — 96,89¢  96,89¢
— — — — — 14¢ 14¢
— — — — — 14,28 14,28
— — — — — (12,059 (12,059
— — — — — 66,03 66,03
227,25:
_ — — — (53,33 —  (53,33)
— 483,27( 24z 6,90¢ — — 7,14¢
— 4,67: 2 29z — — 294
— (2,726,28) (1,369 (37,119 (77,802 —  (116,28)
— — — 16,40 = —  16,40¢
— — — 35¢ — — 35¢C
$ — 53,419,72 $26,71( 743,02¢ 1,036,17: (378,919 1,426,99

(1) Net of common shares delivered as payment forteecise price or to satisfy the hold’ withholding tax liability upon exercise of optiol
(2) Represents op-market transactions of common shares by the trusft@&yde’s deferred compensation plai
(3) See Note 2, “Accounting Changes,” in the Notes @ogolidated Financial Statements for additionabimfiation related to the adoption of

accounting guidance on uncertain tax positic

See accompanying notes to consolidated financédstents.
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RYDER SYSTEM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Consolidation and Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include twants of Ryder System, Inc. (Ryder) and all &#iin
which Ryder has a controlling voting interest (“sidiaries”) and variable interest entities (“VIEsthere Ryder is
determined to be the primary beneficiary. Rydetaemed to be the primary beneficiary if we bearagonity of the
risk to the entities’ potential losses or standat from a majority of the entities’ expected resi All significant
intercompany accounts and transactions betweerolidated companies have been eliminated in coresiddid.
Certain prior year amounts have been reclassifiedhform to the current period presentation. Inngtion with
preparation of the consolidated financial statesiene evaluated subsequent events after the badtieet date of
December 31, 2009 through the date of issuanceu&sbl2, 2010.

In December of 2008, we announced strategic iiiéatto improve our competitive advantage and diong-
term profitable growth. As part of these initiasyeve decided to discontinue Supply Chain Solut{@GS)
operations in South America and Europe. In thes@d@lf of 2009, we ceased service operations uttSAmerica
and Europe. Accordingly, results of these operatifinancial position and cash flows are separatgprted as
discontinued operations for all periods presentdeein the Consolidated Financial Statementsates thereto.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of our consolidated financial stegets requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts reported icdhsolidated financial statements and accompanyabgs. Thes
estimates are based on management’s best knowdédhigtorical trends, actions that we may takehim future, and
other information available when the consolidaiedricial statements are prepared. Changes in éstrage
recognized in accordance with the accounting ridethe estimate, which is typically in the peritien new
information becomes available. Areas where thereaifithe estimate make it reasonably possibleatiatal results
could materially differ from the amounts estimatedude: depreciation and residual value guarantm®ployee
benefit plan obligations, self-insurance accruatpairment assessments on long-lived assets (imgugbodwill
and indefinite-lived intangible assets), revenumgaition, allowance for accounts receivable, inedax liabilities
and contingent liabilities.

Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents represent cash in excess of ¢upenating requirements invested in short-ternerest-
bearing instruments with maturities of three mortthkess at the date of purchase and are statabat

Restricted Cash

Restricted cash primarily consists of cash procémuis the sale of eligible vehicles or operatingperty set
aside for the acquisition of replacement vehiclegperating property under our like-kind excharepegrograms.
See Note 14, “Income Taxes,” for a complete disonssf the vehicle like-kind exchange tax prograffe classify
restricted cash within “Prepaid expenses and atheent assets” if the restriction is expectedxpire in the twelve
months following the balance sheet date or witlidiréct financing leases and other assets” if tistricion is
expected to expire more than twelve months afeebtdance sheet date. The changes in restrictbcbadences are
reflected as an investing activity in our ConsdiédbStatements of Cash Flows as they relate tedles and
purchases of revenue earning equipment and opgataperty and equipment.
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Revenue Recognition

We generate revenue primarily through the leasgarand maintenance of revenue earning equiprmmeht a
services rendered under service contracts. We niEmmgevenue when persuasive evidence of an amaneexists
the services have been rendered to customersiveidehas occurred, the pricing is fixed or deteratile, and
collectibility is reasonably assured. We are regglito make judgments about whether pricing is figed
determinable and whether or not collectibility éasonably assured.

Revenue is recorded on a gross basis, without diedutbird-party services costs, when we are acii®g
principal with substantial risks and rewards of ewahip. Revenue is recorded on a net basis, adthrating third-
party services costs, when we are acting as art agerout substantial risks and rewards of owngrsBales tax
collected from customers and remitted to the applie taxing authorities is accounted for on a asid) with no
impact on revenue.

In addition to the aforementioned general poliby, following are the specific revenue recognitiatigies for
our reportable business segments by major revamaegement:

Fleet Management Solutions (FV

Our full service lease arrangements include leatigatables such as the lease of a vehicle andxbeutory
agreement for the maintenance, insurance and tdxhe leased equipment during the lease term andease
deliverables. Arrangement consideration is allatéietween lease deliverables and non-lease ddbiesrdased on
management’s best estimate of the relative fainevaf each deliverable. The arrangement consideratlocated to
lease deliverables is accounted for pursuant towatérg guidance on leases. Our full service leasEngements
provide for a fixed charge billing and a variablage billing based on mileage or time usage. Fetedges are
typically billed at the beginning of the month tbe services to be provided that month. Variabkrgés are
typically billed a month in arrears. Costs ass@&datith the activities performed under our fulhdee leasing
arrangements are primarily comprised of labor,atitside work, depreciation, interest, licensesjrance,
operating taxes and vehicle rent. These costsxgeneed as incurred except for depreciation. Refé8ummary of
Significant Accounting Policies — Revenue Earnirguipment, Operating Property and Equipment, and
Depreciation” for information regarding our depegn policies.

Revenue from lease and rental agreements is doiyeine classification of the arrangement typicaltyeither
an operating or direct finance lease (DFL).

« The majority of our leases and all of our rentahagements are classified as operating leasesharefare,
we recognize lease and rental revenue on a striighlbasis as it becomes receivable over the tdriine
lease or rental arrangement. Lease and rentalragrdae do not usually provide for scheduled rentaases
or escalations. However, lease agreements allovaferchanges based upon changes in the Consuiver Pr
Index (CPI). Lease and rental agreements provida fome charge plus a fixed per-mile charge. Tkedf
time charge, the fixed per-mile charge and the ghaiin rates attributed to changes in the CPI are
considered contingent rentals and recognized a®e:

* The non-lease deliverables of our full service éemsangements are comprised of access to substitut
vehicles, emergency road service, and safety sssvichese services are available to our customers
throughout the lease term. Accordingly, revenueéegnized on a strai¢-line basis over the lease ter

« Direct financing lease revenue is recognized uiegeffective interest method, which provides astant
periodic rate of return on the outstanding invesihoa the lease

Under our contract maintenance arrangements, weadaonaintenance and repairs required to keep izheeh
good operating condition, schedule mechanical priave maintenance inspections and access to
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emergency road service and substitute vehiclesvaltemajority of our services are routine servipegormed on
recurring basis throughout the term of the arrargygnf-rom time to time, we provide non-routine magpair
services in order to place a vehicle back in serMRevenue from maintenance service contracteignézed on a
straight-line basis as maintenance services adered over the terms of the related arrangemenotsract
maintenance arrangements are generally cancelaitiut penalty, after one year with 60 days primitten notice
Our maintenance service arrangement provides fioorathly fixed charge and a monthly variable chdrgsed on
mileage or time usage. Fixed charges are typidéllgd at the beginning of the month for the seegito be provide
that month. Variable charges are typically billeshanth in arrears. Contract maintenance agreenadiots for rate
changes based upon changes in the CPI. The fixeohifeecharge and the changes in rates attributethanges in
the CPI are recognized as earned. Costs assouwiitethe activities performed under our contracintenance
arrangements are primarily comprised of labor,gpatitside work, licenses, insurance and operaixgs. These
costs are expensed as incurred.

Revenue from fuel services is recognized whenifudtlivered to customers.

Supply Chain Solutions (SCS) and Dedicated Contactiage (DCC)

Revenue from service contracts is recognized agcgsrare rendered in accordance with contractgewhich
typically include discrete billing rates for thengees. In transportation management arrangememnésewve act as
principal, revenue is reported on a gross basitiont deducting third-party purchased transpontatiosts. To the
extent that we are acting as an agent in the agraagt, revenue is reported on a net basis, afteratieg purchase
transportation costs. Effective January 1, 2008 coutractual relationship for certain transpodatmanagement
services changed, and we determined, after a faewew of the terms and conditions of the seryitlest we were
acting as an agent in the arrangement. As a résalgmount of total revenue and subcontractedpatation
expense decreased due to the reporting of revestusf subcontracted transportation expense. D@y, revenu
associated with this portion of the contract wa4Gillion.

Accounts Receivable Allowance

We maintain an allowance for uncollectible custoneeeivables and an allowance for billing adjustteen
related to certain discounts and billing corredidistimates are updated regularly based on hiat@kperience of
bad debts and billing adjustments processed, ducatiection trends and aging analysis. Accounéscirarged
against the allowance when determined to be uratdile. The allowance is maintained at a level degm
appropriate based on loss experience and othersaaftfecting collectibility. Historical results maot necessarily
be indicative of future results.

Inventories

Inventories, which consist primarily of fuel, tiraad vehicle parts, are valued using the lower aifjhted-
average cost or market.

Revenue Earning Equipment, Operating Property and uipment, and Depreciation

Revenue earning equipment, comprised of vehicldsoaerating property and equipment are initiallyoreled
at cost inclusive of vendor rebates. Revenue egmijuipment and operating property and equipmethéucapital
lease are initially recorded at the lower of thegant value of minimum lease payments or fair valiehicle repair:
and maintenance that extend the life or increasedlue of a vehicle are capitalized, whereas argimaintenance
and repairs are expensed as incurred. The cogthidle replacement tires and tire repairs are esgeas incurred.
Direct costs incurred in connection with developargbtaining internal-use software are capitalizéosts incurred
during the preliminary software development progage, as well as maintenance and training catexpensed
as incurred.
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Leasehold improvements are depreciated over thiteshad their estimated useful lives or the ternihaf relate
lease, which may include one or more option reng&ebds where failure to exercise such optionsldieesult in
an economic penalty in such amount that renewagasp at the inception of the lease, to be reaspaabured. If a
substantial additional investment is made in addgwoperty during the term of the lease, we rduea the lease
term to determine whether the investment, togetliger any penalties related to non-renewal, wouldstibute an
economic penalty in such amount that renewal apgpedse reasonably assured.

Provision for depreciation is computed using thmaight-line method on all depreciable assets. Wgdieally
review and adjust, as appropriate, the residualesaand useful lives of revenue earning equipn@umt.review of
the residual values and useful lives of revenureiegrequipment, is established with a long-termmwi@nsidering
historical market price changes, current and exqoefttture market price trends, expected life oficlels and extent
of alternative uses. Factors that could cause basgalts to materially differ from estimates indgéubut are not
limited to unforeseen changes in technology innownat

We routinely dispose of used revenue earning eqeiipras part of our FMS business. Revenue earning
equipment held for sale is stated at the loweraofying amount or fair value less costs to selt. ilevenue earning
equipment held for sale, we stratify our fleet l@hicle type (tractors, trucks, and trailers), weiglass, age and
other relevant characteristics and create cladssimdar assets for analysis purposes. Fair vauketermined base
upon recent market prices obtained from our owessekperience for sales of each class of simikatasnd vehic
condition. Reductions in the carrying values ofigkds held for sale are recorded within “Depreciatexpense” in
the Consolidated Statements of Earnings. While @liebe our estimates of residual values and fdirasof
revenue earning equipment are reasonable, chamges estimates of values may occur due to chainghe
market for used vehicles, the condition of the glgs, and inherent limitations in the estimatioogass.

Gains and losses on sales of operating propertequiggment are reflected in “Miscellaneous (income)
expense, net.”

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill and other intangible assets with indeéniseful lives are not amortized, but rather, eséed for
impairment at least annually (Aprilsl). In addition to the annual goodwill impairmensgtiean interim test for
goodwill impairment is completed when an eventiorumnstances change between annual tests that wouriel
likely than not reduce the fair value of the repaytunit below its carrying value. Recoverabilitygmodwill is
evaluated using a two-step process. The firstisteglves a comparison of the fair value of eaclwf reporting
units with its carrying amount. If a reporting usitarrying amount exceeds its fair value, the sdcsiep is
performed. The second step involves a compariséneoimplied fair value and carrying value of thepporting
unit’s goodwill. To the extent that a reporting tsicarrying amount exceeds the implied fair vadfiéis goodwill,
an impairment loss is recognized. Identifiable mgidle assets not subject to amortization are asdd®sr
impairment by comparing the fair value of the irgidnte asset to its carrying amount. An impairmesslis
recognized for the amount by which the carryingieadxceeds fair value.

In making our assessments of fair value, we relpumknowledge and experience about past and dugvemts
and assumptions about conditions we expect to.e)igse assumptions are based on a number offactduding
future operating performance, economic conditiaetions we expect to take, and present value tqabei Rates
used to discount future cash flows are depende ugerest rates and the cost of capital at atpoeitime. There
are inherent uncertainties related to these faetodsmanagement’s judgment in applying them taatiedysis of
goodwill impairment. It is possible that assumpsi@mderlying the impairment analysis will changsiich a
manner that impairment in value may occur in tharkl
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Intangible assets with finite lives are amortizedrtheir respective estimated useful lives tortbstimated
residual values. Identifiable intangible assets #éina subject to amortization are evaluated foraimpent using a
process similar to that used to evaluate long-lasskets described below.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets Other than Goodwill

Long-lived assets held and used, including revesauring equipment, operating property and equipraedt
intangible assets with finite lives, are testedrémoverability when circumstances indicate thatdhrrying amount
of assets may not be recoverable. Recoverabilityraf-lived assets is evaluated by comparing theyicey amount
of an asset or asset group to management’s basaésof the undiscounted future operating cashdl¢excluding
interest charges) expected to be generated bystet ar asset group. If these comparisons indibatehe asset or
asset group is not recoverable, an impairmentitosscognized for the amount by which the carryiatpe of the
asset or asset group exceeds fair value. Fair valdetermined by quoted market price, if availablean estimate
of projected future operating cash flows, discodntsing a rate that reflects the related operat@gnent’s average
cost of funds. Long-lived assets to be disposadadfiding revenue earning equipment, operating @rypand
equipment and indefinite-lived intangible assets,raported at the lower of carrying amount or Yailue less costs
to sell.

Debt Issuance Costs

Costs incurred to issue debt are deferred and @mdras a component of interest expense over theated
term of the related debt using the effective irgerate method.

Contract Incentives

Payments made to or on behalf of a lessee or cestopon entering into a lease of our revenue egrnin
equipment or contract are deferred and recognipesi siraight-line basis as a reduction of reveruge the contract
term. Amounts to be amortized in the next year Haen classified as “Prepaid expenses and othentuassets”
with the remainder included in “Direct financinges and other assets.”

Self-Insurance Accruals

We retain a portion of the accident risk under gkhiiability, workers’ compensation and other irence
programs. Under our insurance programs, we reft@misk of loss in various amounts up to $3 millamna per
occurrence basis. Self-insurance accruals are lpasedrily on an actuarially estimated, undiscodntest of
claims, which includes claims incurred but not mégd. Such liabilities are based on estimates ol loss
development factors are utilized to project theifeitdevelopment of incurred losses, and these aisiaua adjusted
based upon actual claim experience and settlemafiite we believe that the amounts are adequagee tban be n
assurance that changes to our estimates may nat dge to limitations inherent in the estimationgess. Changes
in the estimates of these accruals are chargeckdited to earnings in the period determined. Ant®estimated to
be paid within the next year have been classifethacrued expenses and other current liabilitiwgh the
remainder included in “Other non-current liabiliie

We also maintain additional insurance at certaioams in excess of our respective underlying reiant
Amounts recoverable from insurance companies areffset against the related accrual as our inggaolicies dt
not extinguish or provide legal release from thigalion to make payments related to such riskteeldosses.
Amounts expected to be received within the next jr@n insurance companies have been included mvithi
“Receivables, net” with the remainder included Diréct financing leases and other assets” andes@gnized only
when realization of the claim for recovery is caiesed probable. The accrual for the related claslieen
classified within “Accrued expenses and other qurhiabilities” if it is estimated to be paid withthe next year,
otherwise it has been classified in “Other non-enttiabilities.”
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Residual Value Guarantees and Deferred Gains

We periodically enter into agreements for the salé operating leaseback of revenue earning equipmieese
leases contain purchase and (or) renewal optionelas limited guarantees of the lessor’s redidahie (‘residua
value guarantees”). We review the residual vald@sw@®nue earning equipment that we lease frond thérties and
our exposures under residual value guaranteesteli@mv is conducted in a manner similar to thatuseanalyze
residual values and fair values of owned revenueirgg equipment. The residual value guarantees@mditioned
on termination of the lease prior to its contrattease term. The amount of residual value guaesnéspected to t
paid is recognized as rent expense over the exppesteaining term of the lease. Adjustments in ttereate of
residual value guarantees are recognized prospéctiver the expected remaining lease term. Whéebelieve the
the amounts are adequate, changes to our estiofaesidual value guarantees may occur due to @saimgthe
market for used vehicles, the condition of the gkds at the end of the lease and inherent limitatia the
estimation process. See Note 19, “Guaranteesgdditional information.

Gains on the sale and operating leaseback of reveauning equipment are deferred and amortized on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease i@slaction of rent expense.

Income Taxes

Our provision for income taxes is based on repogtatiings before income taxes. Deferred taxeseamgnize:
for the future tax effects of temporary differenbesween the financial statement carrying amouhéxisting asse!
and liabilities and their respective tax basesgutix rates in effect for the years in which thiéedéences are
expected to reverse. The effects of changes ifates on deferred tax balances are recognized ipg¢hed the new
legislation is enacted. Valuation allowances acegeized to reduce deferred tax assets to the antiwairis more
likely than not to be realized. In assessing tkelilhood of realization, management considers eggmof future
taxable income. We calculate our current and dedfietaix position based on estimates and assumgtiahsould
differ from the actual results reflected in incotag returns filed in subsequent years. Adjustmbated on filed
returns are recorded when identified.

We are subject to tax audits in numerous jurisdingiin the U.S. and around the world. Tax auditthleyr very
nature are often complex and can require seveeabyte complete. In the normal course of busingssare subject
to challenges from the IRS and other tax autharitegjarding amounts of taxes due. These challanggslter the
timing or amount of taxable income or deductionghe allocation of income among tax jurisdictiovie determin
whether the benefits of our tax positions are nlikedy than not of being sustained upon audit basethe technici
merits of the tax position. For tax positions theg at least more likely than not of being susthimgon audit, we
recognize the largest amount of the benefit thatase likely than not of being sustained in oursmidated
financial statements. For all other tax positiome,do not recognize any portion of the benefitun consolidated
financial statements. To the extent that our agsessof such tax positions changes, the changstimate is
recorded in the period in which the determinat®miade.

Interest and penalties related to income tax exjssare recognized as incurred and included inviBian for
income taxes” in our Consolidated Statements ofilegs. Accruals for income tax exposures, inclugiegalties
and interest, expected to be settled within the ypear are included in “Accrued expenses and athaent
liabilities” with the remainder included in “Othapn-current liabilities” in our Consolidated Balan8heets. The
federal benefit from state income tax exposuréscisided in “Deferred income taxes” in our Consatiell Balance
Sheets.

Severance and Contract Termination Costs

We recognize liabilities for severance and contrachination costs based upon the nature of thetodse
incurred. For involuntary separation plans thatamapleted within the guidelines of our written
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involuntary separation plan, we record the liapiithen it is probable and reasonably estimable ofertime
termination benefits, such as additional severgageor benefit payouts, and other exit costs, sicbontract
termination costs, the liability is measured armbgmized initially at fair value in the period irhigh the liability is
incurred, with subsequent changes to the liahiégognized as adjustments in the period of chaBgeerance
related to position eliminations that are part oéstructuring plan are recorded within “Restruicigiiand other
charges, net” in the Consolidated Statements afiEgs, otherwise severance is recorded within ‘1&=daand
employee-related costs” in the Consolidated Statésnef Earnings.

Environmental Expenditures

We record liabilities for environmental assessmeants (or) cleanup when it is probable a loss has lirecurre:
and the costs can be reasonably estimated. Envinotaiiability estimates may include costs suchrtscipated
site testing, consulting, remediation, disposatpemediation monitoring and legal fees, as apjeitg The
liability does not reflect possible recoveries frataurance companies or reimbursement of remediatists by
state agencies, but does include estimates ofbasing with other potentially responsible partestimates are not
discounted, as the timing of the anticipated cashments is not fixed or readily determinable. Sqbhsat
adjustments to initial estimates are recorded asssary based upon additional information develapsdbsequer
periods. In future periods, new laws or regulatji@tszances in remediation technology and additioriatmation
about the ultimate remediation methodology to bedusould significantly change our estimates. Cldions
reimbursement of remediation costs are recordechwdevery is deemed probable.

Asset Retirement Obligations

Asset retirement obligations (ARO) are legal olligjas associated with the retirement of long-liesdets. Our
ARO'’s are associated with underground tanks, tiresleasehold improvements. These liabilities @itaily
recorded at fair value and the related asset ne¢ine costs are capitalized by increasing the aagrgimount of the
related assets by the same amount as the lialfilitset retirement costs are subsequently depreobater the useful
lives of the related assets. Subsequent to im@@dgnition, we record period-to-period changeth@ARO liability
resulting from the passage of time within “Interespense” in the Consolidated Statements of Easréamgl
revisions to either the timing or the amount of dniginal expected cash flows to the related assets

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

We use financial instruments, including forwardlexege contracts, futures, swaps and cap agreetoents
manage our exposures to movements in interestaatbforeign currency exchange rates. The useesktfinancial
instruments modifies the exposure of these riskk thie intent to reduce the risk or cost to us.dé@ot enter into
derivative financial instruments for trading purpesWe limit our risk that counterparties to theidsive contracts
will default and not make payments by entering ui¢oivative contracts only with counterparties coisgd of large
banks and financial institutions (primarily J.P. tgan) that meet established credit criteria. Waaloexpect to
incur any losses as a result of counterparty defaul

On the date a derivative contract is entered in®formally document, among other items, the inéshd
hedging designation and relationship, along withrisk management objectives and strategies feriagtinto the
derivative contract. We also formally assess, ladtihception and on an ongoing basis, whether ¢hivatives we
used in hedging transactions are highly effectiveffsetting changes in fair values or cash flofveedged items.
Cash flows from derivatives that are accountedafohedges are classified in the Consolidated Statsnof Cash
Flows in the same category as the items being ltediyben it is determined that a derivative is nghly effective
as a hedge or that it has ceased to be a higldgtafé hedge, we discontinue hedge accounting potisiely.
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The hedging designation may be classified as ortleeofollowing:

No Hedging Designation.The gain or loss on a derivative instrument restighated as an accounting hedging
instrument is recognized in earnings.

Fair Value Hedge. A hedge of a recognized asset or liability ouanecognized firm commitment is
considered a fair value hedge. For fair value hedgeth the effective and ineffective portionsha thanges in the
fair value of the derivative, along with the gaimlass on the hedged item that is attributabldé&hedged risk, are
both recorded in earnings.

Cash Flow Hedge.A hedge of a forecasted transaction or of theldity of cash flows to be received or paid
related to a recognized asset or liability is cdestd a cash flow hedge. The effective portiorhefdchange in the
fair value of a derivative that is declared as shdow hedge is recorded in “Accumulated other poghensive
loss” until earnings are affected by the variapilit cash flows of the designated hedged item.

Net Investment HedgeA hedge of a net investment in a foreign openraisoconsidered a net investment he
The effective portion of the change in the fairueabf the derivative used as a net investment hetlgdoreign
operation is recorded in the currency translatidjugtment account within “Accumulated other compretive loss.”
The ineffective portion, if any, on the hedged itdmat is attributable to the hedged risk is recdrideearnings and
reported in “Miscellaneous (income) expense, nethe Consolidated Statements of Earnings.

Foreign Currency Translation

Our foreign operations generally use the localengy as their functional currency. Assets and liizds of
these operations are translated at the exchamgeiragffect on the balance sheet date. If exclebility between
the functional currency and the U.S. dollar is tenapily lacking at the balance sheet date, thé $mbsequent rate
which exchanges can be made is used to transkdtsamnd liabilities. Income statement items aneslated at the
average exchange rates for the year. The impantroéncy fluctuations is recorded in “Accumulatéder
comprehensive loss” as a currency translation &dgist. Upon sale or upon complete or substant@implete
liquidation of an investment in a foreign operatithre currency translation adjustment attributabléhat operation
is removed from accumulated other comprehensivedaos is reported as part of the gain or loss Enma
liquidation of the investment for the period duriwgich the sale or liquidation occurs. Gains argbés resulting
from foreign currency transactions are recordetMiscellaneous (income) expense, net” in the Codstwéd
Statements of Earnings.

Share-Based Compensation

The fair value of stock option awards granted afseruary 1, 2006 and nonvested stock awards, ensed on
a straight-line basis over the vesting period efdlwards. The fair value of stock option awardsig prior to
January 1, 2006 is expensed based on their grastihg schedule. Share-based compensation exgegseérally
reported in “Salaries and employee-related costgur Consolidated Statements of Earnings. Castsffoom the
tax benefits resulting from tax deductions in exocefsthe compensation expense recognized for thpsens
(windfall tax benefits) are classified as financeash flows. Tax benefits resulting from tax dedhns in excess of
share-based compensation expense recognized ditedr additional paid-in capital in the Consatield Balance
Sheets. Realized tax shortfalls are first offsetiagf the cumulative balance of windfall tax betsefif any, and then
charged directly to income tax expense. We havéabfhe long-form method for determining the pobivindfall
tax benefits and had a pool of windfall tax bersefiiir all periods presented.
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Defined Benefit Pension and Postretirement BenefRlans

The funded status of our defined benefit pensiangbnd postretirement benefit plans are recogmizeg:
Consolidated Balance Sheets. The funded statusasumed as the difference between the fair valptaofassets
and the benefit obligation at December 31, the ‘sueament date.” The fair value of plan assets sgmis the
current market value of contributions made to io@able trust funds, held for the sole benefit afipgants, which
are invested by the trust funds. For defined bépefision plans, the benefit obligation represthdsactuarial
present value of benefits expected to be paid uptirement based on estimated future compensatiaid. For the
postretirement benefit plans, the benefit obligatiepresents the actuarial present value of pastnent benefits
attributed to employee services already rendergdrfGnded plans, with the fair value of plan assstseeding the
benefit obligation, are aggregated and recorded@spaid pension asset equal to this excess. tumded plans,
with the benefit obligation exceeding the fair vabf plan assets, are aggregated and recordepeassiin and
postretirement benefit liability equal to this egse

The current portion of pension and postretirememiffit liabilities represent the actuarial preseaitie of
benefits payable in the next 12 months exceediedatin value of plan assets (if funded), measured o
basis. These liabilities are recorded in “Accrugpenses and other current liabilities” in the Cdidsted Balance
Sheets.

Pension and postretirement benefit expense isadeddn “Salaries and employee-related costs” in the
Consolidated Statements of Earnings and includescsecost, interest cost, expected return on pksets (if
funded), and amortization of prior service credid amet actuarial loss. Service cost representagharial present
value of participant benefits earned in the curyeatr. Interest cost represents the time valueafay cost
associated with the passage of time. The expeetadiron plan assets represents the average ragerohgs
expected on the funds invested or to be investgadawide for the benefits included in the obligati®rior service
credit represents the impact of negative plan amemds. Net actuarial loss arises as a result tdrdiices between
actual experience and assumptions or as a restiiamiges in actuarial assumptions. Net actuasal &md prior
service credit not recognized as a component dfiparand postretirement benefit expense as theg are
recognized as a component of accumulated comprigldoss in the Consolidated Statements of Shadens|
Equity, net of tax. These pension and postretirdriterns are subsequently amortized as a comporfi¢gansion
and postretirement benefit expense over the reniervice period, if the majority of the employees active,
otherwise over the remaining life expectancy, piedi such amounts exceed thresholds which are basedthe
benefit obligation or the value of plan assets.

The measurement of benefit obligations and perenghpostretirement benefit expense is based anasts
and assumptions approved by management. Thesdivakieeflect the terms of the plans and use ppéait-
specific information such as compensation, ageyaags of service, as well as certain assumptioctding
estimates of discount rates, expected return angdaets, rate of compensation increases, intatestand mortali
rates.

Fair Value Measurements

We carry various assets and liabilities at faiueah the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The masfisant
assets and liabilities are vehicles held for sakéch are stated at the lower of carrying amourfagrvalue less
costs to sell, investments held in Rabbi Trustsamdatives.

Beginning in 2008, we applied new accounting guidawhich defined fair value as the exchange phaé t
would be received for an asset or paid to trarestability (an exit price) in the principal or masdvantageous
market for the asset or liability in an orderlyrtsaction between market participants on the meammedate. Prior
to 2008, fair value was defined as the amount athwan asset (or liability) could be bought (orured) or sold (or
settled) in a current transaction between williagtigs, that is, other than in a
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forced or liquidation sale. Fair value measuremanter the new guidance are classified based ofollbgving fair
value hierarchy:

Level 1  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets feniatal assets or liabilities that we have theitgtid
access at the measurement date. An active markitf@sset or liability is a market in which
transactions for the asset or liability occur vatkfficient frequency and volume to provide pricing
information on an ongoing bas

Level 2  Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices suduased prices for similar assets or liabilitiespted
prices in markets that are not active; or modeiveervaluations or other inputs that are observable
can be corroborated by observable market dataufistantially the full term of the assets or ligk.

Level 3 Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 3&@éputs reflect our own assumptions about the
assumptions a market participant would use in pgithe asset or liability

When available, we use unadjusted quoted marke¢pto measure fair value and classify such measunes
within Level 1. If quoted prices are not availablar value is based upon model-driven valuatidvag tise current
market-based or independently sourced market paeasnguch as interest rates and currency ratess ltalued
using these models are classified according tdotivest level input or value driver that is signéid to the
valuation.

Revenue earning equipment held for sale is measuridr value on a nonrecurring basis and is dtatehe
lower of carrying amount or fair value less costséll. Investments held in Rabbi Trusts and déxiea are carried
at fair value on a recurring basis. Investmentd ieRabbi Trusts include exchange-traded equityisges and
mutual funds. Fair values for these investmentdased on quoted prices in active markets. Fovalgves, fair
value is based on modédtiven valuations using the LIBOR rate or obsergdblward foreign exchange rates, wt
are observable at commonly quoted intervals fofule¢erm of the financial instrument.

Earnings Per Share

Earnings per share is computed using the two-dehod. The two-class method of computing earnjreys
share is an earnings allocation formula that detemearnings per share for common stock and artigipating
securities according to dividends declared (wheplagat or unpaid) and participation rights in undlsited earnings
Our nonvested stock (time-vested restricted stagtks, market-based restricted stock rights antlictsd stock
units) are considered participating securitiesesihe share-based awards contain a non-forfeitajleto dividend
equivalents irrespective of whether the awardsnaitely vest. Under the two-class method, earniegcpmmon
share are computed by dividing the sum of disteétdwgarnings to common shareholders and undistdi®amings
allocated to common shareholders by the weightedsae number of common shares outstanding fordtied In
applying the two-class method, undistributed eaymiare allocated to both common shares and paatiicgp
securities based on the weighted average sharstseding during the period.

Diluted earnings per common share reflect the igdueffect of potential common shares from stockans.
The dilutive effect of stock options is computethgshe treasury stock method, which assumes amgepds that
could be obtained upon the exercise of stock optieould be used to purchase common shares at ¢énaggey
market price for the period. The assumed procawdsde the purchase price the grantee pays, théfalinax
benefit that we receive upon assumed exerciserandrirecognized compensation expense at the exatbfperioc
We calculate the assumed proceeds from exces&ieefits based on the deferred tax assets acteaiyded
without consideration of “as if” deferred tax asset
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Share Repurchases

Repurchases of shares of common stock are madselpally in open-market transactions and are stiltgec
market conditions, legal requirements and othetofac The cost of share repurchases is allocateeelbe common
stock and retained earnings based on the amowntiditional paid-in capital at the time of the shamgurchase.

Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Comprehensive income (loss) presents a measuteobfaages in shareholders’ equity except for cleang
resulting from transactions with shareholders #irtbapacity as shareholders. Our total comprelieriscome
(loss) presently consists of net earnings, curréranslation adjustments associated with foreigerations that use
the local currency as their functional currencyuatnents for derivative instruments accountecafocash flow
hedges and various pension and other postretirehesmfits related items.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2009, the Financial Accounting StashslBoard (FASB) issued accounting guidance which
amends the criteria for allocating a contract’sstdaration to individual services or products inltiple-deliverable
arrangements. The guidance requires that the beistage of selling price be used when vendor sfpegbjective or
third-party evidence for deliverables cannot beedeined. This guidance is effective for revenuargements
entered into or materially modified in fiscal ye@egginning on or after June 15, 2010, with earlypithn permitted
We are in the process of evaluating the impachigfaccounting guidance but do not expect it teehmwmaterial
impact on our consolidated financial position, fesaf operations or cash flows.

In June 2009, the FASB issued accounting guidariiehnaddresses the accounting and disclosure
requirements for transfers of financial assets. Jiidance is effective for new transfers of finaheissets occurring
in fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2G08] interim periods within those years. The adoptibthis
accounting guidance did not have a material impaatur consolidated financial position, result®pérations or
cash flows.

In June 2009, the FASB issued accounting guidariiehnamends the consolidation principles for VIgs b
requiring consolidation of VIEs based on which pdras control of the entity. The guidance is effecfor fiscal
years beginning after November 15, 2009, and imtg@eriods within those fiscal years. The adoptibthis
accounting guidance did not have a material impaatur consolidated financial position, result®pérations or
cash flows.

2. ACCOUNTING CHANGES

Earnings Per Share

In June 2008, the FASB issued earnings per shadamee stating that unvested share-based paymemtiaw
which contain norferfeitable rights to dividends are considerediparating securities and should be included in
computation of earnings per share pursuant towbectass method. We adopted the provisions ofgbt®unting
guidance effective January 1, 2009 and computedregs per common share using the two-class methoallf
periods presented. The two-class method of compuetimnings per share reduced both full year 20032807
diluted earnings per common share by $0.02.

Business Combinations

In December 2007, the FASB revised the accountiridagce for recognizing and measuring assets ajuir
and liabilities assumed in a business combinatimhraquires, among other things, that transaction

78




Table of Contents

RYDER SYSTEM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Conti nued)

costs in a business combination be expensed ageaacThis guidance was effective for business doatlons
closing after January 1, 2009. Effective Janua30D9, we adopted the accounting guidance withooagrial
impact to our consolidated financial position, fesaf operations or cash flows.

Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and FinanciaLiabilities

In February 2007, the FASB issued accounting guidam the fair value option for financial assetd an
financial liabilities. This accounting guidance péis companies to choose to measure many finaimsglments
and certain other items at fair value in order togate volatility in reported earnings caused bgasuring related
assets and liabilities differently without havirggapply complex hedge accounting provisions. Efffeclanuary 1,
2008, we adopted the accounting guidance; howeweedid not elect to measure any financial instruimand other
items at fair value under the provisions of thisamting guidance. Consequently, this accountiridagice had no
impact on our consolidated financial position, fesaf operations or cash flows.

Fair Value Measurements

In September 2006, the FASB issued accounting guailan fair value measurements, which definessidire,
establishes a framework for measuring fair valne, @xpands disclosures about fair value measurasméfe
adopted the accounting guidance on January 1, #0G8I financial assets and liabilities and fdrrabdnfinancial
assets and liabilities recognized or disclose@iatvilue in our Consolidated Financial Statements recurring
basis (at least annually). We adopted the accaygtiidance on January 1, 2009 for all other nomfiredl assets at
liabilities recognized or disclosed at fair valueanonrecurring basis, including our vehicles Hetdsale. The
adoption of this accounting guidance did not haweagerial impact on our consolidated financial posij results of
operations or cash flows.

Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes

Effective January 1, 2007, we adopted new accogmfindance related to uncertainty in income tatjpos,
which is described in Note 1, “Summary of Signifit&ccounting Policies.” The adoption of this acoting
guidance decreased the January 1, 2007 balanetagfad earnings by $7 million and deferred incoaxes by
$18 million with a corresponding increase of $2Hiom to the liability for uncertain tax positions.

3. ACQUISITIONS

Edart Leasing LLC Acquisitior— On February 2, 2009, we acquired the assetslaftEEeasing LLC
(“Edart”), which included Edart’s fleet of approxtely 1,600 vehicles and more than 340 contractustomers
from Edart’s five locations in Connecticut for arplubase price of $86 million of which $81 million spaid as of
December 31, 2009. The purchase price consistedyrafirevenue earning equipment and operatinggmgpThe
combined network operates under the Ryder namepleonenting our FMS business segment market covenage
the Northeast. We also acquired approximately st6oles for remarketing, the majority of which weadd by the
end of 2009.

Transpacific Container Terminals Ltd. and CRSA ktigs Ltd. Acquisition— On December 19, 2008, we
acquired all of the assets of Transpacific Contairegminals Ltd. and CRSA Logistics Ltd. (‘CRSAGdated in
Port Coquitlam, British Columbia, as well as CRSAperations in Hong Kong and Shanghai, China.cbinepanie
specialize in trans-Pacific, end-to-end transpmmatnanagement and supply chain services priméilfCanadian
retailers. This acquisition adds complementarytsmhs to our capabilities including consolidatiansces in key
Asian hub and off-dock deconsolidation operation€anada. The purchase price was $15 million otkwhi
$12 million was paid in 2008 and $2 million wasgai 2009. The terms of the asset purchase agregmaride fo
up to $4 million in contingent consideration togsad to
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the seller if certain financial metrics are achvEhe contingent consideration will be accountadas additional
purchase price when the contingency is resolved.

Gordon Truck Leasing Acquisitioar— On August 29, 2008, we acquired the assets ofi@oTruck Leasing
(“Gordon”), which included Gordos’fleet of approximately 500 vehicles and nearl@ é8ntractual customers fo
purchase price of $24 million, of which $23 milliaras paid in 2008. The combined network operateguthe
Ryder name, complementing our FMS market coveragesarvice network in Pennsylvania.

Gator Leasing Acquisition— On May 12, 2008, we acquired the assets of Gaasing, Inc. (“Gator”), which
included Gator’s fleet of approximately 2,300 védscand nearly 300 contractual customers for alfase price of
$117 million, of which $114 million was paid in 28@nd $3 million was paid in 2009. The combineduvoek
operates under the Ryder nhame, complementing o8 fidrket coverage and service network in Florida.

Lily Acquisition — On January 11, 2008, we completed an asset asecgreement with Lily Transportation
Corporation (“Lily”), under which we acquired Lilg'fleet of approximately 1,600 vehicles and ove¥ 20ntractual
customers for a purchase price of $99 million, bfck $97 million was paid in 2008 and $2 millionsyaaid in
2009. The combined network operates under the Ryai®e, complementing our FMS market coverage amicse
network in the Northeast United States.

The following table provides a rollforward of theepminary estimated fair values of the assets meduand th
liabilities assumed at the date of acquisitiondth2008 acquisitions to the amounts of the fifkdcation:

Preliminary

Amount Purchase Pric

Disclosed in 200  and Accountin
Annual Repor Adjustments Final Allocatior

(In thousands

Assets:

Revenue earning equipme $ 148,18« 84 148,26¢
Goodwill 58,99 1,522 60,51¢
Tradenamt 39¢ — 39¢
Customer relationship intangibl 21,90% (273 21,63¢
Other asset 29,28t (307) 28,97¢
258,76¢ 1,02¢ 259,79
Liabilities (4,989 42 (4,942
Net assets acquire $ 253,78« 1,06¢ 254,85.

The change in purchase price related to an additfh million paid in connection with a contractuet
working capital adjustment as well as transactioste The purchase accounting adjustments relatedily to the
completion of the valuation of customer relatiopsintangibles and evaluations of the physical aadket
conditions of revenue earning equipment.

Pollock Acquisition— On October 5, 2007, we acquired the assets ¢dékoNationalease (“Pollock”), which
included Pollocks fleet of approximately 2,000 vehicles and nead€@l§ contractual customers for a purchase pri
$77 million of which $1 million was paid in 20091 $nillion was paid in 2008 and $75 million was paid2007.
The combined network operates under the Ryder neomeplementing our FMS and SCS market coverage and
service network in Canada.

All asset purchases in 2009, 2008 and 2007 wereuated for as an acquisition of a business. Godadwil
these acquisitions represents the excess of tlohase price over the fair value of the underlyioguared
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net tangible and intangible assets. The factortscthiatributed to the recognition of goodwill inckdisecuring
buyer-specific synergies that increase revenuepaniits and are not otherwise available to a mapketicipant and
significant cost savings opportunities.

Pro Forma Information— The operating results of the acquired compamée® been included in our
consolidated financial statements from the datexcqtiisitions. The following table provides the wdised pro
forma revenue, net earnings and earnings per dikdenmon share as if the results of the 2008 afd 20
acquisitions had been included in operations contingrJanuary 1, 2007. This pro forma informationas
necessarily indicative either of the combined rissof operations that actually would have beenzedlhad the
acquisitions been consummated during the periadwliich the pro forma information is presentedopbfuture
results.

Unaudited December &

2008 2007
(In thousands, except per st
amounts;

Revenue $6,049,39( 6,511,113

Net earning: $ 201,71. 256,74¢
Net earnings per common she

Basic $ 3.5€ 4.3(C

Diluted $ 3.54 4,27

4. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

In December 2008, we announced strategic initiatteemprove our competitive advantage and driveyfierm
profitable growth. As part of these initiatives, decided to discontinue SCS operations in Southrigaand
Europe. During the second half of 2009, we cea$&8 Service operations in Brazil, Argentina, Chibel &uropean
markets. Accordingly, results of these operatidingncial position and cash flows are separatgbpried as
discontinued operations for all periods presentdeein the Consolidated Financial Statementsatesithereto.

Summarized results of discontinued operations asr®llows:

Years ended December

2009 2008 2007
(In thousands
Total revenue $70,357 207,19' 217,83«
Pre-tax (loss) earnings from discontinued operati $(28,087) (59,36 3,26(
Income tax (benefit) expen (85) 1,66¢ (1,17¢)
(Loss) earnings from discontinued operations, héd $(28,177) (57,699 2,082

Results of discontinued operations included opegafiosses) income of $(11) million, $(12) milliand
$6 million in 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectivelyribg 2009, 2008 and 2007, we incurred restructuaind other
charges (primarily exit-related) of $17 million, B#illion and $2 million, respectively. These chesgncluded the
following:

» Net severance and emplo-related costs of $1 million in 2009, $15 millian2008 and $1 million in 2007,
related to approximately 2,500 employees associaidthese operations. In 2009, we had severande a
employee-related costs of $5 million offset by $dlian of non-cash reductions as we refined ouppyiear
estimates

« Termination costs of $1 million in 2009, $4 milliam2008 and $1 million in 2007 representing the
contractual penalty for terminating leases andarust contracts before the end of the contract t

81




Table of Contents

RYDER SYSTEM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Conti nued)

In 2009, we incurred contract termination cost$®Mmillion as we continued to negotiate with our
counterparties. The charges in 2009 were offsé@2million of non-cash reductions as we refined mror
year estimates.

» Asset impairments totaled $18 million in 2008 imgmction with our decision to discontinue operation
these regions. The review of assets for impairmerst triggered by our restructuring initiatives. deset
impairments included $11 million of SCS U.K. gootlwihich represented the entire goodwill relatedhis
reporting unit. The asset impairment charges alsluded $7 million primarily for revenue earning
equipment and operating property and equiprr

» Restructuring plan implementation costs of $2 willin 2009, mostly professional service fe

< In the fourth quarter of 2009, we substantiallpidated our investment in several foreign subsiewher:
we ceased operations. As a result, we recogniobduge of $14 million related to accumulated faneig
currency translation losse

* In the fourth quarter of 2008, a customer in th&RWsiness segment in the U.K. declared bankruptcy.
portion of our services to this customer includeel long-term financing of assets used to suppert th
operations. As a result of the bankruptcy, we aeiteed that this finance lease receivable was not
recoverable and recorded a $4 million pre-tax ohalbyring 2009, we recovered approximately $1 onilli
of the receivable

« In the second quarter of 2008, we recorded a preftarge of $6.5 million ($6.8 million after-taxyrfprior
year¢ adjustments associated with our Brazilian SCSaf@n. The charge was identified in the coursa of
detailed business and financial review in Brazhjah occurred following certain adverse tax andaleg
developments. We determined that accruals of $8liom primarily for carrier transportation andds
contingencies related to tax and legal mattersewet established in the appropriate period; arfielrdds of
$3.1 million, primarily for indirect value-addedxes, were overstated. The charges related primarilye
period from 2004 to 2007. After considering theldative and quantitative effects of the charges, w
determined the charges were not material to ousalaated financial statements in any individuabpr
period, and the cumulative amount was not mat&ridD08 results. Therefore, we recorded the adjeistm
for the cumulative amount in the second quarteét0af8.

We are subject to various claims, tax assessmadta@ministrative proceedings associated with our
discontinued operations. We have established lasggpons for matters in which losses are deemebatrle and
can be reasonably estimated. However, at this fingenot possible for us to determine fully tHémate effect of
all unasserted claims and assessments on our @atedl financial condition, results of operatiomdiquidity.
Additional adjustments and expenses may be recdhaedgh discontinued operations in future periasi$urther
relevant information becomes available. Althougis itot possible to predict the ultimate outcoméheke matters,
we do not expect that any resulting liability withve a material adverse effect upon our finan@atdion, results
of operations or liquidity.

The following is a summary of assets and liab#itid discontinued operations:

December 31 December 31
2009 2008
(In thousands

Assets:

Total current asse $3,67¢ $34,40:

Total asset $7,63¢ $51,79:
Liabilities:

Total current liabilities $7,71¢ $51,08¢

Total liabilities $8,957 $54,89:
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At December 31, 2009, the net carrying value ofratieg property and equipment and revenue earning
equipment held for sale recorded at fair value m@ssignificant. Fair value was determined basemhugcent
market prices for sales of each class of similae@sand vehicle condition. Therefore, our equigrheid for sale
was classified within Level 3 of the fair value tiiechy. During 2009, losses to reflect changesiinvialue were nc
significant.

5. RESTRUCTURING AND OTHER CHARGE
The components of restructuring and other charggtsn 2009, 2008 and 2007 were as follows:
Years ended December

2009 2008 2007
(In thousands

Restructuring charges, n
Severance and employ-related cost $2,20€ 11,20¢ 8,92¢
Contract termination cos — 29 591

2,20¢ 11,23¢ 9,51¢

Other charges

Early retirement of det 4,17¢ —  1,28(
Asset impairment 22 10,24: —
Total $6,40¢ 21,48( 10,79¢

As mentioned in Note 29, “Segment Reporting,” otimary measure of segment financial performance
excludes, among other items, restructuring andratha&rges, net. However, the applicable portiothef
restructuring and other charges, net that relatexhth segment in 2009, 2008, and 2007 were asvll

Years ended December
2009 2008 2007
(In thousands

Fleet Management Solutio $5,631 16,64: 5,59t
Supply Chain Solution 61€ 2,82( 3,17(
Dedicated Contract Carrial 41 53z 1,13t
Central Support Service 11€  1,48¢ 89t
Total $6,40€ 21,48( 10,79¢
2009 Activity

In the first quarter of 2009, we eliminated appmoately 30 positions as part of workforce reductionder cos
containment initiatives, which began in the fougtiarter of 2008. Workforce reductions resulted prextax
restructuring charge of $3 million, and was offsgts1 million of refinements in estimates from priestructuring
charges.

Other charges, net in 2009 consisted primarilyadftdxtinguishment charges of $4 million incurredgart of ¢
$100 million debt tender offer completed in Septem®009 and described in Note 16, “Debt.” The chammnsists
of $3 million premium paid on the purchase of tA®® million outstanding and $1 million for the veribff of
unamortized original debt discount and issuancésarsd fees on the transaction.

2008 Activity

During the fourth quarter of 2008, we approvedanb eliminate approximately 700 positions, priftigan the
U.S. The workforce reduction resulted in a prefstructuring charge of $11 million in the
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fourth quarter of 2008, all of which related to fieeyment of severance and other termination bendfitese actions
were substantially completed in the first quarte2@09.

In connection with the decision to transition ofiEaropean supply chain contracts and a declinaugnemic
environment, we performed an impairment analydatirey to our U.K. FMS business segment. Basedusn o
analysis, given current market conditions and essrexpectations, we concluded that the fair valéeMS U.K.
was less than the carrying amount of that repouimg In the fourth quarter of 2008, we recordatba-cash préax
impairment charge of $10 million related to thetesoff of goodwill related to this reporting uni ¢he implied fair
value of the goodwill was less than the carryingpant.

2007 Activity

During 2007, we approved a plan to eliminate apipnaxely 300 positions as a result of cost managé e
process improvement actions throughout our domasticinternational operations and Central SuppentiSes
(CSS). The charge related to these actions incledguloyee severance and benefits totaling $9 millRuring
2007, we also recorded a charge of $0.6 milliomprily related to costs that will continue to beurred on a lease
facility in our international operations, which we longer operate.

Other charges, net in 2007, included a $1 millibarge incurred to extinguish debentures that weginally
set to mature in 2017. The charge related to tamjum paid on the early extinguishment of debt twedwrite-off
of related debt discount and issuance costs. St 1o “Debt,” for further discussion on the eaktinguishment
of debt.

The following table presents a roll-forward of thaivity and balances of our restructuring reseriresuding
discontinued operations for the years ended DeceB81he2009 and 2008:

Deductions Foreign
Beginning Cash Non-Cash Translatior Ending
Balance  Additions Payment Reduction€!) Adjustmen  Balance
(In thousands

Year ended December 31, 2009:

Employee severance and benefi $26,54: 8,16z  29,66¢ 4,79( 82t 1,07C
Contract termination costs 3,48 3,09¢ 4,851 1,68 13C 172
Total $30,02: 11,26(  34,51¢ 6,47 95E 1,24z

Year ended December 31, 20!
Employee severance and bene $ 7,82¢ 26,79 7,46¢ 32¢ (29%) 26,54
Contract termination cos 814 3,80( 1,102 13 (A7) 3,482
Total $ 8,64 30,59¢ 8,561 33¢ (310) 30,02:

(1) Nor-cash reductions represent adjustments to the restring reserve as actual costs were less thaniaily estimated

At December 31, 2009, outstanding restructuringgeltibns are generally required to be paid ovemte
three months.
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6. RECEIVABLES

Trade

Direct financing lease
Income tax

Insurance

Vendor rebate

Other

Allowance

Total

RYDER SYSTEM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

7. PREPAID EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT ASSE

Current deferred tax ass
Restricted cas

Prepaid vehicle licenst
Prepaid operating tax
Prepaid real estate re
Prepaid contract incentivi

Prepaid software maintenance cc

Prepaid benefit
Prepaid insuranc
Prepaid sales commissio

Other
Total

8. REVENUE EARNING EQUIPMENT

Held for use
Full service leas
Commercial rente
Held for sale

Total

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Conti nued)

December 3:
2009 2008
(In thousands
$493,20:  559,92:
68,29¢ 69,52(
31,85¢ 2,912
6,83( 4,25:
2,464 3,942
9,817 10,30:¢
612,46¢ 650,85:
(13,808 (15,47
$598,66: 635,37¢
December 3:
2009 2008
(In thousands
$ 12,79( 21,73
21,36¢ 32,49¢
37,34¢ 39,25¢
10,99¢ 12,70:
8,53( 10,575
7,66¢ 6,38t
3,151 2,78(
8,63¢ 3,51z
6,71(C 5,762
3,801 4,77¢
12,03¢ 13,60:
$133,04. 153,57¢
Estimatec December 31, 200! December 31, 200
Useful Accumulated Net Book Accumulatec Net Book
Lives Cost Depreciation Value @ Cost Depreciatior Value®
(In years) (In thousands
3—12 $5,616,10. (2,173,69) 3,442,40' 5,338,83. (1,794,47) 3,544,35
45—12 1,23540. (577,83) 657,56! 1,639,521 (713,739 925,78:
340,33: (261,64°) 78,68 336,52 (241,44)) 95,08
$7,191,83 (3,013,17) 4,178,65' 7,314,87! (2,749,65) 4,565,22.

(1) Revenue earning equipment, net includes vehiclésrurapital leases of $20 million, less accumulaetbrtization of $7 million &
December 31, 2009, and $20 million, less accumdlataortization of $5 million at December 31, 208&ortization expense attributed
vehicles under capital leases is combined with eejption expense
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Revenue earning equipment captioned as “Full sefeiase” and “Commercial rental” is differentiated
exclusively by the service line in which the equerhis employed. Two core service offerings of BMIS business
segment are full service leasing and short-termngernial rental. Under a full service lease, we fecustomers
with vehicles, maintenance, supplies (including)fuencillary services and related equipment neargs®r
operation, while our customers exercise contrahefrelated vehicles over the lease term (genettaige to seven
years for trucks and tractors and up to ten yeargdilers). We also provide sh-term rentals, which tend to be
seasonal, to customers to supplement their flagtagipeak business periods.

In 2009, based on current and expected market ttonsli we accelerated depreciation on certain etas$
vehicles expected to be sold through 2010. The ainpfthis change increased depreciation by $10amiln 2009.
The residual value and useful life review in 20@8 bt significantly impact earnings compared t@20

9. OPERATING PROPERTY AND EQUIPMEN

Estimatec December 3:
Useful Lives 2009 2008

(In years) (In thousands
Land = $ 161,30( 147,24!
Buildings and improvemen 10— 40 647,12¢ 622,89:
Machinery and equipme 3—10 481,60: 499,44
Other 3—10 109,53 119,66(
1,399,56° 1,389,24.
Accumulated depreciatic (855,657  (842,42)
Total $ 543,91 546,81¢
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10. GOODWILL

The carrying amount of goodwill attributable to lkeaeportable business segment with changes thewsras

follows:
Fleet Supply Dedicater
Managemer Chain Contract
Solutions Solutions Carriage Total

(In thousands
Balance at January 1, 20

Goodwill $ 135,55(  45,01¢ 4,90C 185,46¢
Accumulated impairment loss®) — (18,899 — (18,899
135,55(  26,12( 4,90C 166,57(
Acquisition(@ 60,03 2,65¢ — 62,69(
Impairment losse (10,3279 (10,939 — (21,260
Foreign currency translation adjustm (5,759 (3,989 — (9,747)
Balance at December 31, 2C
Goodwill 189,82t  43,68¢ 4,90C 238,41:
Accumulated impairment loss (10,327 (29,83)) — (40,159
179,50: 13,84¢ 4,90C 198,25:
Acquisitions @ 14,87: 1,36¢ — 16,23¢
Foreign currency translation adjustment 1,38¢ 567 — 1,95¢
Balance at December 31, 20(®)
Goodwill 206,08¢  34,68( 4,90C 245,66
Accumulated impairment losses (10,327 (18,899 —  (29,22)

$ 195,76! 15,781 4,90C 216,44

(1) Accumulated impairment losses were calculated ffaruary 1, 2002, which was the adoption date ferabcounting guidance on goodwv
impairment, through January 1, 20C

(2) See Note & Acquisitions” for additional information on acquisitions and phase price adjustment
(3) Adjusted for writ-off of SCS UK goodwill and accumulated impairmesslupon discontinuance of operations in 2(

On April 1st of this year, we completed our anmg@bdwill impairment test and determined there was n
impairment. However, based on market conditiorthénfourth quarter of 2008 and our decision to egitain
contracts in SCS Europe we performed an interimaimpent test as of December 31, 2008. We deternthmad
goodwill associated with our U.K. reporting unitasMmpaired and we recorded an impairment charge of
$21 million for all goodwill in the U.K. as of Den®er 31, 2008. The impairment charge for the FMSdakidwill
was recorded within “Restructuring and other charget” in our Consolidated Statements of Earnargtthe
impairment charge for the SCS UK goodwill was réeat within “(Loss) earnings from discontinued operations
of tax” in our Consolidated Statements of Earnings.
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11. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

RYDER SYSTEM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Indefinite lived intangible asse— Trade nam

Finite lived intangible asset

Customer relationship intangibl

Accumulated amortizatio

Foreign currency translation adjustm

Total

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Conti nued)

December 3:
2009 2008
(In thousands

$ 9,084 9,08

37,497 33,47
(8,257 (5,027
20,245 28,44:
791 (822
$39,12( 36,70

The Ryder trade name has been identified as harrigdefinite useful life. Customer relationshigaimgibles
are being amortized on a straight-line basis dveir estimated useful lives, generally 10-15 ye¥dfs.recorded
amortization expense associated with finite livemngible assets of approximately $3 million in 20$2 million in
2008 and $1 million in 2007. The future amortizatexpense for each of the five succeeding yeaasecbko all
intangible assets that are currently recordedeénbnsolidated Balance Sheets is estimated to fidl@ss at

December 31, 2009:

2010
2011
2012
2013
2014

Total

12. DIRECT FINANCING LEASES AND OTHER ASSET

Direct financing leases, n

Investments held in Rabbi Trus

Insurance receivable
Debt issuance cos
Prepaid pension ass
Contract incentive
Swap agreemel

Other
Total

88

(In thousands,
$ 3,23¢
3,05¢
3,05¢
3,05¢
2,24¢
$  14,64¢

December 3.
2009 2008
(In thousands
$285,27: 285,50t
19,68¢ 16,95(
13,30( 10,40:
17,00¢ 11,73:
10,58¢ 5,27(
21,77¢ 21,89¢
12,101 18,39:
21,591 14,78¢

$401,32: 384,92
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13. ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES

Salaries and wag¢
Deferred compensatic
Pension benefit

Other postretirement benef

Employee benefit
Insurance obligation(®)
Residual value guarante
Vehicle rent

Deferred vehicle gair
Environmental liabilities
Asset retirement obligatior
Operating taxe

Income taxe:
Restructuring

Interest

Customer deposit

Foreign exchange contrac
Other

Total

December 31, 200!

December 31, 20C

Accrued Non-Current Accrued  Non-Curren
Expenses Liabilities Total Expense: Liabilities Total
(In thousands

$ 45,34¢ — 45,34¢ 69,69’ — 69,69’
5,06¢ 16,97( 22,03¢ 1,45¢ 18,05( 19,50:¢
2,69¢ 328,57 331,26¢ 2,501 504,71 507,21!
3,21« 46,11¢ 49,32¢ 3,35( 43,02% 46,37,
2,34¢ 2,34¢ 5,18¢ — 5,18¢
111,14 151,04! 262,18¢ 109,16° 164,37 273,53¢
2,171 1,872 4,04¢ 651 1,73¢ 2,38¢
12¢ 8,56¢ 8,691 16,68( 7,161 23,841
79C 2,25¢ 3,04¢ 80¢ 3,12 3,92¢
5,28¢ 9,57¢ 14,86: 3,84¢ 11,62 15,47:
4,881 11,43¢ 16,31¢ 4,54¢ 11,14¢ 15,69(
70,37( 70,37( 73,28( — 73,28(
45¢ 73,31 73,77( 4,18: 52,70( 56,88:
1,114 12¢ 1,247 29,851 16€ 30,02
29,12 — 29,12 34,54, — 34,54,
29,51 — 29,51 27,017 — 27,017
— — — 607 — 607
41,29( 31,76 73,05! 44.,44¢ 19,45 63,90z
$354,94! 681,61: 1,036,55! 431,82( 837,28( 1,269,10!

(1) Insurance obligations are comprised primarily offtinsurance accruals

We retain a portion of the accident risk under gkhiiability and workers’ compensation insurancegrams.
Self-insurance accruals are based primarily onaaietily estimated, undiscounted cost of claims, iactlide claims
incurred but not reported. Such liabilities areduhsn estimates. Historical loss development facioe utilized to
project the future development of incurred loss@sl these amounts are adjusted based upon acimletperienc
and settlements. While we believe the amounts@quate, there can be no assurance that changeséastimates
may not occur due to limitations inherent in théneation process. In recent years, our developrhastbeen
favorable compared with historical selected lossetigpment factors because of improved safety perdorce,
payment patterns and settlement patterns. Durif§,28008 and 2007, we recorded a benefit of $lianill
$23 million, and $24 million, respectively, withi@perating expense” in our Consolidated StatemehEarnings,

to reduce estimated prior years’ self-insured tesgrves for the reasons noted above.
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14. INCOME TAXES

The components of earnings from continuing openatimefore income taxes and the provision for inctames
from continuing operations were as follows:

Years ended December
2009 2008 2007
(In thousands

Earnings from continuing operations before incomes:

United State: $132,23! 352,18( 356,15!
Foreign 11,53¢ 57,10¢ 46,04¢
Total $143,76¢  409,28(  402,20:
Current tax (benefit) expense from continuing opens:
Federa(@ $(44,837) 1,084 58,22¢
State®) 6,031 4,44¢ 9,34¢
Foreign (236) 17,38 18,65¢

(39,03)  22,90¢ 86,22

Deferred tax expense (benefit) from continuing afiens:

Federa 90,43: 114,77¢ 64,41:
State 2,73¢ 11,77¢ 10,42¢
Foreign (48€) 2,24¢ (10,639
92,68: 128,80( 64,19¢

Provision for income taxes from continuing openasic $ 53,65 151,70¢ 150,42!

(1) Excludes federal and state tax benefits resultinghfthe exercise of stock options and vesting sificked stock awards, which were cred
directly to “Additional paid-in capital” and excluek federal and state tax benefits resulting froendkpiration of a cross-currency swap in
2007, which was credited directly “ Accumulated other comprehensive I”

A reconciliation of the federal statutory tax ratigh the effective tax rate from continuing opeoas follows:

Years ended December

2009 2008 2007

(Percentage of p-tax earnings
Federal statutory tax ra 35.C 35.C 35.C
Impact on deferred taxes for changes in tax 1 (3.7 (0.6) (1.9
State income taxes, net of federal income tax lie 6.C 4.C 3.7
Tax reviews and audi (2.9 (2.7 (0.9
Restructuring and other charges, 1.7 1.1 —
Miscellaneous items, n 1.1 0.3 0.9
Effective tax rate 37.5 37.1 37.4
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Tax Law Changes

The effects of changes in tax laws on deferredtdances are recognized in the period the newléigis is
enacted. The following provides a summary of thpdot of changes in tax laws on net earnings frontigoing
operations and net earnings per diluted commoresham continuing operations by tax jurisdiction:

Diluted Earnings Per

Tax Jurisdiction Enactment Date Net Earnings Share
(In thousands
2009
Ontario, Canada December 15, 20C  $4,10( $ 0.07
State of Wisconsin February 19, 200¢ $ 51: $0.01
2008
State of Massachuse July 2, 200¢ $1,75¢ $ 0.0
2007
Canade December 14, 20C  $3,83i $ 0.0¢€
State of Marylant November 19, 20C  $ (504) $(0.0))
United Kingdom July 19, 200 $ 81C $0.01
State of New Yorl April 1, 2007 $ 97C $ 0.0z
Deferred Income Taxes
The components of the net deferred income taxlitiglvere as follows:
December 3:
2009 2008
(In thousands
Deferred income tax asse
Seltinsurance accrua $ 33,13¢ 50,99¢
Net operating loss carryforwar 69,80" 69,25!
Alternative minimum taxe 9,67¢ 12,49:
Accrued compensation and bene 38,02« 36,36
Federal benefit on state tax positic 17,981 16,20:
Pension benefit 121,11! 186,50°
Miscellaneous other accruz 30,14 33,64¢

Valuation allowanct

Deferred income tax liabilitie:
Property and equipment bases differe
Other items

Net deferred income tax liabili®)

319,89 405,46+
(36,57 (34,549
283,32; 370,91!

(1,292,69) (1,254,56)
(13,719 (11,980
(1,306,40) (1,266,54)
$(1,023,08) (895,63

(1) Deferred tax assets of $13 million and $22 milli@ve been included “Prepaid expenses and other current assets” at Delger 31, 2009

and 2008, respectivel
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We do not provide for U.S. deferred income taxeseomporary differences related to our foreign inments
that are considered permanent in duration. Thespdeary differences consist primarily of undistiiédi foreign
earnings of $429 million at December 31, 2009. Wfawreign tax provision has been made on thesestrilguted
foreign earnings. Determination of the amount déded taxes on these temporary differences ipraaticable du
to foreign tax credits and exclusions.

At December 31, 2009, various U.S. subsidiarie®sate net operating loss carryforwards of $3%amil
expiring through tax year 2029. We also have foreigt operating losses of $31 million that are labée to reduce
future income tax payments in several countrielsjesiti to varying expiration rules. We had unuseerahtive
minimum tax credits, for tax purposes, of $10 milliat December 31, 2009 available to reduce fuhame tax
liabilities. The alternative minimum tax credits yrt@e carried forward indefinitely. A valuation allance has been
established to reduce deferred income tax asgatsjpally foreign tax loss carryforwards to amaainiore likely
than not to be realized.

Uncertain Tax Positions

We are subject to tax audits in numerous jurisoitgiin the U.S. and around the world. Tax auditthieyr very
nature are often complex and can require seveaabyte complete. In the normal course of busingssare subject
to challenges from the Internal Revenue Servic&)l&d other tax authorities regarding amountsxag due.
These challenges may alter the timing or amourdxable income or deductions, or the allocatiomobme among
tax jurisdictions. As part of our calculation oktprovision for income taxes on earnings, we ddtexrwhether the
benefits of our tax positions are at least moreljithan not of being sustained upon audit basetth@mechnical
merits of the tax position. For tax positions theg more likely than not of being sustained upatitawe accrue the
largest amount of the benefit that is more likélgrt not of being sustained in our Consolidated iz Statement
Such accruals require management to make estimatefgdgments with respect to the ultimate outcofreetax
audit. Actual results could vary materially fronedle estimates.

The following is a summary of tax years that ardamger subject to examination;

Federal —audits of our U.S. federal income tax returns &weex through fiscal year 2006. In the first quarte
of 2009, the IRS completed their examination of dus. income tax returns for 2004 through 2006. Stia¢ute of
limitations for the 2006 years will expire on Sapter 15, 2010.

State — for the majority of states, we are no longerjsabto tax examinations by tax authorities for yaars
before 2006.

Foreign — we are no longer subject to foreign tax exanidmatby tax authorities for tax years before 2001 i
Canada and Brazil, and 2003 and 2007 in Mexicothed).K., respectively, which are our major foretgr
jurisdictions. In Brazil, we were assessed $15iom|lincluding penalties and interest, relatechotiax due on th
sale of our outbound auto carriage business in 20@lbelieve it is more likely than not that oux teosition will
ultimately be sustained and no amounts have besemvwed for this matter.
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The following table summarizes the activity relatedinrecognized tax benefits (excluding the feldeeaefit
received from state positions):

December 3:
2009 2008 2007

(In thousands
Balance at January $51,74.  65,30¢ 65,41¢
Additions based on tax positions related to theeniryeal 12,42 6,84C 5,571
Additions for tax positions of prior yea 9,61°¢ — 772
Reductions for tax positions of prior yei —  (11,29¢ (4,637)
Settlement: (1,995 (1,669 —
Reductions due to lapse of applicable statutenatditions (2,289 (7,445 (1,815
Gross balance at December 69,49 51,74, 65,30¢
Interest and penaltie 6,70¢ 3,99¢  9,79:
Balance at December . $76,20¢ 55,737 75,09¢

Of the total unrecognized tax benefits, $58 milljopt of the federal benefit on state issues) sepres the
amount of unrecognized tax benefits that, if reéoggh, would favorably affect the effective tax ratduture
periods. The total amount of accrued interest ardhlies, net of the federal benefit on state sstesulting from
such unrecognized tax benefits was $6 million afhdn$lion at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respegtivor the
years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 ,cegnized an income tax benefit related to intemast
penalties of $0.6 million, $2 million and $0.1 ri@h, respectively, within “Provision for income &s{ in our
Consolidated Statements of Earnings. Unrecogniretheénefits related to federal, state and foreagrpbsitions
may decrease by $2 million by December 31, 2018udfits are completed or tax years close durin@201

Like-Kind Exchange Program

We have a like-kind exchange program for certaiowfrevenue earning equipment operating in the
U.S. Pursuant to the program, we dispose of vehimhel acquire replacement vehicles in a form wihetabgains
on disposal of eligible vehicles are deferred. Talidy for like-kind exchange treatment, we exchanrough a
qualified intermediary, eligible vehicles beingmlised of with vehicles being acquired allowingagé¢nerally
carryover the tax basis of the vehicles sold (“lded exchanges”). The program is expected to tésw material
deferral of federal and state income taxes. Asqfdtie program, the proceeds from the sale oftdég/ehicles are
restricted for the acquisition of replacement vigsiand other specified applications. Due to thectire utilized to
facilitate the like-kind exchanges, the qualifiatermediary that holds the proceeds from the salefigible
vehicles and the entity that holds the vehicldsa@cquired under the program are required to heddiolated in the
accompanying Consolidated Financial Statementséonrdance with U.S. GAAP. At December 31, 2009 208,
these consolidated entities had total assets oh$ltién and $70 million, respectively.

15. LEASES
Leases as Lessor

We lease revenue earning equipment to customepgefards generally ranging from three to sevenyéar
trucks and tractors and up to ten years for trsilErom time to time, we may also lease facilit@third parties. Th
majority of our leases are classified as operdtages. However, some of our revenue earning
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equipment leases are classified as direct finareiages and, to a lesser extent, sales-type |eEseset investment
in direct financing and sales-type leases consisted

December 3:
2009 2008

(In thousands
Total minimum lease payments receiva $582,53. 602,57
Less: Executory cos (189,057 (204,60.)
Minimum lease payments receival 393,47  397,97¢
Less: Allowance for uncollectible (813) (4,724
Net minimum lease payments receivs 392,66: 393,25:
Unguaranteed residue 59,04¢ 58,98¢
Less: Unearned incon (98,147 (97,21H
Net investment in direct financing and s-type lease: 353,56¢  355,02¢
Current portior (68,296  (69,52()
Non-current portior $ 285,270 285,50t

Leases as Lessee

We lease vehicles, facilities and office equipmamder operating lease agreements. Rental paymemsrtain
vehicle lease agreements vary based on the nurhbgles run during the period. Generally, vehicade
agreements specify that rental payments be adjpsieodically based on changes in interest ratdgpaovide for
early termination at stipulated values. None ofleasing arrangements contain restrictive finanmaenants.

We periodically enter into sale and leaseback #etians in order to lower the total cost of fundmg
operations, to diversify our funding among diffarelasses of investors (e.g., regional banks, pensians,
insurance companies, etc.) and to diversify oudifug among different types of funding instrumentsese sale-
leaseback transactions are often executed witll-rarty financial institutions. In general, theséesleaseback
transactions result in a reduction in revenue egreguipment and debt on the balance sheet, asqatedrom the
sale of revenue earning equipment are used priyrtarilepay debt. Salleaseback transactions will result in redu
depreciation and interest expense and increasegregnt rental expense. During 2007, we completede-
leaseback transaction of revenue earning equipmigmé third-party and this transaction qualified 6ff-balance
sheet operating lease treatment. Proceeds frosathdeaseback transaction totaled $150 millions Téase
contains limited guarantees by us of the residahles of the leased vehicles (residual value gteeahthat are
conditioned upon disposal of the leased vehicles po the end of their lease term. We did not et any sale-
leaseback transactions during 2009 and 2008.

Certain leases contain purchase and (or) renevi@nsp as well as limited guarantees for a portibthe
lessor’s residual value. The residual value guaemare conditional on termination of the leaserd its
contractual lease term. The amount of residualevgliarantees expected to be paid is recognizezhaexpense
over the expected remaining term of the lease sRaud circumstances that impact management’s @eSrné
residual value guarantees include the market fed egjuipment, the condition of the equipment aetie of the
lease and inherent limitations in the estimatioocpss. See Note 19, “Guarantees,” for additiorfatmmation.

During 2009, 2008 and 2007, rent expense (includimg of facilities classified within “Operating pense,” in
our Consolidated Statements of Earnings but exe@udontingent rentals) was $163 million, $171 raoiili and
$173 million, respectively. During 2009, 2008 arfi)2 contingent rental expense (income) comprisedsifiual
value guarantees, payments based on miles rundfmstments to rental payments for
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changes in interest rates on all other leased heshieere $(2) million, $(1) million and $2 milliongespectively.

Lease Payments

Future minimum payments for leases in effect atdbdwer 31, 2009 were as follows:

As Lessor(®) As Lesset
Direct
Operating Financing  Operating
Leases Leases Leases
(In thousands)
2010 $1,251,371 135,06¢ 79,23¢
2011 982,27. 114,13 100,33t
2012 684,69 97,58: 49,40¢
2013 411,77. 78,39: 34,59
2014 215,83t 62,747 40,76:
Thereafter 149,27. 94,61: 34,04
Total $3,695,22; 582,53. 338,37!

(1) Amounts do not include contingent rentals, whicly in&received under certain leases on the bagisiles of use or changes in t
Consumer Price Index. Contingent rentals from ofirgpleases included in revenue during 2009, 2008 2007 were $326 million,
$354 million and $383 million, respectively. Cogmt rentals from direct financing leases includtedevenue during 2009, 2008 and 2007
were $13 million, $14 million and $16 million, resgpively.

The amounts in the previous table related to thedef revenue earning equipment are based upaetiezal
assumption that revenue earning equipment will reroa lease for the length of time specified by rtbepective
lease agreements. The future minimum payments mexbabove related to the lease of revenue eaegjagpment
are not a projection of future lease revenue oepgp; no effect has been given to renewals, neindass
cancellations, contingent rentals or future rai@ngjes. Total future sublease rentals from reveatr@rgy equipmer
under operating leases as lessee of $125 millieinatuded within the future minimum rental paynmsefur
operating leases as lessor.
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16. DEBT
Weighte-Average
Interest Ratt
December 3: December 3:
2009 2008 Maturities 2009 2008

(In thousands
Short-term debt and current portion of long-

term debt:
Unsecured foreign obligatiol 6.98% 9.02% 2010 $ 5,36¢ 14,63¢
Trade receivables progrs —% 2.7% — — 190,00t
Current portion of long-term debt,
including capital lease 227,24t 179,62
Total short-term debt and current portion
long-term debt 232,61  384,26.
Long-term debt
U.S. commercial papd®).(2) 0.4% 3.62% 2012 191,93: 34,80«
Canadian commercial pag®.(2) —% 2.8(% — — 8,28:
Unsecured U.S. notes — Medium-tern
notes®) 5.8%% 5.7% 2010202¢ 2,032,34. 2,306,75:
Unsecured U.S. obligations, principally
bank term loan 1.45% 3.4(% 201(-201z 132,15(  157,15(
Unsecured foreign obligatiol 5.22% 5.07% 2010201z 112,78. 120,94
Capital lease obligatior 8.26% 9.31% 201(-2017 11,01 11,841
Total before fair market value adjustmi 2,480,22. 2,639,77.
Fair market value adjustment on notes
subject to hedgin®) 12,10: 18,39

2,492,32; 2,658,16:
Current portion of long-term debt, including

capital lease (227,249 (179,62)
Long-term debi 2,265,07. 2,478,53
Total debi $2,497,69. 2,862,79!

(1) We had unamortized original issue discounts of ilRon at both December 31, 2009 and 20

(2) Commercial paper borrowings are supported by thegierm revolving credit facility; therefore, we haslassified the commercial paper
long-term debt

(3) The notional amount of executed interest rate svigssgnated as fair value hedges was $250 millidmogh December 31, 2009 and 20
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Maturities of debt were as follows:

Capital Lease: Debt
(In thousands)

2010 $ 2,67¢ 230,75:
2011 2,291 419,44t
2012 2,22t 452,54
2013 2,03¢ 361,78
2014 2,03( 249,97¢
Thereafter 2,48¢ 772,17(

Total 13,74¢ 2,486,68!
Imputed interest (2,739

Present value of minimum capitalized lease paymen 11,01:
Current portion (1,865

Long-term capitalized lease obligatior $ 9,14¢

Debt Facilities

In April 2009, we executed a new $875 million glbtevolving credit facility with a syndicate of tiéen
lending institutions led by Bank of America N.A.aBk of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd., Mizuho Corpordank,
Ltd., Royal Bank of Scotland Plc and Wells Fargé Nl his facility replaced a $870 million credit faty that was
scheduled to mature in May 2010. The new globalitfacility matures in April 2012 and is used parily to
finance working capital and provide support for iggiance of unsecured commercial paper in thedh&Canada.
This facility can also be used to issue up to $1bam in letters of credit (there were no lettarfscredit outstanding
against the facility at December 31, 2009). At option, the interest rate on borrowings under tieglit facility is
based on LIBOR, prime, federal funds or local egléwat rates. The credit facility’s current annwadility fee is
37.5 basis points, which applies to the total fgcdize of $875 million. This fee ranges from 2Bdsis points to
62.5 basis points and is based on Ryder’s long-teedit ratings. The credit facility contains n@wisions limiting
its availability in the event of a material advecbange to Ryder’s business operations; howeverrdit facility
does contain standard representations and warsaetients of default, cross-default provisions, eentiain
affirmative and negative covenants. In order tori@an availability of funding, we must maintainatio of debt to
consolidated tangible net worth, of less than araétp 300%. Tangible net worth, as defined indrelit facility,
includes 50% of our deferred federal income talility and excludes the book value of our intang&lIThe ratio at
December 31, 2009 was 155%. At December 31, 2088 #illion was available under the credit facility

We have a trade receivables purchase and saleapnpgursuant to which we sell certain of our doimdsade
accounts receivable to a bankruptcy remote, cattestelil subsidiary of Ryder, that in turn may seilaaevolving
basis, an ownership interest in certain of thesewus receivable to a receivables conduit or cdtethpurchasers.
We use this program to provide additional liquidibyfund our operations, particularly when it isteffective to do
s0. The costs under the program may vary basettiamges in interest rates. In October 2009, we reddhe trade
receivables purchase and sale program. The avagabteeds amount that may be received under tlgggm was
reduced at that time from $250 million to $175 raill at our election based on our projected finapcaguirement:
If no event occurs which causes early terminatiloa,364-day program will expire on October 29, 200lte
program contains provisions restricting its avallghin the event of a material adverse changeuobusiness
operations or the collectibility of the collaterd receivables. At December 31, 2009, no amouets wutstanding
under the program. At December 31, 2008, $190anilvas outstanding under the program and was iadludthin
“Short-term debt and current portion
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of long-term debt” on our Consolidated Balance &he&t December 31, 2008, the amount of collateeali
receivables under the program was $210 million.

In August 2008, we issued $300 million of unsecureslium-term notes maturing in September 2015df t
notes are downgraded following, and as a resuli ohange of control, the note holder can requsreouepurchase
all or a portion of the notes at a purchase prigeakto 101% of the principal amount plus accrued anpaid
interest. Our other outstanding unsecured U.S srarte not subject to change of control repurchhggations. In
February 2008, we issued $250 million of unsecunedium-term notes maturing in March 2013. The pedse
from the notes were used for general corporateqaash

In February 2007, Ryder filed an automatic shedigation statement on Form S-3 with the Secwritied
Exchange Commission. The registration is for ariedninate number of securities and is effectivalcee years.
Under this universal shelf registration statemesethave the capacity to offer and sell from timére various
types of securities, including common stock, prefeistock and debt securities, subject to marketashel and
ratings status.

Debt Retirements

In September 2009, we completed a $100 million tiefider offer at a total cost of $104 million. Weghased
$50 million aggregate principal amount of outstagds.95% medium-term notes maturing May 2011 and
$50 million aggregate principal amount of outstaigdd.625% medium-term notes maturing April 2010. We
recorded a pre-tax debt extinguishment charge ohi#iton which included $3 million for the premiupaid and
$1 million for the write-off of unamortized origihdebt discount and issuance costs and fees dnahgaction.
These charges have been included within “Restringf@and other charges, net.”

In 1987, we issued at a discount $100 million gpatamount of unsecured debentures due May 2047 at
stated interest rate of’d 8%, payable semannually. In 1986, we issued at a discount $100aniprincipal amour
of unsecured debentures due May 2016, with a siatexest rate of 9.0%, payable semi-annually. Bp&007, we
retired the remaining $53 million principal amowfithe 2017 debentures at a premium. Also durir@i/2/e made
a sinking fund payment to retire the remaining $#iilion principal amount of the 2016 debentures. &eognized
pre-tax charges of $1 million in 2007 related te gnemium paid on the early extinguishment andnttiee-off of
related debt discount and issuance costs in copnestth these retirements. These charges haveibekmled
within “Restructuring and other charges, net.”

17. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The following tables present our assets and lidslithat are measured at fair value on a recubasis and the
levels of inputs used to measure fair value:

Fair Value Measurements
At December 31, 2009 Usin
Balance Sheet Locatic Level 1 Level 2 Level 2 Total
(In thousands)

Assets:
Investments held in Rabbi Trus DFL and other asse $19,68¢ — — 19,68¢
Interest rate swa DFL and other asse — 12,10: — 12,10:
Total assets at fair valt $19,68¢ 12,10: — 31,783
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Fair Value Measuremen
At December 31, 2008 Usir
Balance Sheet Locatic Level 1 Level 2 Level I Total
(In thousands

Assets:
Investments held in Rabbi Tru: DFL and other asse $16,95( — — 16,95(
Interest rate swa DFL and other asse — 18,39: — 18,39:
Total assets at fair valt $16,95( 18,39: — 35,34
Liabilities:
Foreign exchange contrac Accrued expense $ — 607 — 607
Total liabilities at fair value $ o 607 — 607

The following table presents our assets that a@sored at fair value on a nonrecurring basis aadetels of
inputs used to measure fair value:

Fair Value Measurements Total Losses®
At December 31, 2009 Usin December 31

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2009
Assets:
Revenue earning equipment held for ¢ $ — — 44,27¢ $  52,28¢
Operating property and equipment held for ! — — 8,75: 6,67¢
Total assets at fair valt $ — — 53,02¢ $  58,96(

(1) Total losses represent fair value adjustments fovehicles and property held for sale throughdwe period for which fair value was less
than carrying value

Revenue earning equipment held for sale is statdwedower of carrying amount or fair value lessts to sell.
For revenue earning equipment held for sale, vagifstrour fleet by vehicle type (tractors, trucksilers), weight
class, age and other relevant characteristics mradecclasses of similar assets for analysis pegpdsir value was
determined based upon recent market prices obtéioedour own sales experience for sales of eaabsabf simila
assets and vehicle condition. Therefore, our re¢ararning equipment held for sale was classifigdiwievel 3 of
the fair value hierarchy. At December 31, 2009,rtbecarrying value of revenue earning equipmeld foe sale
was $79 million, of which $44 million was recordatfair value less costs to sell of $0.8 milliom.2009, 2008 and
2007, we recorded a loss to reflect changes invédire of $52 million, $29 million and $42 milliorespectively,
within “Depreciation expense” in the Consolidatadt&8ments of Earnings.

Operating property and equipment held for saleasgmts a SCS facility in Singapore for which theyiag
amount was required to be written down to fair eatdi $9 million, resulting in an impairment loss& million.
Fair value was based on an appraisal of the facittermined using observable market data and tdjdisr recent
offers. Therefore, our operating property and eapgpt held for sale is classified within Level 3tloé fair value
hierarchy.

Total fair value of debt at December 31, 2009 ab@8was $2.60 billion and $2.55 billion, respedgvé&or
publicly-traded debt, estimates of fair value assdadl on market prices. For other debt, fair vauestimated based
on rates currently available to us for debt withitar terms and remaining maturities. The carryangounts reporte
in the Consolidated Balance Sheets for cash ardezpsvalents, accounts receivable and accounthbay
approximate fair value because of the immediathort-term maturities of these financial instrunsent
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18. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT
Interest Rate Risk

From time to time, we enter into interest rate saagd cap agreements to manage our fixed and vauiiatgres
rate exposure and to better match the repricirdpbf instruments to that of our portfolio of assé¥e assess the
risk that changes in interest rates will have eithrethe fair value of debt obligations or on tinecaint of future
interest payments by monitoring changes in intaastexposures and by evaluating hedging oppdigsniVe
regularly monitor interest rate risk attributaldebioth our outstanding or forecasted debt obligatiams well as our
offsetting hedge positions. This risk managemeotgss involves the use of analytical techniquedyding cash
flow sensitivity analysis, to estimate the expedtedact of changes in interest rates on our futah flows.

In February 2008, we entered into an interestsai@p with a notional amount of $250 million matgrin
March 2013. The swap was designated as a fair veddge whereby we receive fixed interest rate paysnea
exchange for making variable interest rate paymdirits differential to be paid or received is acdraad
recognized as interest expense. The interestuwatp agreement effectively changed $250 millionixéd-rate debt
with an interest rate of 6.00% to LIBOR-based fiogirate debt at a rate of 2.90% and 5.25% at Deeerd1, 2009
and 2008, respectively. Changes in the fair vafu@@interest rate swap are offset by changelsdrfdir value of
the debt instrument. Accordingly, there is no irefiveness related to the interest rate swap.

Currency Risk

From time to time, we use forward foreign curreegghange contracts and crasgs¥ency swaps to manage
exposure to movements in foreign currency exchaatgs.

During 2009 and 2008, we entered into forward fpmeiurrency exchange contracts to mitigate theaisk
foreign currency movements on intercompany transast At December 31, 2009, there were no forwardign
currency exchange contracts outstanding. At DeceBbe2008, the aggregate notional value of thetantling
contracts was $13 million. These forward foreigmency exchange contracts were accounted for dsfloas
hedges. The fair values of the forward foreign ency exchange contracts were recognized as antadioisto
“Accumulated other comprehensive loss.” Amountdassified to earnings fromAtcumulated other comprehens
loss” were immaterial.

During 2002, we entered into a five-year $78 millzyoss-currency swap to hedge our net investnmesnt i
foreign subsidiary. The swap matured in Novemb@&720 he hedge was effective in eliminating the dfkoreign
currency movements on the investment and, as stashaccounted for under the net investment heduwieg.
Losses associated with changes in the fair valdbeo€ross-currency swap for the year ended Dece@&ihe007
were $6 million and were reflected in the curretrapslation adjustment within “Accumulated othempwehensive
loss.” The accumulated derivative net loss fordiass-currency swap was $17 million, net of tag®imillion, and
will be recognized in earnings upon sale or reptitm of our net investment in the foreign subsigi®y rule,
interest costs associated with the cross-currewey svere required to be reflected in “Accumulatéteo
comprehensive loss” and totaled $4 million at Delsen81, 2009. These interest costs will also begeized in
earnings upon sale or repatriation of our net itmest in the foreign subsidiary.
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The location and amount of gains (losses) on diévizanstruments and related hedged items repantéae
Consolidated Statements of Earnings were as follows

Location of Gair

(Loss) Recognize December 3:
Fair Value Hedging Relationsh in Income 2009 2008 2007
(In thousands
Derivative: Interest rate swe Interest expen: $(6,29() 18,39: (96)
Hedged item: Fixe-rate deb Interest expen: 6,29 (18,39) 96
Total $ — — —

19. GUARANTEES

We have executed various agreements with thirdgsatttat contain standard indemnifications that meayire
us to indemnify a third party against losses agisiom a variety of matters such as lease obligatifinancing
agreements, environmental matters, and agreenwsédl tbusiness assets. In each of these instapagsent by
Ryder is contingent on the other party bringingwataoclaim under the procedures outlined in theifipe
agreement. Normally, these procedures allow usstoute the other party’s claim. Additionally, owligations
under these agreements may be limited in termiseo&imount and (or) timing of any claim. We haveset into
individual indemnification agreements with eactoaf independent directors, through which we widléemnify sucl
director acting in good faith against any and @dkles, expenses and liabilities arising out of sliglttor’s service
as a director of Ryder. The maximum amount of pidefuture payments under these agreements isrgine
unlimited.

We cannot predict the maximum potential amountuaire payments under certain of these agreements,
including the indemnification agreements, due tdbntingent nature of the potential obligationd tre distinctive
provisions that are involved in each individualegment. Historically, no such payments made byaws had a
material adverse effect on our business. We betieateif a loss were incurred in any of these rmatie loss woul
not have a material adverse impact on our condeliieesults of operations or financial position.

At December 31, 2009 and 2008, the maximum detebténexposure of each type of guarantee and the
corresponding liability, if any, recorded on thenSolidated Balance Sheets were as follows:

December 31, 200! December 31, 20C
Maximum Carrying Maximum Carrying
Exposure o Amount of Exposure ¢ Amount o
Guarantet Guarantee Liability Guarantet Liability
(In thousands

Vehicle residual value guarante— finance lease progrant) $ 2,28t 1,25¢ 2,332 93¢
Used vehicle financin 1,59¢ 104 4,16: 472
Standby letters of crec 7,50¢ 7,521 7,77¢ —
Total $ 11,38¢ 8,88¢ 14,27: 1,407

(1) Amounts exclude contingent rentals associated wildual value guarantees on certain vehicles luglder operating leases for which t
guarantees are conditioned upon disposal of theddavehicles prior to the end of their lease tehtrDecember 31, 2009 and 2008, «
maximum exposure for such guarantees was approgiyn®159 million and $200 million, respectivelyttw$4 million and $2 million
recorded as a liability at 2009 and 2008, respeslijv

We have provided vehicle residual value guarartie@xependent third parties for certain finanaske
programs made available to customers. If the sateseeds from the final disposition of the assetddess than the
residual value guarantee, we are required to pagifference to the independent third party. The
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individual customer finance leases expire peridtficarough 2017 but may be extended at the ernghcoh lease
term. At both December 31, 2009 and 2008, our maxirexposure for such guarantees was approximately
$2 million, with $1 million recorded as a liability both 2009 and 2008.

We maintain agreements with independent third @suftr the financing of used vehicle purchases by
customers. Certain agreements require that we gedinancial guarantees on defaulted customer &otstup to a
maximum exposure amount. The individual used vehpadrchase contracts expire periodically through?2@t
December 31, 2009 and 2008, our maximum exposurgifth guarantees was approximately $2 million and
$4 million, respectively, with approximately $0.1llion and $0.5 million recorded as a liability @ecember 31,
2009 and 2008, respectively.

At December 31, 2009 and 2008, we had lettersegfitand surety bonds outstanding, which primarily
guarantee various insurance activities as notdkirfiollowing table:

December 3:
2009 2008
(In thousands
Letters of credi $179,50° 199,64
Surety bond: 83,23! 49,52

Certain of these letters of credit and surety bandsantee insurance activities associated witlramee claim
liabilities transferred in conjunction with the saf our automotive transport business, reportetistontinued
operations in previous years. To date, the ins@ratams representing per-claim deductibles payabéier third-
party insurance policies have been paid and coatiole paid by the company that assumed suclitiei
However, if all or a portion of the estimated oatsting assumed claims of approximately $8 million a
December 31, 2009 are unable to be paid, the gartl insurers may have recourse against certaimeof
outstanding letters of credit provided by Rydeoider to satisfy the unpaid claim deductibles. rden to reduce ot
potential exposure to these claims, during 200@re& upon an $8 million outstanding letter of cteubvided by
the purchaser and recorded a deposit and correisypliability at December 31, 2009. Periodically, actuarial
valuation will be made in order to better estintate amount of outstanding insurance claim liaketi

20. SHAREHOLDERY EQUITY

In December 2009, our Board of Directors authoriaethare repurchase program intended to mitigate th
dilutive impact of shares issued under our varemployee stock, stock option and employee stockhage plans.
Under the December 2009 program, management isi@agd to repurchase shares of common stock imsuat
not to exceed the number of shares issued to emgsoynder the Company’s various employee stoctk station
and employee stock purchase plans from Decemta80B, through December 15, 2011. The December 2009
program limits aggregate share repurchases to me than 2 million shares of Ryder common stock.r&ha
repurchases of common stock are made periodicathpéen-market transactions and are subject to marke
conditions, legal requirements and other factorandfjement may establish prearranged written ptartaé
Company under Rule 10b5-1 of the Securities Exchad of 1934 as part of the December 2009 progreimch
allow for share repurchases during Ryder’'s quartedckout periods as set forth in the trading plaie did not
repurchase any shares under this program in 2009.

In December 2007, our Board of Directors authoria&g800 million discretionary share repurchase aiog
over a period not to exceed two years. Additionallyr Board of Directors authorized a separate ye@r- anti-
dilutive repurchase program. The adiidtive program limited aggregate share repurchasao more than 2 millic
shares of Ryder common stock. Towards the endeothtind quarter of 2008, we paused purchases watar
programs given market conditions at that time. W&umed purchases under both programs in the fqudtter of
2009 through the end of the programs’ two year $2im 2009 and 2008,
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we repurchased and retired 2,348,909 shares ah8,Q@ shares, respectively, under the $300 mipimyram at
an aggregate cost of $100 million and $170 milli@spectively. In 2009 and 2008, we repurchasedetied
377,372 shares and 1,363,436 shares, respectivalgr the anti-dilutive program at an aggregaté abs

$16 million and $86 million, respectively.

In May 2007, our Board of Directors authorized &@&nillion share repurchase program over a peraidm
exceed two years. This program was completed dahiedhird quarter of 2007 and we repurchased atictd
3,713,783 shares at an aggregate cost of $20@milli

In May 2006, our Board of Directors authorized atyear share repurchase program intended to netitpat
dilutive impact of shares issued under our varemgloyee stock option and stock purchase plansMi&ye2006
program limited aggregate share repurchases toame than 2 million shares of Ryder common stocks Phograrn
was completed during the first quarter of 20072007, we repurchased and retired 168,715 shares timel May
2006 program at an aggregate cost of $9 million.

21. ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOS!

The following summary sets forth the componentaagfumulated other comprehensive loss, net of tax:

Accumulatec

Currency Unrealized Other
Translatior Net Actuaria Prior Servic.  Transition  Gain (Loss, Comprehensiv
Adjustment: Loss®) Credit®  Obligation®™ on Derivative Loss
(In thousands
January 1, 200 $ 54,847 (216,47() 14,97 114 36 (146,49)
Amortization — 13,28( (1,98¢) (23 — 11,26¢
Pension curtailmer — 10,51( — — — 10,51(

Current period chanc® 62,05 31,83¢ — — (52 93,83¢
December 31, 200 116,89¢ (160,84) 12,99: 91 (16) (30,87
Amortization — 4,35( (1,765 (21) — 2,56¢
Pension curtailmer — 1,031 (2,31¢ — — (1,287
Current period chanc (180,819 (333,689 — — (119)  (514,62)
December 31, 200 (63,92) (489,149  8,90¢ 70 (135)  (544,22)
Amortization — 15,85¢ (1,550 (18 — 14,28
Pension curtailment —  (12,18) 124 — — (12,05%)
Realized currency translation loss, ne®) 14,21: — — — — 14,21:
Current period change 82,68 66,03 — — 14¢ 148,86°
December 31, 200! $ 32,97¢ (419,44Y 7,48 52 14 (378,919

(1) Amounts pertain to our pension and (or) postretieatrbenefit plans
(2) The 2007 currency translation adjustment amouniuithes a $9 million tax benefit from the settlenm&rdur cros-currency swap
(3) Amount pertains to liquidation of our investmemtséveral discontinued operatiol
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22. EARNINGS PER SHARE INFORMATIO?

The following table presents the calculation ofibasd diluted earnings per common share from oairtg
operations:

Years ended December
2009 2008 2007
(In thousands, exce
per share amount

Earnings per share— Basic:

Earnings from continuing operatio $90,11° 257,57¢ 251,77¢
Less: Distributed and undistributed earnings atieddo nonvested stor (9649) (2,359 (1,570
Earnings from continuing operations available tomown shareholde— Basic  $89,15: 255,22t  250,20¢
Weighted average common shares outstan— Basic 55,03¢ 56,20« 59,324
Earnings from continuing operations per commone— Basic $ 1.6z 4.54 4.22
Earnings per share— Diluted:

Earnings from continuing operatio $90,11° 257,57¢ 251,77¢
Less: Distributed and undistributed earnings atieddo nonvested stot (964) (2,347 (1,567
Earnings from continuing operations available tmown shareholde— Diluted $89,15:  255,23( 250,21¢
Weighted average common shares outstan— Basic 55,03t 56,20« 59,324
Effect of dilutive options 59 33t 404
Weighted average common shares outstan— Diluted 55,09 56,53¢ 59,72¢
Earnings from continuing operations per commone— Diluted $ 1.6z 4.51 4.1¢
Anti-dilutive equity awards not included abc 2,632 1,10¢ 871

23. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS

The following table provides information on shawesed compensation expense and income tax benefits
recognized in 2009, 2008 and 2007:

Years ended December

2009 2008 2007
(In thousands
Stock option and stock purchase pl $ 9,887 10,617 9,717
Nonvested stoc 6,517 6,45¢ 7,03
Shar-based compensation expel 16,40¢ 17,07¢ 16,75«
Income tax benef (5,412 (5,679 (5,609
Share-based compensation expense, net o $10,99: 11,407 11,14¢

Total unrecognized pre-tax compensation expenageceto share-based compensation arrangements at
December 31, 2009 was $22 million and is expeadibtrecognized over a weighted-average period of
approximately 1.7 years. The total fair value afiggawards vested during the years ended DeceB1he2009,
2008, and 2007 was $14 million, $14 million, and $dillion, respectively.
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Share-Based Incentive Awards

Share-based incentive awards are provided to erapfoynder the terms of six share-based compengddios
(collectively, the “Plans”). The Plans are admiaistl by the Compensation Committee of the Boaidiiactors.
Awards under the Plans principally include at-therey stock options and nonvested stock. The anufisitares
authorized to be issued under the Plans was 8lidmét December 31, 2009. There were 4.1 millionsed shares
available to be granted under the Plans as of Dieeei, 2009.

A majority of share-based compensation expenserismgted from stock options. Stock options are dsvar
which allow employees to purchase shares of owksdba fixed price. Stock option awards are gihatean
exercise price equal to the market price of ouckstd the time of grant. These awards, which gdiyerast one-
third each year, are fully vested three years ftioengrant date and generally have contractual tefrasven years.

Restricted stock awards are nonvested stock rthhtsare granted to employees and entitle the hoddghares
of common stock as the award vests. Participasteatitled to non-forfeitable dividend equivaleatssuch
awarded shares, but the sale or transfer of theses s restricted during the vesting period. Frasted restricted
stock rights typically vest in three years regasdlef company performance. The fair value of thetivested
awards is determined and fixed on the grant datedan Ryder’s stock price on the date of grantkitabased
restricted stock awards include a market-basedngeptovision. For the 2009 grant, employees oabeive the
grant of stock if Ryder’s cumulative average tatadreholder return (TSR) at least meets the S&RcG6ulative
average TSR over an applicable three-year periodthe grants issued prior to 2009, employees mdgive the
grant of stock if Ryder’s total shareholder ret(iF&R) at least meets the S&P 500 TSR over an aipéchreeyeal
period. The fair value of the markk&sed awards is determined on the date of gransdyaked on the likelihood
Ryder achieving the market-based condition. Expensine market-based restricted stock awards egrézed
regardless of whether the awards vest.

Employees granted market-based restricted stobksragso received market-based cash awards. The cas
awards granted during 2009 and 2008 have the sasimg provisions as the market-based restricmak ights
except that Ryder’'s TSR must at least meet the dfSRe 33rd percentile of the S&P 500. The cashrdsvgranted
in 2007 are expected to approximate the amourteofax liability relating to the vesting of the trésted stock
awards and will vest on the same date as the mbdsed restricted stock awards. The cash awardgeoeinted fc
as liability awards as the cash settlement amaubdsed upon the price of our common stock. Asuatreghe
liability is adjusted to reflect fair value at tead of each reporting period. The fair value of¢heh awards was
estimated using a lattice-based option pricing ai@dun model that incorporates a Monte-Carlo simaoitatThe
liability related to the cash awards was $4 millarboth December 31, 2009 and 2008. In additichéshare-
based compensation expense noted in the previbles e recognized compensation expense of $2omijlli
$3 million, and $0.1 million during the years endgecember 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectivelgtad to cas
awards.

We grant restricted stock units (RSUs) to non-manant members of the Board of Directors. Once grint
RSUs are eligible for non-forfeitable dividend egléents but have no voting rights. The fair valfighe awards is
determined and fixed on the grant date based omfysdtock price on the date of grant. The board memgoeive:
the RSUs upon their departure from the Board. &l grant of RSUs will not vest unless the ditechas served
minimum of one year. When the board member recéahefSUs, they are redeemed for an equivalent auofb
shares of Ryder’s common stock. Compensation explendRSUs was historically based on assumed ydars
service to retirement at age 72. However, becaves®EUs do not contain an explicit service vegtiedod, except
for the initial grant, compensation expense shhalde been recognized in the year the RSUs wer¢egtaather
than over the assumed years of service. Thetiomeimpact of accelerating the recognition of cemgation expen
on previously issued RSUs was a pre-tax charge afilion for 2007.
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Option Awards

The following is a summary of option activity undmrr stock option plans as of December 31, 2008, an
changes during the year ended December 31, 2009:

Weighted-
Weighted- Average
Average Remaining
Exercise Contractual Aggregate
Shares Price Term Intrinsic Value
(In thousands' (In years) (In thousands)
Options outstanding at Januar 2,418 $ 47.3¢
Granted 922 32.7¢
Exercisec (96) 19.8¢
Forfeited or expirel (215) 48.3¢
Options outstanding at December 3,02¢ $ 43.7( 43 $ 11,02¢
Vested and expected to vest at Decembe 2,937 $ 44.0¢ 42  $ 9,641
Exercisable at December 1,55¢ $ 45.0( 30 $ 3,192

The aggregate intrinsic values in the table abepeasent the total pre-tax intrinsic value (théedénce
between the market price of Rydestock on the last trading day of the year anditecise price, multiplied by tt
number of in-the-money options) that would havenbeseeived by the option holders had all optiordacd
exercised their options at year-end. The amoumgdmbased on the fair market value of Ryder'skstoc

Information about options in various price rangeB@cember 31, 2009 follows:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted-
Average Weighted- Weighted-
Remaining Average Exercist Average Exercist
Price Ranges Shares Contractual Term Price Shares Price
(In thousands; (In years) (In thousands;
Less than $35.0( 96¢ 5 $ 31.3¢ 10C $ 19.9¢
35.00-40.00 212 1.€ 37.0C 212 37.0C
40.0(-45.00 70€ 2.8 43.4¢€ 70C 43.4¢
45.00 and ovel 1,14C 4.€ 55.4¢€ 54¢€ 54.64
Total 3,02¢ 43 % 43.7( 1,55¢ $ 45.0(C
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Stock Awards

The following is a summary of the status of Rydeisvested stock awards as of December 31, 2009 and
changes during the year ended December 31, 2009:

Time-Vested Market-Based Vested

Weighted- Weighted-

Average Average

Grant Date Grant Date

Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value

(In thousands’ (In thousands’

Nonvested stock outstanding at Janua 27¢ $ 53.8¢ 266 $ 36.5¢
Granted 60 32.4¢ 201 16.4¢
Vested (48) 51.82 (72 25.5¢
Forfeited (30 52.8i (32) 33.4(
Nonvested stock outstanding at Decembe 25¢ $ 49.3% 364 $ 29.1¢

Stock Purchase Plan

Ryder maintains an Employee Stock Purchase PlaRRESvhich enables eligible participants in the.ldu&1
Canada to purchase full or fractional shares ofdRgdmmon stock through payroll deductions of up386 of
eligible compensation. The ESPP provides for qugrtéfering periods during which shares may becpaised at
85% of the fair market value on either the firsttog last trading day of the quarter, whichevédess. Stock
purchased under the ESPP must generally be hefibfdays. The amount of shares authorized to bedssnder
the existing ESPP was 2.7 million at December 8092 There were 0.3 million unused shares availabbe
granted under the ESPP at December 31, 2009.

The following table summarizes the status of Ryslstock purchase plan:

Weighted-
Weighted- Average
Average Remaining
Exercise Contractual Aggregate
Shares Price Term Intrinsic Value
(In thousands, (In years) (In thousands)
Outstanding at January — 8 —
Granted 23¢ 25.47
Exercisec (239) 25.42
Forfeited or expirel — —
Outstanding at December —  $ — — 3 =
Exercisable at December — 3 — — $ —

Share-Based Compensation Fair Value Assumptions

The fair value of each option award is estimatedhendate of grant using a Black-Scholes-Mertomoopt
pricing valuation model that uses the weighted-agerassumptions noted in the table below. Expealkzdility is
based on historical volatility of Ryder’s stock antplied volatility from traded options on Rydes®ck. The risk-
free rate for periods within the contractual lifetlee stock option award is based on the yield ewfva zero-coupon
U.S. Treasury bond on the date the stock optiondigagranted with a maturity equal to the expedéerh of the
stock option award. We use historical data to estiinstock option exercises and forfeitures withivaluation
model. The expected term of stock option awardatgthis derived from historical exercise experiemeder the
sharebased employee compensation arrangements andertméise period of time that stock option awardsgac
are expected to be outstanding. The fair value
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of market-based stock awards is estimated usiatfiad-based option-pricing valuation model thabiporates a
Monte-Carlo simulation. Estimates of fair value aot intended to predict actual future events entalue
ultimately realized by employees who receive eqaitiards, and subsequent events are not indicative o
reasonableness of the original estimates of fdirevenade by Ryder.

The following table presents the weighted-averageiaptions used for options granted:

Years ended December

2009 2008 2007
Option plans
Expected dividend 1.5% 1.6% 1.6%
Expected volatility 46.4% 31.9% 26.9%
Risk-free rate 2.8% 2.4% 4.8%
Expected tern 3.1 year: 3.7 year 3.9 year
Gran-date fair value $ 9.2¢ $ 1400 $ 128
Purchase plar
Expected dividend 2.8% 1.6% 1.6%
Expected volatility 67.6% 45.7% 25.0%
Risk-free rate 0.2% 1.9% 4.7%
Expected tern 0.25 year: 0.25 year 0.25 year
Gran-date fair value $ 94: $ 1400 $ 104

Exercise of Employee Stock Options and Purchase Pis

The total intrinsic value of options exercised dgrthe years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, arth2a8
$2 million, $29 million, and $17 million, respeatly. The total cash received from employees asultref
exercises under all share-based employee compemsatangements for the years ended December 89, 2008,
and 2007 was $7 million, $55 million, and $42 noilj respectively. In connection with these exessifige tax
benefits realized from share-based employee comtiensarrangements were $0.4 million, $8 milliongda
$5 million for the years ended December 31, 200982and 2007, respectively.

24. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS
Pension Plans

Ryder historically sponsored several defined bépeinsion plans covering most employees not coveyed
union-administered plans, including certain empésyim foreign countries. These plans generally idexl/
participants with benefits based on years of seraitd career-average compensation levels. Therfgmuilicy for
these plans were to make contributions based omadhuiservice costs plus amortization of unfunded pasvice
liability, but not greater than the maximum allowabontribution deductible for federal income taxgoses. We
may, from time to time, make voluntary contribudon our pension plans, which exceed the amounines) by
statute. The majority of the plans’ assets aresteckin a master trust that, in turn, is investeécharily in listed
stocks and bonds. As discussed under Pension [hetds, we have frozen all of our major defineddf#mpension
plans.

Ryder has a non-qualified supplemental pension @iaering certain U.S. employees, which provides fo
incremental pension payments from Ryder’s fundthabtotal pension payments equal the amountsatbald have
been payable from Ryder’s principal pension plaftswere not for limitations imposed by income tagulations.
The accrued pension liability related to this pheas $37 million at both December 31, 2009 and 2008.
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Ryder also participates in multi-employer plang gravide defined benefits to certain employeeseced by
collective-bargaining agreements. Such plans arellysadministered by a board of trustees comprifetie
management of the participating companies and laesentatives. The net pension cost of theses jdaequal to
the annual contribution determined in accordandh thie provisions of negotiated labor contractseis
contributed to such plans are not segregated enwtbe restricted to provide benefits only to ergpls of Ryder.

Pension Expense
Pension expense for continuing operations was| s\
Years ended December

2009 2008 2007
(In thousands

Compan-administered plan:

Service cos $ 21,02: 25,16: 37,68¢
Interest cos 93,00¢ 92,46¢ 86,61¢
Expected return on plan ass (74,92%) (120,627 (118,529
Curtailment loss (gair 58 (3,607%) —
Amortization of:
Transition obligatior (25) (29 (32
Net actuarial los 24,02¢ 5,947 19,40(
Prior service cred (2,197 (2,52¢) (2,89¢)
60,97« (3,210 22,24«
Union-administered plan 5,25¢€ 4,88¢ 4,84:
Net pension expen: $ 66,23( 1,67¢ 27,08
Compan-administered plan:
u.s. $ 50,86: (5,568  11,18:
Foreign 10,11 2,35¢ 11,06
60,97« (3,210 22,24«
Union-administered plan 5,25¢€ 4,88¢ 4,84:

$ 66,23( 1,67¢ 27,08

The following table sets forth the weighted-averagtiarial assumptions used for Ryder’s pensionspia
determining annual pension expense:

U.S. Plans Foreign Plan:

Years ended December Years ended December

2009 2008 2007 2009 2008 2007
Discount rate 6.25% 6.35% 6.00% 6.81% 5.66% 4.84%
Rate of increase in compensation le\ 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.24% 4.13% 3.33%
Expected lon-term rate of return on plan ass 7.90% 8.40% 8.50% 7.15% 7.50% 7.50%
Transition amortization in yea — — — 2 4 5
Gain and loss amortization in ye: 27 28 8 17 11 8

The return on plan assets assumption reflects #dighted-average of the expected long-term ratestofn for
the broad categories of investments held in thesplahe expected long-term rate of return is
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adjusted when there are fundamental changes ircgeeturns or in asset allocation strategieb®fplan assets.

Pension Curtailments
Over the past few years, we have made the followiagpr amendments to our defined benefit retirerpéanis:

* In July 2009, our Board of Directors approved areadment to freeze our United Kingdom (UK) retirett
plan for all participants effective March 31, 20

« In July 2008, our Board of Directors approved areadment to freeze the defined benefit portion af ou
Canadian retirement plan effective January 1, Z64.08urrent participants who do not meet certain
grandfathering criterie

e In January 2007, our Board of Directors approvedaimendment to freeze the U.S. pension plans ifect
December 31, 2007 for current participants whorditimeet certain grandfathering critel

As a result of these amendments, goandfathered plan participants will cease accrbmgefits under the plz
as of the respective amendment effective date ah8egin receiving an enhanced benefit under neelf
contribution plan. All retirement benefits earnadofithe amendment effective date will be fullygeeved and will
be paid in accordance with the plan and legal requénts. The freeze of the Canadian defined belefitcreated
pre-tax curtailment gain in 2008 of $4 million. Thevas no material impact to our financial conditand operating
results from the other plan amendments in 2009067 2
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Obligations and Funded Status

The following table sets forth the benefit obligai$, assets and funded status associated with Rymgrsion

and supplemental pension plans:

Change in benefit obligation
Benefit obligations at January

Service cost, including discontinued operati

Interest cos

Actuarial loss (gain

Benefits paic

Curtailment

Foreign currency exchange rate char
Benefit obligations at December
Change in plan asse
Fair value of plan assets at Janua

Actual return on plan asse

Employer contributior

Participant’ contributions

Benefits paic

Foreign currency exchange rate char
Fair value of plan assets at Decembe
Funded statu

Amounts recognized in the consolidated balancetsloaasisted of:

Noncurrent asse¢
Current liability
Noncurrent liability

Net amount recognize

December 3:
2009 2008
(In thousands

$1,477,48  1,522,48;
21,408 26,601
93,00¢ 92,46¢
58,23t (24,446
(67,33) (58,659
(7,677) (1,039)
28,43t (79,93
1,603,556/ 1,477,48

975,54( 1,521,38
213,76¢  (428,57)
130,93 20,69¢
1,30¢ 1,821
(67,33) (58,659
28,67 (81,147
1,282,88. _ 975,54(
$ (320,679 (501,94)

December 3.
2009 2008
(In thousands
$ 10,58¢ 5,27(
(2,695 (2,507
(328,57) (504,719
$(320,679 (501,94%)

Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprelienisss (pre-tax) consisted of:

Transition obligatior
Prior service credi
Net actuarial los

Net amount recognize
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In 2010, we expect to recognize approximately $#ianiof the prior service credit and $19 milliohtbe net
actuarial loss as a component of pension expense.

The following table sets forth the weighted-averagtiarial assumptions used for Ryder’s pensionspia
determining funded status:

U.S. Plans Foreign Plan:

December 3. December 3.

2009 2008 2009 2008
Discount rate 6.2(% 6.25% 5.93% 6.77%
Rate of increase in compensation ley 4.00% 4.0(% 3.54% 4.04&%

At December 31, 2009 and 2008, our pension obbgat{accumulated benefit obligations (ABO) and gxtgd
benefit obligations (PBO)) greater than the falueaof related plan assets for our U.S. and foreigns were as

follows:
U.S. Plans Foreign Plan: Total
December 3: December 3: December 3:
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
(In thousands

Accumulated benefit obligatior $1,254,16.  1,215,25. 313,47( 218,46 1,567,63. 1,433,72
Plans with ABO in excess of plan ass

PBO $1,287,92! 1,249,75. 6,40¢ 5,157 1,294,33! 1,254,90:

ABO $1,254,16. 1,215,25: 5,66¢ 4,43¢ 1,259,82! 1,219,69!

Fair value of plan asse $ 963,06¢ 747,69: — — 963,06¢ 747,69:
Plans with PBO in excess of plan ass

PBO $1,287,92' 1,249,75. 6,40¢ 5,157 1,294,33! 1,254,90:

ABO $1,254,16. 1,215,25: 5,66¢ 4,43¢ 1,259,82! 1,219,69!

Fair value of plan asse $ 963,06¢ 747,69: — — 963,06¢ 747,69:

Plan Assets

Ryder’s pension investment strategy is to maxinttieelong-term rate of return on plan assets wigmin
acceptable level of risk in order to minimize thestcof providing pension benefits. The plans wikkeveral
investment strategies, including actively and padgimanaged equity and fixed income strategies. imtilestment
policy establishes a target allocation for eacletaslass. Deviations between actual pension plset adlocations
and targeted asset allocations may occur as & msalestment performance during a month. Relzhanof our
pension plan asset portfolios is evaluated eachhmuased on the prior month’s ending balances aebalanced if
actual allocations exceed an acceptable rangeUCRirplans account for approximately 75% of Rydastal
pension plan assets. The target allocations fokJo8r plans are 65% equity securities, 30% fixetime and 5% to
all other types of investments. Equity securitigmgrily include investments in large-cap and még-companies
primarily in the United States and both domestid emternational mutual funds. Fixed income secesiinclude
corporate bonds, U.S. Treasuries, mutual fundso#imer fixed income investments, primarily mortgdgeked
securities. Other types of investments includegievequity funds. The target allocations for oterinational plans
are 67% equity securities and 33% fixed income.itygund fixed income securities in our internatibplans
include actively and passively managed mutual funds
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The following table presents the fair value of eawdjor category of pension plan assets and thé ¢éweputs
used to measure fair value as of December 31, 2009:

Fair Value Measurements ai
December 31, 200!

Asset Categon Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(In thousands)
Cash®@ $ 102,38¢ 102,38¢ — —
Equity Securities
U.S. companie 72,88: 72,88 — —
U.S. mutual fund: 412,38t — 412,38t —
Foreign mutual fund 321,63: — 321,63: —
Fixed income securitie:
Corporate bond 38,72¢ 38,72t — —
Mutual funds 306,35! — 306,35! —
Other (primarily mortgac-backed securities 9,321 — 9,321 —
Private equity fund 19,19: — — 19,19
Total $1,282,88; 213,99¢ 1,049,69° 19,19:

(1) We made voluntary pension contributions at the@&ridecember 2009 of $102 million, which had nothesin invested in target asset
classes

The following is a description of the valuation imedologies used for our pension assets as welieaevel of
input used to measure fair value:

Cash and cash equivalents- These investments are short term investmentsftimat invest in government
securities that have a maturity of 90 days or IEag. values for these investments were based otediprices in
active markets and were therefore classified witlexel 1 of the fair value hierarchy.

Equity securities— These investments include common and prefetaks and index mutual funds that track
U.S. and foreign indices. Fair values for the comrand preferred stocks were based on quoted pricagive
markets and were therefore classified within Lelvef the fair value hierarchy. The mutual fundsevealued at the
unit prices established by the funds’ sponsorsdasehe fair value of the assets underlying thmeléu Since the
units of the funds are not actively traded, the yalue measurements have been classified withielL2 of the fair
value hierarchy.

Fixed income securities— These investments include investment grade bohdsS. issuers from diverse
industries, index mutual funds that track the BayslAggregate Index and other fixed income inveats@rimarily
mortgage-backed securities). Fair values for thrparate bonds were based on quoted prices in attargets and
were therefore classified within Level 1 of ther fealue hierarchy. The mutual funds were valuethatunit prices
established by the funds’ sponsors based on thedhie of the assets underlying the funds. Siheaunits of the
funds are not actively traded, the fair value meamnts have been classified within Level 2 offthievalue
hierarchy. The other investments are not activelgled and fair values are estimated using bidsigeedvby brokers
dealers or quoted prices of similar securities sithilar characteristics or pricing models. Therefdhe other
investments have been have been classified witbil2 of the fair value hierarchy.

Private equity funds— These investments represent limited partneiisidpests in private equity funds. The
partnership interests are valued by the generéh@arbased on the underlying assets in each frallimited
partnership interests are valued using unobsenmpigs and have been classified within Level gheffair value
hierarchy.
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The following table presents a summary of changeke fair value of the pension plans’ Level 3 &s$ar the
year ended December 31, 20

(In thousand:

Beginning balance at January 1, 2( $ 24,33
Return on plan asse!
Relating to assets still held at the reporting (6,265
Relating to assets sold during the pel 2,42(
Purchases, sales, settlements and exp (1,299
Ending balance at December 31, 2! $ 19,19

The following table details pension benefits expddb be paid in each of the next five fiscal yearg in
aggregate for the five fiscal years thereafter:

(In thousands)

2010 $ 73,32¢
2011 77,47¢
2012 82,13¢
2013 87,26%
2014 92,14:
2015-2019 539,64.

For 2010, pension contributions to Ryder’s pengilams are estimated to be $17 million.

Savings Plans

U.S. employees who do not actively participateind.S. pension plans are eligible to participatan
enhanced Savings Plan (Enhanced Savings PlankEifitmenced Savings Plan provides for (i) a company
contribution even if employees do not make contidms, (ii) a company match of employee contribusiof
eligible pay, subject to IRS limits and (iii) a distionary company match based on our performadaeoriginal
Savings Plan only provided for a discretionary campmatch based on our performance. Savings pkis tataled
$22 million in 2009, $29 million in 2008, and $9lkoin in 2007.

Deferred Compensation and Long-Term Compensation Bhs

We have deferred compensation plans that perngibédi U.S. employees, officers and directors teedef
portion of their compensation. The deferred comagos liability, including Ryder matching amountsda
accumulated earnings, totaled $22 million and $#0om at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

We also had long-term incentive compensation plenter which the Compensation Committee of the Boérd
Directors was authorized to reward key executivitg additional compensation contingent upon attantrof
critical business objectives. Lortgkm awards were made from 2002 to 2005. In 20@6Ctompensation Committ
decided to allocate more of our executive offidersy-term compensation from cash to equity. Assaltethe
Compensation Committee ceased granting long-tesi awards. For the 2005 plan year, performance was
measured based on achieving certain levels ofpertating revenue growth, earnings per common sirareth and
return on capital over an approximate three-yedogeand not on an annual basis. If certain penforce levels
were achieved, the amounts earned under the ptadseix months subsequent to the end of the ptywele.
Compensation expense under the plans was recognizeanings over the vesting period. Total comp&os
expense recognized under the plans was $0.5 mili@d08, and $0.2 million in 2007. During 2009, no
compensation expense was recognized under the plans
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Ryder has established grantor trusts (Rabbi Trtstsjovide funding for benefits payable under the
supplemental pension plan, deferred compensatams@nd long-term incentive compensation plans.abkets
held in the trusts at December 31, 2009 and 20G81ated to $22 million and $19 million, respectivelyie Rabbi
Trusts’ assets consist of short-term cash investsreard a managed portfolio of equity securitiesluiding Ryder’s
common stock. These assets, except for the invesim&yder’'s common stock, are included in “Dirénancing
leases and other assets” because they are avadabie general creditors of Ryder in the everiRyder’s
insolvency. The equity securities are classifietrading securities and stated at fair value. Be#lized and
unrealized gains and losses are included in “Mianebus (income) expense, net.” The Rabbi Trust&stment of
$2 million in Ryders common stock, at both December 31, 2009 and B0@flected at historical cost and recor
against shareholders’ equity.

Other Postretirement Benefits

Ryder sponsors plans that provide retired U.S.@ambdian employees with certain healthcare and life
insurance benefits. Substantially all U.S. and @araemployees not covered by union-administeradtihand
welfare plans are eligible for the healthcare bigndflealthcare benefits for our principal plan gemerally provide
to qualified retirees under age 65 and eligibleathglents. Generally, this plan requires employedribaions that
vary based on years of service and include prawssibat limit our contributions.

Total postretirement benefit expense was as follows
Years ended December

2009 2008 2007
(In thousands

Service cos $1,458 1,437 1,47¢
Interest cos 2,82¢ 2,727 2,57¢
Amortization of:
Net actuarial los 637 743 837
Prior service cred (231) (231) (23)])
Postretirement benefit exper $4,68¢ 4,67¢ 4,65¢
u.s. $3,537 3,77¢ 3,731
Foreign 1,152 90C 927

$4,68¢ 4,67¢ 4,65¢

The following table sets forth the weighted-averdigeount rates used in determining annual postragnt
benefit expense:

U.S. Plar Foreign Plar
Years ended December Years ended December
2009 2008 2007 2009 2008 2007
Discount rate 6.25% 6.35% 6.0(% 6.75% 5.25% 5.0(%
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Ryder’s postretirement benefit plans are not fundéx following table sets forth the benefit obtigas
associated with Ryder’s postretirement benefit mlan

Benefit obligations at January

Service cos
Interest cos

Actuarial (gain) los:

Benefits paic

Foreign currency exchange rate char
Benefit obligations at December

Amounts recognized in the consolidated balancetsloaasisted of:

Current liability
Noncurrent liability

Amount recognize:

December 3:
2009 2008
(In thousands

$46,377  44,29:

1,458 1,437
2,826 2,721
(171)  2,58¢

(2,297 (3,379
1,13; (1,289
$49,32¢ 46,37

December 3:
2009 2008
(In thousands
$ (3219 (3,350
(46,115 (43,027
$(49,329) (46,37

Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprelierisss (pre-tax) consisted of:

Prior service credi
Net actuarial los

Net amount recognize

December 3.
2009 2008
(In thousands
$(2,000 (2,237
12,07¢ 12,81¢
$10,07¢ 10,58¢

In 2010, we expect to recognize approximately $0ilfon of the prior service credit and $0.6 mili@f the ne
actuarial loss as a component of total postretirgrhenefit expense.

Our annual measurement date is December 31 forlh&hand foreign postretirement benefit plans.
Assumptions used in determining accrued postreérgrbenefit obligations were as follows:

U.S. Plar Foreign Plar
December 3: December 3:
2009 2008 2009 2008

Discount rate 6.2(% 6.25% 6.0% 6.75%
Rate of increase in compensation le\ 400% 4.00%4 3.5(% 3.50%
Healthcare cost trend rate assumed for next 8.0(% 8.50% 8.5(% 9.00%
Rate to which the cost trend rate is assumed tiinge@ltimate trend rate 500(% 5.60% 5.0% 5.00%
Year that the rate reaches the ultimate trend 201¢ 201t 2017 2017

Changing the assumed healthcare cost trend rat&%hg each year would not have a material effeche
accumulated postretirement benefit obligation atddeber 31, 2009 or annual postretirement benefitese for

2009.
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The following table details other postretirememdifigs expected to be paid in each of the nextfiseal years
and in aggregate for the five fiscal years theezaft

(In thousands)

2010 $ 3,214
2011 3,51¢
2012 3,62
2013 3,89¢
2014 4,071
20152019 21,13¢

25. ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

Our operations involve storing and dispensing petno products, primarily diesel fuel, regulated end
environmental protection laws. These laws requiréoweliminate or mitigate the effect of such sabses on the
environment. In response to these requirementgonwtnually upgrade our operating facilities angbiement
various programs to detect and minimize contanmamatin addition, we have received notices from the
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and othe&t the have been identified as a potentially respmparty
under the Comprehensive Environmental Response p€osation and Liability Act, the Superfund Amendisen
and Reauthorization Act and similar state statatebmay be required to share in the cost of cleafd identifiec
disposal sites.

Our environmental expenses which are presentednwi@perating expense” in our Consolidated Statetsmeh
Earnings, consist of remediation costs as wellemal recurring expenses such as licensing, tesimgwaste
disposal fees. These expenses totaled $8 mill@mi$lion, and $7 million, in 2009, 2008, and 200&spectively.
The carrying amount of our environmental liabiktiwas $15 million at both December 31, 2009 an@20@pital
expenditures related to our environmental progritaded approximately $4 million, $3 million, and gillion in
2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively. Our asseemént obligations related to fuel tanks to be resdoare not
included above and are recorded within “Accruedemsgies” and “Other non-current liabilities” in ounr@Golidated
Balance Sheets.

The ultimate cost of our environmental liabilitieennot presently be projected with certainty duthéo
presence of several unknown factors, primarilyléivel of contamination, the effectiveness of seldegemediation
methods, the stage of investigation at individutalss the determination of our liability in propiort to other
responsible parties and the recoverability of stats from third parties. Based on information pntly available,
we believe that the ultimate disposition of thesdters, although potentially material to the resoftoperations in
any one year, will not have a material adversecefie our financial condition or liquidity.

26. OTHER ITEMS IMPACTING COMPARABILITY

Our primary measure of segment performance excloelitain items we do not believe are representativiee
ongoing operations of the segment. Excluding tliteses from our segment measure of performance alfow
better year over year comparison.

2009

In the fourth quarter of 2008, we were notifiedttaaignificant customer in Singapore would noesgrtheir
contract, which was set to expire in 2009. Thefiwatiion required us to assess the recoverabifith® facility used
in this customer’s operation. During the fourth geaof 2008, we recorded an impairment chargeduce the
carrying value of the facility to its fair valueo@ditions in the real estate market in
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Singapore continued to deteriorate during the €jtetrter of 2009. As a result, we recorded an it pre-tax
impairment charge of $4 million to write-down tteeflity to its estimated fair value during the figuarter of 2009.
During the fourth quarter of 2009, we recorded @dittonal pre-tax impairment charge of $3 millianreflect the
impact of the continued deterioration in the resthte market. The charges were recorded within f&z=gtion
expense” in our Consolidated Statements of Earnings

2008

As mentioned above, in the fourth quarter of 20@8 were notified that a significant customer inggipore
would not renew their contract, which was set tpiexin 2009. The natification triggered an impagmh analysis,
which required us to assess the recoverabilithefacility used in this customer’s operation. Véaduded that the
carrying value of the facility was not recoveraltel that the carrying value exceeded the fair valomsequently,
we recorded a pre-tax impairment charge of $2 onilto write the carrying value of the facility dowmfair value.
The charge was recorded within “Depreciation expeisthe accompanying Consolidated StatementsaofiBgs.

2007

In the third quarter of 2007, we completed the séle FMS property located in Nevada for $12 millia cash.
In conjunction with this sale, we entered into aske agreement with the purchaser to lease bagkaperty until we
relocated to another property. The terms of thedback met the criteria for a “normal leasebackl fafi gain
recognition. For the year ended December 31, 2b@7gain on the sale of the property of $10 milkees included
in “Miscellaneous (income) expense, net” in theamgpanying Consolidated Statements of Earnings.

27. OTHER MATTERS

We are a party to various claims, complaints amdgedings arising in the ordinary course of busines
including but not limited to those relating togdiition matters, environmental matters, risk managptmatters (e.g.
vehicle liability, workers’ compensation, etc.) aadiministrative assessments primarily associatéd agerating
taxes. We have established loss provisions forarsih which losses are probable and can be reblsoestimated.
It is not possible at this time for us to determiinléy the effect of all unasserted claims and assents on our
consolidated financial condition, results of opienas or liquidity; however, to the extent possibldere unasserted
claims can be estimated and where such claimsoagdered probable we have recorded a liabilittightion is
subject to many uncertainties, and the outcomapfradividual litigated matter is not predictablétwassurance. It
is possible that certain of the actions, claimguiries or proceedings could be decided unfavorabRyder.
Although the final resolution of any such mattessild have a material effect on our consolidatedatpeg results
for the particular reporting period in which anwtment of the estimated liability is recorded, vedieve that any
resulting liability should not materially affect oconsolidated financial position.
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28. SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Supplemental cash flow information was as follows:

Years ended December

2009 2008 2007
(In thousands
Interest paic $144,99¢ 141,40t  154,26:
Income taxes (refunded) pe (15,457 26,14 57,991
Changes in accounts payable related to purchasesearfiue earning equipme (40,552 34,93t (122,400
Revenue earning equipment acquired under capéaét 1,94¢ 1,43( 10,92(

29. SEGMENT REPORTINC

Our operating segments are aggregated into repetalsiness segments based upon similar economic
characteristics, products, services, customergialidery methods. We operate in three reportabginess
segments: (1) FMS, which provides full service ilegscontract maintenance, contract-related maartea and
commercial rental of trucks, tractors and trailersustomers, principally in the U.S., Canada dedU.K.; (2) SCS,
which provides comprehensive supply chain conggiticluding distribution and transportation sersgitieroughout
North America and in Asia; and (3) DCC, which paes vehicles and drivers as part of a dedicatedpatatior
solution in the U.S.

Our primary measurement of segment financial peréorce, defined as “Net Before Taxes” (NBT) from
continuing operations, includes an allocation oBG®#d excludes restructuring and other chargesiasetribed in
Note 5,“Restructuring and Other Charges” and excludestémes discussed in Note 26, “Other Iltems Impacting
Comparability.” CSS represents those costs incuredipport all business segments, including hurasources,
finance, corporate services, public affairs, infation technology, health and safety, legal and a@te
communications. The objective of the NBT measurdrigeto provide clarity on the profitability of dadusiness
segment and, ultimately, to hold leadership of daginess segment and each operating segment \wihim
business segment accountable for their allocatacksst CSS costs. Certain costs are consideree éwérhead not
attributable to any segment and remain unallociat€zSS. Included among the unallocated overheadireny
within CSS are the costs for investor relationgliglaffairs and certain executive compensationS€8sts
attributable to the business segments are predothralocated to FMS, SCS and DCC as follows:

< Finance, corporate services, and health and se— allocated based upon estimated and planned m@esour
utilization;

* Human resource — individual costs within this category are alltezain several ways, including allocation
based on estimated utilization and number of perslosupported

» Information technolog— principally allocated based upon utilization-tehmetrics such as number of
users or minutes of CPU time. Customer-relatedeptajosts and expenses are allocated to the basines
segment responsible for the project;

e Other— represents legal and other centralized costeapédnses including certain share-based incentive
compensation costs. Expenses, where allocatetbaaezl primarily on the number of personnel supgo

Our FMS segment leases revenue earning equipmdngramides fuel, maintenance and other ancillaryises
to the SCS and DCC segments. Inter-segment rexamdi&IBT are accounted for at rates similar to treoseuted
with third parties. NBT related to inter-segmentig@gent and services billed to customers
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(equipment contribution) is included in both FMSldhe business segment which served the custordethan

eliminated (presented as “Eliminations”).

Segment results are not necessarily indicative@fésults of operations that would have occurestidach
segment been an independent, stand-alone entitygdilne periods presented. Each business segnmws$ahe
same accounting policies as described in Note dit8ary of Significant Accounting Policies.”

Business segment revenue and NBT from continuimgatijons is as follows:

Revenue

Fleet Management Solutior

Full service leas

Contract maintenanc

Contractual revenu

Contrac-related maintenanc

Commercial rente

Other

Fuel services revent
Total Fleet Management Solutions from external mustrs
Inter-segment revent
Fleet Management Solutiol
Supply Chain Solutions from external custorr
Dedicated Contract Carriage from external custor
Eliminations

Total revenue

NBT:
Fleet Management Solutiol
Supply Chain Solution
Dedicated Contract Carrias
Eliminations

Unallocated Central Support Servic
Restructuring and other charges, net and othesi)

Earnings before income taxes from continuing opema

Years ended December

2009 2008 2007
(In thousands

$1,851,71. 1,891,13! 1,815,05
155,63 153,98 158,20¢
2,007,35. 2,045,11¢ 1,973,26l
162,49¢ 192,76: 180,78(
414,14 530,07 546,79(
66,51 77,84¢ 77,68(
625,88. 1,175,85! 978,79:
3,276,388 4,021,65! 3,757,30:
291,44¢ 432,59: 409,99
3,567,831 4,454,25. 4,167,30.
1,139,91. 1,429,63. 2,038,18!
470,95¢ 547,75 567,64(
(291,449  (432,59) (409,99)
$4,887,25. 5,999,04 6,363,13!
$ 140,40( 395,90¢ 370,50:
35,70( 56,95 60,22¢
37,64 49,62¢ 47,40¢
(21,05¢ (31,809 (31,249
192,68! 470,68 446,89:
(35,83) (38,307 (44,009
(13,08)  (23,09) (68E)
$ 143,76¢ 409,28t 402,20

(1) See Note 26, “Other Items Impacting Comparabilitipi’ a discussion of items, in addition to restwratg and other charges, net that are

excluded from our primary measure of segment perémice.
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The following table sets forth shab&sed compensation, depreciation expense, gaimshicle sales, net, oth
non-cash charges (credits), net, interest expensenie), capital expenditures and total assetthioyears ended
December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 as provided tohie¢ operating decision-maker for each of Rydegjgortable

business segments:

2009

Share-based compensation expen:
Depreciation expense®)

Gains on vehicles sales, net
Other non-cash charges, ne®
Interest expense (income®)
Capital expenditures paid®

Total assets

2008

Shar-based compensation expe!
Depreciation expens®)

Gains on vehicles sales, 1

Other noi-cash charges (credits), 12)
Interest expense (incom®)

Capital expenditures pa®

Total asset

2007

Shar-based compensation expe!
Depreciation expens®)

Gains on vehicle sales, r

Other noi-cash charges (credits), 12
Interest expense (incom®)

Capital expenditures pa®

Total asset

FMS SCS DCC CSS Eliminations Total
(In thousands
$ 4,69 3,29¢ 48C 7,931 — 16,40¢
$ 850,21 28,69: 1,33¢ 97t — 881,21t
$ (12,289 (10) — — —  (12,29)
$ 14,017 71C 15 26,55¢ — 41,301
$ 144,60! 1,707  (2,085) 11E — 144,34
$ 635,13! 8,55( 1,43¢ 6,832 —  651,95¢
$5,809,08! 366,92( 105,48: 116,63: (138,29) 6,259,83I
$ 5,74¢ 3,011 43z 7,88¢ — 17,07¢
$ 809,68: 24,10 1,61¢ 74¢ —  836,14¢
$ (38,97 (46) — — (39,020
$ 16,71  2,24¢ (3) 6,31¢ —  25,26¢
$ 155,43 12 (2,919 (86) —  152,44¢
$1,181,000 33,171 3,47¢ 12,74 — 1,230,40:
$6,204,131 421,57: 110,55 136,39t (183,147 6,689,50!
$ 4,94( 3,43¢ 40C 7,97¢ — 16,75¢
$ 791,11: 17,17( 1,61: 64¢ — 810,54
$ (43,73) (359 — — — (44,090
$ 3.27° 74¢ (2) 10,97 —  14,99¢
$ 158,26: 91z (3,339 131 —  155,97(
$1,273,141 21,75: 84¢€ 8,29t — 1,304,083
$6,212,03! 557,58. 129,06¢ 87,36: (131,40() 6,854,64!

(1) Depreciation expense associated with CSS assetallvaated to business segments based upon estiraateplanned asset utilizatio
Depreciation expense totaling $12 million, $13 ioil] and $12 million during 2009, 2008, and 200&spectively, associated with C

assets was allocated to other business segn

(2) Includes amortization expense and impairment oflgoib

(3) Interest expense was primarily allocated to the Fd@8§ment since such borrowings were used pringipalfund the purchase of rever

earning equipment used in FMS; however, interegeesge (income) was also reflected in SCS and DGEdban targeted segment leverage

ratios.

(4) Excludes FMS and SCS acquisition payments of $8®mi$247 million, and $75 million in 2009, 20087d 2007, respectively, compris
primarily of lon¢c-lived assets. See Note" Acquisitions” for additional information
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Geographic Information

Years ended December

2009 2008 2007
(In thousands
Revenue
United State: $4,126,97. 5,058,95 5,243,18!
Foreign:
Canade 424,14 485,21¢ 646,40(
Europe 223,87 290,69 316,11¢
Mexico 97,64¢ 140,54: 136,12:
Asia 14,60¢ 23,62¢ 21,30¢
760,28 940,08° 1,119,94!
Total $4,887,25. 5,999,04. 6,363,13!
Long-lived assets
United State: $3,985,161 4,343,68 4,051,51
Foreign:
Canade 478,09: 462,14( 545,54!
Europe 232,32( 256,56 350,33t
Mexico 16,83: 18,49 22,67
South Americe 531 14,147 28,59¢
Asia 9,62¢ 17,00¢ 21,45¢
737,40: 768,35: 968,60t
Total $4,722,56! 5,112,04( 5,020,12!

Certain Concentrations

We have a diversified portfolio of customers acra$sll array of transportation and logistics smos and
across many industries. We believe this will helpnitigate the impact of adverse downturns in djgesectors of
the economy. Our portfolio of full service leas@& aommercial rental customers is not concentratethy one
particular industry or geographic region. We deav&gnificant portion of our SCS revenue (appratiely 42%,
47% and 59% in 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectivedyh the automotive industry, mostly from manufaetarand
suppliers of original equipment parts. Our largestomer, General Motors Corporation (GM), accodifioe
approximately 3%, 4% and 14% of consolidated reeen?009, 2008 and 2007, respectively. GM alsoacted
for approximately 13%, 16% and 44% of SCS totakraie in 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively. Effectiv
January 1, 2008, our contractual relationship &tain transportation management services chargedyve
determined, after a formal review of the terms amdditions of the services, that we were actingraagent in the
arrangement. As a result, total revenue and sulkaaiet] transportation expense decreased in 200&dhbe
reporting of revenue net of subcontracted tranggiort expense. During 2007, revenue associatedtigtportion

of the contract was $640 million.
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30. QUARTERLY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

Earnings fronm

Continuing
Earnings fror Operations pe Net Earnings pe
Continuing Common Shar Common Shar
Revenue Operations  Net Earning  Basic Diluted Basic Diluted
(In thousands, except per share amot
2009
First quarter $1,174,39 10,93¢ 6,83¢ 0.2 0.2C 0.1z 0.1z
Second quarter 1,212,03 27,07( 22,88t 0.4¢ 0.4¢ 0.41 0.41
Third quarter 1,253,85. 28,43¢ 23,97, 0.51 0.51 0.4< 0.4z
Fourth quarter 1,246,96: 23,67( 8,24¢ 0.4: 0.4: 0.1F 0.1t
Full year $4,887,25. 90,117 61,94 1.6z 1.6z 1.11 1.11
2008
First quartel $1,490,19 56,03¢ 56,08: 0.9¢ 0.9¢ 0.97 0.9¢
Second quarte 1,604,31 78,62( 62,94¢ 1.3¢ 1.37 1.1C 1.0¢
Third quartel 1,567,33 72,46 70,20¢ 1.2¢ 1.2 1.2t 1.24
Fourth quarte 1,337,20. 50,46: 10,64t 0.91 0.91 0.1¢ 0.1€
Full year $5,999,04 257,57¢ 199,88. 4.54 4,51 3.5Z 3.5(

Quarterly and year-to-date computations of peresharounts are made independently; therefore, tineotu
per-share amounts for the quarters may not equahmre amounts for the year.

See Note 4, “Discontinued Operations,” Note 5, ‘Reguring and Other Charges,” and Note 26, “Other
Items Impacting Comparability,” for items includedpre-tax earnings during 2009 and 2008.

Earnings in the fourth quarter of 2009 includedramome tax benefit of $4 million, or $0.07 per ddd
common share, associated with the reduction ofrdEféncome taxes due to enacted changes in On@aitada ta
laws. Earnings in the third quarter of 2008 incldid® income tax benefit of $2 million, or $0.03 déuted
common share, associated with the reduction ofrdféncome taxes due to enacted changes in Massett$ tax
laws. Earnings in the fourth quarter of 2008 ineld@n income tax benefit of $8 million, or $0.14 gikuted
common share, due to reversal of reserves for taindax positions as a result of the expiratiostatutes of
limitation in various jurisdictions.
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Column A Column B Column C Column D ColumnE
Additions
Balance a Transferrel Balance
Beginning Charged t¢ from Other at End
Description of Period Earnings Accounts) Deductions of Period
(In thousands
2009
Accounts receivable allowanc $ 15,477 13,70:¢ — 15,37: 13,80¢
Direct finance lease allowanc: $ 4,72¢ 1,011 — 4,92; 81z
Self-insurance accrualg3 $256,00: 201,27: 47,72¢ 262,09¢ 242,90!
Reserve for residual value guarantee $ 2,38¢ 3,01¢ — 1,358 4,04¢
Valuation allowance on deferred tax assel $ 34,54¢ 4,44: — 2,41¢ 36,57:
2008
Accounts receivable allowan: $ 16,95« 15,93 — 17,41. 15,47
Direct finance lease allowan $ 1,32i 3,87C — 4732 4,724
Self-insurance accrua®) $277,81F 201,14! 47,03¢ 269,99: 256,00:
Reserve for residual value guarant $ 2,42t 244 — 28C 2,38¢
Valuation allowance on deferred tax as: $ 21,74, 12,90: — 95 34,54¢
2007
Accounts receivable allowan: $ 14,74¢ 13,23¢ — 11,02¢ 16,95«
Direct finance lease allowan $ 1,121 1,472 — 1,26¢€ 1,327
Self-insurance accrua® $283,37: 176,507 44,02 226,08 277,81!
Reserve for residual value guarant $ 2,22i 1,10¢ — 90€  2,42¢
Valuation allowance on deferred tax as: $ 20,47¢ (27 — (1,299 21,74

(1) Transferred from other accounts includes employsdributions made to the medical and dental-insurance plans

(2) Deductions represent receivables wri-off, lease termination payments, insurance claaynpents during the period and net foreign
currency translation adjustment

(3) Self-insurance accruals include vehicle liabilityorkers’ compensation, property damage, cargo aedioal and dental, which comprise
our self-insurance programs. Amount charged to gmsiinclude favorable development in prior yedestd loss development factors
which benefited earnings by $1 million, $23 milliamd $24 million in 2009, 2008, and 2007, respestyi.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS ON
ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this repwe,carried out an evaluation, under the supemviaied with
the participation of management, including Rydéitsef Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officef the
effectiveness of the design and operation of Rydgisclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934). Bageth that evaluation, the Chief Executive Officed &hief
Financial Officer concluded that at December 302@®yder’s disclosure controls and proceduresléfised in
Rule 13a-15(e) under the Securities Exchange AtB8#) were effective.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Finandal Reporting

Management’s Report on Internal Control over FimariReporting and the Report of Independent Reggste
Certified Public Accounting Firm thereon are settiodtem 8 of Part Il of this Form 10-K Annual Rap.

Changes in Internal Controls over Financial Reportng

During the three months ended December 31, 20@%s tlvere no changes in Ryder’s internal controt ove
financial reporting that has materially affectedsoreasonably likely to materially affect sucheimtal control over
financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.

PART IlI
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORAT E GOVERNANCE

The information required by Item 10 with respecexecutive officers is included within Item 1 inrPlaunder
the caption “Executive Officers of the Registraot'this Form 10-K Annual Report.

The information required by Item 10 with respectiieectors, audit committee, audit committee finahc
experts and Section 16(a) beneficial ownershipnteypcompliance is included under the captionsetiibn of
Directors,” “Audit Committee” and “Section 16(a) B&ficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” in ouriddive
proxy statement, which will be filed with the Conssilon within 120 days after the close of the figesdr, and is
incorporated herein by reference.

Ryder has adopted a code of ethics applicable tBhiief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Offic&pntroller
and Senior Financial Management. The Code of Efbitas part of Ryder’s Principles of Business Cartduhich
are posted on the Corporate Governance page offRydebsite at www.ryder.com.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by Item 11 is included enthe captions “Compensation Discussion and Aiglys
“Executive Compensation,” “Compensation Committé¢€6mpensation Committee Report on Executive
Compensation” and “Director Compensation” in oufirdéve proxy statement, which will be filed witie
Commission within 120 days after the close of ikedl year, and is incorporated herein by reference
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ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS AND
MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by Item 12 with respecséaurity ownership of certain beneficial ownerd an
management is included under the captions “SecOnipership of Officers and Directors” an8écurity Ownershi
of Certain Beneficial Owners” in our definitive psostatement, which will be filed with the Commssiwithin
120 days after the close of the fiscal year, anddsrporated herein by reference.

The information required by Item 12 with respectdtated stockholder matters is included withimité in
Part | under the caption “Securities Authorizedlgsuance under Equity Compensation Plans” of this
Form 10-K Annual Report.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS,
AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by Item 13 is included enthe captions “Board of Directors” and “Relatezigen
Transactions” in our definitive proxy statement,iethwill be filed with the Commission within 120 ylafter the
close of the fiscal year, and is incorporated Imebgireference.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by Item 14 is included enthe caption “Ratification of Independent Auditor our
definitive proxy statement, which will be filed Wwithe Commission within 120 days after the clostheffiscal yea
and is incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(a) Items A through G and Schedule 1l are preseotetthe following pages of this Form 10-K AnnualpRg:

_Page No.
1. Financial Statements for Ryder Systern, &md Consolidated Subsidiari
A) Managemer's Report on Internal Control over Financial Repay 62
B) Report of Independent Registered Certified Pubticdunting Firm 63
C) Consolidated Statements of Earnil 64
D) Consolidated Balance She: 65
E) Consolidated Statements of Cash Fl¢ 66
F) Consolidated Statements of Sharehol' Equity 67
G) Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme 68

2. Consolidated Financial Statement Scheftuléthe Years Ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and
2007:

Schedule |— Valuation and Qualifying Accoun 124

All other schedules are omitted because they arapmicable or the required information is showritie
consolidated financial statements or notes thereto.

Supplementary Financial Information consisting&g&sted quarterly financial data is included imit8 of this
report.

3. Exhibits:

The following exhibits are filed with this repont,avhere indicated, incorporated by reference (Rot@+K,
10-Q and 8-K referenced herein have been filed utisleCommission’s file No. 1-4364). Ryder will pide a copy
of the exhibits filed with this report at a nomirtdlarge to those parties requesting them.
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Exhibit
Number

EXHIBIT INDEX

Description

3.1(a)

3.1(b)

3.2

4.1

4.2(a)

4.2(b)

4.3

4.4

10.1(b)

10.1(c)

10.1(d)

10.4(a)

10.4(b)

10.4(c)

10.4(f)

The Ryder System, Inc. Restated Articles of Incaapion, dated November 8, 1985, as amended thr
May 18, 1990, previously filed with the Commissiasan exhibit to Ryder's Annual Report on

Form 1(-K for the year ended December 31, 1990, are incomgmbiay reference into this repc

Articles of Amendment to Ryder System, Inc. Restateticles of Incorporation, dated November 8,
1985, as amended, previously filed with the Cominissn April 3, 1996 as an exhibit to Ryder’s

Form ¢-A are incorporated by reference into this ref

The Ryder System, Inc. By-Laws, as amended thr@ggember 15, 2009, previously filed with the
Commission as an exhibit to Ryder’s Current ReparForm 8-K filed with the Commission on
December 21, 2009, are incorporated by referertogtliis report

Ryder hereby agrees, pursuant to paragraph(b){4fiitem 601 of Regulation S-K, to furnish the
Commission with a copy of any instrument definihg tights of holders of long-term debt of Ryder,
where such instrument has not been filed as arb#xtéreto and the total amount of securities atigbd
thereunder does not exceed 10% of the total asE&gder and its subsidiaries on a consolidatedsh

The Form of Indenture between Ryder System, Ind.Tdre Chase Manhattan Bank (National
Association) dated as of June 1, 1984, filed with €ommission on November 19, 1985 as an exhibit to
Ryder's Registration Statement Form -3 (No. 33-1632),is incorporated by reference into this rep
The First Supplemental Indenture between Rydere8ysinc. and The Chase Manhattan Bank (National
Association) dated October 1, 1987, previouslydfidth the Commission as an exhibit to Ryder’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Ddwamn31, 1994, is incorporated by reference into
this report.

The Form of Indenture between Ryder System, Ind.Tdre Chase Manhattan Bank (National
Association) dated as of May 1, 1987, and suppléedeas of November 15, 1990 and June 24, 1992,
filed with the Commission on July 30, 1992 as ahileix to Ryder’'s Registration Statement on Form S-3
(No. 3:-50232),is incorporated by reference into this rep

The Form of Indenture between Ryder System, Ind.JaR. Morgan Trust Company (National
Association) dated as of October 3, 2003 filed \lithh Commission on August 29, 2003 as an exhibit to
Ryder’s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No-838391), is incorporated by reference into this
report.

The form of Severance Agreement for executive efficeffective as of January 1, 2000, previousédfil
with the Commission as an exhibit to Ryder’s AnnRaport on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2003, is incorporated by referenaethis report

The Ryder System, Inc. Executive Severance Plaanpdad and restated effective as of January 1, 2009,
previously filed with the Commission as an exhibiRyder’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed witteth
Commission on February 11, 2009, is incorporatecefigrence into this repoi

The form of Amended and Restated Severance Agredoreexecutive officers, effective as of
December 19, 2008, previously filed with the Consitia as an exhibit to Ryder’s Current Report on
Form &K filed with the Commission on February 11, 2009norporated by reference into this rep
The Ryder System, Inc. 1980 Stock Incentive Plararaended and restated as of August 15, 1996,
previously filed with the Commission as an exhtbiRyder’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 1997, is incorporated by redergmo this report

The form of Ryder System, Inc. 1980 Stock Incenian, United Kingdom Section, dated May 4, 1995,
previously filed with the Commission as an exhtbiRyder’'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 1995, is incorporated by rederario this repori

The form of Ryder System, Inc. 1980 Stock IncenBan, United Kingdom Section, dated October 3,
1995, previously filed with the Commission as ahibi to Ryder’'s Annual Report on Form 10f# the
year ended December 31, 1995, is incorporatedfbyerece into this repor

The Ryder System, Inc. 1995 Stock Incentive Plargraended and restated at May 4, 2001, previously
filed with the Commission as an exhibit to Rydegport on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 2001, is incorporated by referertoetinis report
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Exhibit
Number

Description

10.4(g)

10.4(h)

10.4(i)

10.4()

10.4(K)

10.4(p)

10.4(q)

10.4(r)

10.4(s)

10.4(t)

10.5(b)

10.5(c)

10.6(a)

10.10

10.14

The Ryder System, Inc. 1995 Stock Incentive Plargraended and restated as of July 25, 2002,
previously filed with the Commission as an exhtbiRyder’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2003, is incorporated by redergmo this report

The Ryder System, Inc. 2005 Equity Compensation,Rieeviously filed with the Commission on
March 30, 2005 as Appendix A to the Proxy Statenfi@nthe 2005 Annual Meeting of Shareholders of
the Company is incorporated by reference intorégert.

Terms and Conditions applicable to non-qualifiestktoptions granted under the Ryder System, Inc.
2005 Equity Compensation Plan, previously filedwilie Commission as an exhibit to Ryder's Current
Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on ketsy 14, 2007, are incorporated by reference into
this report.

Terms and Conditions applicable to restricted stigits granted under the Ryder System, Inc. 2005
Equity Compensation Plan, previously filed with tbemmission as an exhibit to RydeCurrent Repo
onForm &K filed with the Commission on May 11, 2005, are iparated by reference into this repc
Terms and Conditions applicable to restricted statks granted under the Ryder System, Inc. 2005
Equity Compensation Plan, previously filed with themmission as an exhibit to RydeCurrent Repo
onForm &K filed with the Commission on May 11, 2005, are ipavated by reference into this repc
Terms and Conditions applicable to performancebasstricted stock rights and related cash awards
granted in 2007 under the Ryder System, Inc. 2Qfiitiz Compensation Plan, previously filed with the
Commission as an exhibit to Ryder’s Current ReparForm 8-K filed with the Commission on
February 14, 2007, are incorporated by referenicetims report

Terms and Conditions applicable to performancebasstricted stock rights granted in 2008 under the
Ryder System, Inc. 2005 Equity Compensation Plesvipusly filed with the Commission as an exhibit
to Ryder’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed witlet@ommission on February 14, 2008, are
incorporated by reference into this rep:

Terms and Conditions applicable to annual incertagh awards granted in 2009 under the Ryder
System, Inc. 2005 Equity Compensation Plan, preshjofiled with the Commission as an exhibit to
Ryder’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with ther@mission on February 11, 2009, are incorporated
by reference into this repo

Terms and Conditions applicable to performancebasstricted stock rights granted in 2009 under the
Ryder System, Inc. 2005 Equity Compensation Plesvipusly filed with the Commission as an exhibit
to Ryder’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed witlet@ommission on February 11, 2009, are
incorporated by reference into this rep:

Terms and Conditions applicable to performancedbaash awards granted in 2009 under the Ryder
System, Inc. 2005 Equity Compensation Plan, preshjofiled with the Commission as an exhibit to
Ryder’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with ther@mission on February 11, 2009, are incorporated
by reference into this repo

The Ryder System, Inc. Directors Stock Award Pénamended and restated at February 10, 2005,
previously filed with the Commission as an exhtbiRyder’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2004, is incorporated by referario this repori

The Ryder System, Inc. Directors Stock Plan, asnal®@ and restated at May 7, 2004, previously filed
with the Commission as an exhibit to Ryder’'s AnnRaport on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2004, is incorporated by referenaethis report

The Ryder System Benefit Restoration Plan, amenadddestated effective January 2, 2005, previously
filed with the Commission as an exhibit to RydeZigrrent Report on Form 8-K filed with the
Commission on February 11, 2009, is incorporatecefigrence into this repol

The Ryder System, Inc. Deferred Compensation Rfffiective as of January 1, 2009, previously filed
with the Commission as an exhibit to Ryder’s CuriReport on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on
February 11, 2009, is incorporated by referendhitoreport.

Global Revolving Credit Agreement dated as of ABfl] 2009, by and among, Ryder System, Inc.,
certain subsidiaries of Ryder System, Inc., andehders and agents named therein, previously i¢a
the Commission as an exhibit to Ryder’s Currentd®epn Form 8-K filed with the Commission on

May 1, 2009, is incorporated by reference into thjgort.
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Exhibit
Number Description
21.1 List of subsidiaries of the registrant, with thatstor other jurisdiction of incorporation or orgaation of
each, and the name under which each subsidiarylims#sess
23.1 PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP consent to incorpordiyoreference in certain Registration Statements on
Forms S-3 and S-8 of their report on Consolidatedrcial Statements financial statement schedule an
effectiveness of internal controls over financeparting of Ryder System, In
24.1 Manually executed powers of attorney for eact

James S. Beal John M. Berre
David I. Fuente L. Patrick Hasse
Lynn M. Martin Luis P. Nieto, Jr
Eugene A. Renn Abbie J. Smitt

E. Follin Smith Hansel E. Tookes,

311 Certification of Gregory T. Swienton pursuémRule 13-14(a) or Rule 15-14(a).

31.2 Certification of Robert E. Sanchez pursuarRtde 13-14(a) or Rule 15-14(a).

32 Certification of Gregory T. Swienton and Ralder Sanchez pursuant to Rule 13a-14(b) or
Rule 15-14(b) and 18 U.S.C. Section 13!

(b) Executive Compensation Plans and Arrangements:

Please refer to the description of Exhibits 10rbuigh 10.10 set forth under Item 15(a)3 of thiorefor a
listing of all management contracts and compensatians and arrangements filed with this reporspant to
Item 601(b)(10) of Regulation S-K.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas
duly caused this report to be signed on its behathe undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Date: February 12, 201 RYDER SYSTEM, INC.

By: /s/ (REGORYT. SWIENTON

Gregory T. Swienton
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Offi

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xg Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe
following persons on behalf of the registrant amthie capacities and on the dates indicated.

Date: February 12, 201 By: /s/ REGORYT. SWIENTON

Gregory T. Swienton
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer

Date: February 12, 201 By: /s/ ROBERTE. SANCHEZ
Robert E. Sanchez
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office
(Principal Financial Officer

Date: February 12, 201 By: /s/ ART A. GARCIA
Art A. Garcia
Senior Vice President and Controller
(Principal Accounting Officer

Date: February 12, 201 By: JAMES S. BEARD*
James S. Beard
Director

Date: February 12, 201 By: JOoHN M. BERRA*
John M. Berra
Director

Date: February 12, 201 By: DAvID |. FUENTE*
David I. Fuente
Director

Date: February 12, 201 By: L. PATRICK HASSEY*
L. Patrick Hassey
Director

Date: February 12, 201 By: LYNN M. MARTIN*
Lynn M. Martin
Director

Date: February 12, 201 By: Luis P. NETO, R.*
Luis P. Nieto, Jr.
Director
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Date

Date

Date

Date

Date

: February 12, 201

: February 12, 201

: February 12, 201

: February 12, 201

: February 12, 201

By: EUGENE A. RENNA*

Eugene A. Renna
Director

By: ABBIE J. SNITH*

Abbie J. Smith
Director

By: E. FOLLIN SMITH*

E. Follin Smith
Director

By: HansEL E. Tookes II*

Hansel E. Tookes, Il
Director

*By: /s/ DaviD BEILIN

David Beilin
Attorney-in-Fact



EXHIBIT 21.1

The following list sets forth (i) all subsidiarie§ Ryder System, Inc. at December 31, 2009, (&)dtate or
country of incorporation or organization of eacbsidiary, and (iii) the names under which certaibsidiaries do

business.

Name of Subsidiary

State or Country of
Incorporation or Organization

1318359 Ontario Limite(?)
3241290 Nova Scotia Compa
Associated Ryder Capital Services, It
CRTS Logistica Automotiva S.A
Far East Freight, Inc

Network Vehicle Central, Inc
Network Vehicle Central, LL(
Phaseking Limite«

Road Master, Limite

RSI Acquisition Corp.

RSI Holding B.V.

RSI Purchase Cory.

RTI Argentina S.A.

RTRC Finance LI

RTR Holdings (B.V.l.) Limitec

RTR Leasing I, Inc.

RTR Leasing I, Inc.

Ryder Airport Operations Corf.
Ryder Argentina S.A.

Ryder Ascent Logistics Pte Lt
Ryder Asia Pacific Holdings B.\
Ryder Asia Pacific Pte Ltd

Ryder Australia Pty Ltd.

Ryder Canadian Financing US Ll
Ryder Capital Ireland Holdings | LL
Ryder Capital Ireland Holdings Il LL!
Ryder Capital Luxembourg Limite
Ryder Capital Luxembourg Limited, Cor|
Ryder Capital S. de R.L. de C.\
Ryder Capital Services Corporati
Ryder Columbia Ltdi

Ryder Container Termina
RYDERCORPF

RYDERCORRP, Inc.

Ryder CRSA Logistic®)

Ryder CRSA Logistics (HK) Limite:
Ryder de Mexico S. de R.L. de C.
Ryder Dedicated Logistics, Inc
Ryder Deutschland Gmb

Ryder Distribution Services Limite
Ryder do Brasil Ltda

Ryder Energy Distribution Corporatic
Ryder Europe B.V

Ryder Europe Operations B.

Canade
Nova Scotic
Florida
Brazil
Florida
Florida
Florida
United Kingdom
Bermudas
Delaware
Netherlands
Delaware
Argentina
Canade
British Virgin Islands
Delaware
Delaware
Florida
Argentina
Singapore
Netherlands
Singapore
Australia
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Luxembourg
Florida
Mexico
Delaware
Columbia
Canade
Florida
Delaware
Canade
Hong Kong
Mexico
Delaware
Germany
United Kingdom
Brazil
Florida
Netherlands
Netherlands




Name of Subsidiary

State or Country of
Incorporation or Organization

Ryder FleetProducts.com, In
Ryder Fuel Services, LL

Ryder Funding LF

Ryder Funding Il LF

Ryder Holding, LLC

Ryder Hungary Logistics LL¢
Ryder, Inc. of Florid:

Ryder Italia S.R.L

Ryder Integrated Logistics, In®)
Ryder Integrated Logistics of Texas, LI
Ryder International Acquisition Cory
Ryder International, Inc

Ryder Limited

Ryder Logistica Ltda.

Ryder Logistics (Shanghai) Co., Lt
Ryder Mauritius Holdings, Ltd
Ryder Mexican Holding B.V

Ryder Mexican Investments | LL
Ryder Mexican Investments Il LL
Ryder Mexican Investments | L
Ryder Mexican Investments Il L
Ryder Mexicana, S. de R.L. de C.
Ryder Offshore Holdings | LL(
Ryder Offshore Holdings Il LL(
Ryder Offshore Holdings 11l LLC
Ryder Offshore Holdings L

Ryder Pension Fund Limite

Ryder Polska Sp. z o.

Ryder Puerto Rico, Inc

Ryder Purchasing LL(

Ryder Realty, Inc.

Ryder Receivable Funding, L.L.C
Ryder Receivable Funding II, L.L.C
Ryder Receivable Funding IlI, L.L.C
Ryder Services Corporatid4

Ryder Servicios do Brasil Ltde
Ryder Servicios S. de R.L. de C.
Ryder (Shanghai) Logistics Co., Lt
Ryder Singapore Pte Ltc

Ryder Sistemas Integrados de Logistica Limit®
Ryder St. Louis Redevelopment Corporal
Ryder Sweden Al

Ryder System B.V

Ryder System Holdings (UK) Limite
Ryder System Limite

Ryder System Malaysia Sdn. Bl
Ryder System (Thailand) Co., Lt
Ryder Thailand I, LLC

Ryder Thailand I, LLC

Tennesse
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Hungary
Florida
Italy
Delaware
Texas
Florida
Florida
United Kingdom
Brazil
China
Mauritius
Netherlands
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Mexico
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
United Kingdom
Poland
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Florida
Delaware
Delaware
Florida
Brazil
Mexico
China
Singapore
Chile
Missouri
Sweder
Netherlands
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Malaysia
Thailand
Florida
Florida




State or Country of

Name of Subsidiary Incorporation or Organization

Ryder Thailand Ill, LLC Florida
Ryder Thailand 1V, LLC Florida
Ryder Thailand V, LLC Florida
Ryder Thailand VI, LLC Florida
Ryder Truck Rental Holdings Canada LI Canade
Ryder Truck Rental, In«®) Florida
Ryder Truck Rental | LLC Delaware
Ryder Truck Rental Il LLC Delaware
Ryder Truck Rental Ill LLC Delaware
Ryder Truck Rental IV LLC Delaware
Ryder Truck Rental | LI Delaware
Ryder Truck Rental Il LI Delaware
Ryder Truck Rental Canada L") Canade
Ryder Truck Rental L~ Delaware
Ryder Truckstops, Inc Florida
Sistemas Logisticos Sigma S. Argentina
Spring Hill Integrated Logistics Management, It Delaware
Surplus Property Holding Cory Florida
Tandem Transport, L.F Georgia
Translados Americanos S. de R.L. de C Mexico
Truck Transerv, Inc. Delaware

(1) Ontario, Canada: d/b/a Ryder Grocery Servi

(2) British Columbia, Ontario, Quebec: d/b/a CRSA Ltgs
(3) Florida: d/b/a UniRydel

(4) Ohio and Texas: d/b/a Ryder Claims Services Coram:
(5) Chile: d/b/a Ryder Chile Limitad

(6) Alabama, Alaska, Arizona, Arkansas, California, @ato, Connecticut, Delaware, District of Columk
Florida, Georgia, Hawaii, Idaho, lllinois, Indiandpwa, Kansas, Kentucky, Louisiana, Maine, Maryle
Massachusetts, Michigan, Minnesota, Mississippgdduri, Montana, Nebraska, Nevada, New Hampshiegy
Jersey, New Mexico, New York, North Carolina, N@#kota, Ohio, Oklahoma, Oregon, Pennsylvania, et
Island, South Carolina, South Dakota, TennesseesdéJtah, Vermont, Virginia, Washington, West Miig
Wisconsin and Wyoming: d/b/a Ryder Transportatierviges

Maryland and Virginia: d/b/a Ryder/Jacol
Michigan: d/b/a Atlas Trucking, In
Michigan: d/b/a Ryder Atlas of Western Michic

(7) French Name: Location de Camions Ryder du Canada.
Canadian Provinces: d/b/a Ryder Integdat®gistics
Ryder Dedicated Logisti

Ryder Canad



EXHIBIT 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémtlee Registration Statements on Form S-3
(No. 333-140928) and Form S-8 (No. 33-69660, Ne62813, No. 333-19515, No. 333-26653, No. 333-57595
No. 33:-69626, No. 333-69628, No. 333-108364, No. 333-2348lo. 333-134113 and No. 333-153123) of Ryder
System, Inc. of our report dated February 12, 2@14ling to the financial statements, financiatestzent schedule
and the effectiveness of internal control overtiicial reporting, which appears in this Form 10-K.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Miami, Florida
February 12, 201



EXHIBIT 24.1
POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that each of thedersigned, being directors of Ryder System,
Inc., a Florida corporation, hereby constitutes appoints Robert D. Fatovic, David M. Beilin andid . Azuaje,
and each of them, his or her true and lawful agg+im-fact and agent, with full power of substitutiand
resubstitution, for the undersigned and in hiserrfame, place and stead, in any and all capaditiessgn the Ryde
System, Inc. Form 10-K (Annual Report pursuanti $ecurities Exchange Act of 1934) for the fisesr ended
December 31, 2009 (the “Form 10-K”), and any ahdmlendments thereto, and to file the same, witkxddibits
thereto and other documents in connection therewitih the Securities and Exchange Commission aitidl tive
New York Stock Exchange and any other stock exchamgwhich the Compa’s common stock is listed, granting
unto each said attorney-in-fact and agent full poavel authority to perform every act requisite ardessary to be
done in connection with the execution and filingteé Form 10-K and any and all amendments theastéylly for
all intents and purposes as he or she might odatalin person, hereby ratifying all that each sdidrney-in-fact
and agent, or his or her substitute or substituesy, lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue ¢oér

This Power of Attorney may be signed in any numdferounterparts, each of which shall constitut@aginal
and all of which, taken together, shall constitmte Power of Attorney.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the undersigned hasureo set his or her hand effective the 10th day of
February, 2010.

/sl MMES S. BEARD /s DHN M. BERRA
James S. Bea John M. Berri

/s/ Davip |. FUENTE Is/ L. RTRICK HASSEY
David I. Fuent L. Patrick Hasse

/s LYNN M. MARTIN /sl Luis P. NETO, JR.
Lynn M. Martin Luis P. Nieto, Ji

/s BUGENE A. RENNA /sl AsBIE J. SAITH
Eugene A. Renr Abbie J. Smitl

/s/ E. FLLIN SMITH /sl HanseL E. Tookes |l

E. Follin Smitt Hansel E. Tookes,



EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATION

I, Gregory T. Swienton, certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this annual report Form 1(-K of Ryder System, Inc

Based on my knowledge, this report does not com@ajnuntrue statement of a material fact or om#téde
a material fact necessary to make the statements,nralight of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respetietperiod covered by this repc

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsoéimer financial information included in this repo
fairly present in all material respects the finahcondition, results of operations and cash flowthe
registrant as of, and for, the periods presentedisnreport;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and | aesponsible for establishing and maintaining discte
controls and procedures (as defined in ExchangdRAitts 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal contro
over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Rales 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrandl
have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedul
be designed under our supervision, to ensure thtgnal information relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is madeviam to us by others within those entities, partciyl
during the period in which this report is beinggaeed;

b) designed such internal control over financial répgr or caused such internal control over finahcia
reporting to be designed under our supervisiopytwide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the prepaoat of financial statements for external purpoges i
accordance with generally accepted accounting iples;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant'slossire controls and procedures and presentedsin th
report our conclusions about the effectivenest@fdisclosure controls and procedures, as of the en
of the period covered by this report based on swatuation; ant

d) disclosed in this report any change in the regissanternal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fisgerter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quartettia
case of an annual report) that has materially sfte®r is reasonably likely to materially affeitte
registran’'s internal control over financial reporting; &

The registrant’s other certifying officer and | leadisclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to thegistrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the
registran’s board of directors (or persons performing thewedent functions)

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknessehe design or operation of internal contradrov
financial reporting which are reasonably likelyaidversely affect the registrant’s ability to regord
process, summarize and report financial informatao

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesnagement or other employees who have a
significant role in the registre’s internal control over financial reportir

Date: February 12, 201

/s/ REGORYT. SWIENTON

Gregory T. Swienton
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Offi




EXHIBIT 31.2
CERTIFICATION

I, Robert E. Sanchez, certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this annual report Form 1(-K of Ryder System, Inc

Based on my knowledge, this report does not com@ajnuntrue statement of a material fact or om#téde
a material fact necessary to make the statements,nralight of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respetietperiod covered by this repc

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsoéimer financial information included in this repo
fairly present in all material respects the finahcondition, results of operations and cash flowthe
registrant as of, and for, the periods presentedisnreport;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and | aesponsible for establishing and maintaining discte
controls and procedures (as defined in ExchangdRAitts 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal contro
over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Rales 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrandl
have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedul
be designed under our supervision, to ensure thtgnal information relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is madeviam to us by others within those entities, partciyl
during the period in which this report is beinggaeed;

b) designed such internal control over financial répgr or caused such internal control over finahcia
reporting to be designed under our supervisiopytwide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the prepaoat of financial statements for external purpoges i
accordance with generally accepted accounting iples;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant'slossire controls and procedures and presentedsin th
report our conclusions about the effectivenest@fdisclosure controls and procedures, as of the en
of the period covered by this report based on swatuation; ant

d) disclosed in this report any change in the regissanternal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fisgerter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quartettia
case of an annual report) that has materially sfte®r is reasonably likely to materially affeitte
registran’'s internal control over financial reporting; &

The registrant’s other certifying officer and | leadisclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to thegistrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the
registran’s board of directors (or persons performing thewedent functions)

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknessehe design or operation of internal contradrov
financial reporting which are reasonably likelyaidversely affect the registrant’s ability to regord
process, summarize and report financial informatao

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesnagement or other employees who have a
significant role in the registre’s internal control over financial reportir

Date: February 12, 201

/s/ FOBERTE. SA\NCHEZ

Robert E. Sanchez
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offi




EXHIBIT 32

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Ryder Sgsténc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the yeaded
December 31, 2009, as filed with the SecuritiesExchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Rgpor
Gregory T. Swienton, Chief Executive Officer of tiempany, and Robert E. Sanchez, Chief Financit¢&fof
the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Secti®®0, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of tHea8as-Oxley
Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefkction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange A
of 1934; anc

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly prets, in all material respects, the financial ctadianc
results of operations of the Compa

/sl Gregory T. Swienton

Gregory T. Swienton
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
February 12, 2010

/sl Robert E. Sanchez

Robert E. Sanchez
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office
February 12, 201




